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Dear Shareholders,

I am delighted to present the FY24 Annual Report of Khandwala Securities Limited (KSL). Since our inception, we have remained steadfast 
in our mission to enable wealth creation for our customers. This year, we have once again demonstrated the strength of our customer loyalty 
and strategic growth initiatives, achieving significant success in an increasingly competitive market.

Over the years, KSL has grown into a leading full-service brokerage and a highly trusted investment services company in India. Our reach 
extends across India, complemented by our online services, customer care, and WhatsApp channels.

Today, we continue to leverage advanced trading and investment platforms to provide comprehensive financial services, simplifying the 
investment journey for our customers. Our extensive knowledge base and in-depth research capabilities allow us to channel household 
savings into the capital markets effectively, helping our clients build long-term wealth. As a tech-driven financial services player, we have 
consistently led the way in innovation, enhancing the trading experience, and providing our customers with expert guidance and personalized 
support every step of the way.

The past financial year has seen steady global growth, driven by increased government spending, robust household consumption, and 
expanded labor force participation. However, we also faced challenges such as high borrowing costs, the withdrawal of fiscal support, and 
geopolitical tensions, including conflicts in regions like Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Gaza. Additionally, China’s economic slowdown introduced 
further uncertainty to international markets. Despite these global challenges, India achieved significant milestones in FY24, maintaining 
its position as the world’s fifth-largest economy with an impressive growth rate of 8.2%. This was fuelled by strong domestic consumption 
and increased government capital investment, with the robust financial sector and rapidly expanding fintech ecosystem playing key roles in 
facilitating this growth.

A crucial factor in the progress of the financial sector has been the role of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). By enforcing 
stringent regulations and maintaining vigilant oversight, SEBI has ensured that our financial markets operate fairly and transparently, 
safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders and fostering trust and stability within the financial system. The stock exchanges, which serve 
as the pulse of economic potential, also posted impressive numbers. The National Stock Exchange (NSE) saw a remarkable 98% increase 
in the average daily turnover in the equity cash segment, and the Nifty index rose by 29% during the fiscal year.

India’s financial landscape is undergoing a significant transformation as Tier 2 and 3 cities emerge as vibrant hubs of financial activity. 
Traditionally dominated by major metropolitan areas, or Tier 1 cities, the narrative is shifting dramatically due to several key factors, especially 
the explosive growth of digital penetration.

In 2023, it was reported that Tier 2 and 3 cities are now home to a staggering 139 Mn consumers aged between 15 and 55, nearly matching 
the population of Tier 1 cities. This demographic powerhouse, characterized by rising incomes and an increasing number of graduates and 
postgraduates, is driving unprecedented demand for financial services in these regions. The aspirations of a young and upwardly mobile 
population in Tier 2 and 3 cities are reshaping financial inclusion. The growing participation of investors from these areas in the stock market 
and mutual funds is a testament to this shift. Enhanced digital access and financial literacy programs are empowering these new investors, 
providing them with opportunities that were previously concentrated in larger cities. This trend not only broadens the base of financial 
inclusion but also highlights the potential for economic growth and development driven by a more inclusive financial ecosystem. As Tier 2 
and 3 cities continue to grow in prominence, they are set to play a crucial role in the future of India’s financial sector.

Advancements in digital technology are revolutionizing the broking and investment sector. Today, stockbrokers are harnessing developments 
in data analysis, decision-making, and risk management to enhance efficiency and provide a more customized user experience.

By analysing user behaviour and usage patterns, AI algorithms offer tailored recommendations for news, research reports, and investment 
products. This personalized approach helps investors make informed decisions aligned with their interests and goals. Investment apps can 
also use AI to evaluate a user’s portfolio and risk profile, suggesting investment strategies that suit their individual needs. By embracing these 
technological advancements, we can enhance our clients’ experience, providing intuitive, responsive, and highly personalized services that 
cater to their unique financial objectives.

These technological advancements enable brokers to make more informed decisions, execute trades more efficiently, and manage risks 
more effectively. By embracing technology, the broking industry is poised to deliver enhanced services, driving greater financial inclusion and 
improving overall market efficiency.

Looking to the future, we see exciting times ahead for the investment sector. The dynamic synergy of technology and greater financial 
inclusion in India will continue to reshape the investment landscape, providing unprecedented opportunities for growth. KSL is well-positioned 
to leverage these advancements to further enhance its offerings and deliver superior value to our customers. As we remain dedicated to 
staying at the forefront of innovation, we will continue to guide our customers through their investment journey with expertise and personalized 
support. I am confident that the future holds immense potential, and KSL will continue to drive growth and create wealth for all stakeholders.
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As India strides towards its ambitious goal of becoming a 5 trillion-dollar economy, the landscape of financial investments is set for remarkable 
expansion. With rising incomes and a growing awareness of the importance of investing, more individuals are actively seeking opportunities 
for wealth creation. As a well-established investment services provider, KSL is poised to play a crucial role in this transformative journey.

Drawing on our decades of experience and deep expertise, coupled with our unwavering commitment to innovation, KSL continues to lead 
the way in guiding savings from traditional physical assets to a diverse array of financial investments. Our cutting-edge technology and 
extensive knowledge base empower us to be a trusted partner for our customers, helping them navigate the complexities of the financial 
markets and achieve their long-term financial goals.

Strategically, we are focused on de-risking the company by increasing our non-brokerage income, thereby future-proofing KSL. As we assist 
our customers in building long-term wealth, we are confident that our proud legacy, rich heritage, and profound sector understanding will 
drive our evolution and deliver sustainable growth.

As I conclude this communication, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our customers, investors, regulators, and employees for 
the trust they have placed in us. My special thanks go to our Board members for their continued guidance.

I would also like to express my deep appreciation to Mr. Kalpen Shukla, our independent director, who joined our esteemed board in January 
2024. His visionary leadership and guidance will be instrumental in shaping the company’s future success, and we wish him well in his 
endeavors.

We look forward to your unwavering support as we continue on our growth trajectory, committed to creating long-term value for all our 
stakeholders.

Thank you once again

Pranav Khandwala 
Whole-time Director/CFO
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Performance Highlights
Standalone Financial Performance of Khandwala Securities Limited.

(in Rs. Lacs except per share data)  
FY24 FY23 FY22 FY21 FY20 FY19 FY18 FY17 FY16 FY15 FY14

Total Income 870.09 648.63 635.14 377.35 362.00 609.83 383.68 495.36 348.72 506.85 438.18
Total Expenditure 853.70 598.86 628.78 547.03 724.52 594.30 460.08 555.30 420.25 489.21 466.62
Profit Before Tax 16.40 49.77 6.36 -169.68 -362.52 15.53 -76.40 -59.94 -71.53 17.64 -28.44
Tax Expenses -1.01 5.36 5.69 4.68 3.82 3.58 1.30 1.02 -1.42 -7.46 -0.62
Net Profit 17.41 44.42 12.05 -165.00 -358.70 19.11 -75.10 -60.95 -70.11 25.10 -27.82
Paid up Equity Capital 1525.38 1525.38 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90 1193.90
Networth 3030.80 3011.90 2072.74 2057.49 2374.96 2734.25 2772.32 2846.52 2907.48 2977.58 2952.49
Diluted EPS (FV Rs. 10) (in Rs.) 0.11 0.29 0.10 -1.38 -3.00 0.16 -0.63 -0.51 -0.59 0.21 -0.23
BVPS (FV Rs. 10) (in Rs.) 19.87 19.75 17.36 17.23 18.64 21.65 21.55 22.17 22.68 23.26 23.05

Networth Total Income

Net Profit Diluted EPS (FV Rs. 10) (in Rs.)

BVPS (FV Rs. 10) (in Rs.) Total Expenditure
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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Thirty First Annual General Meeting 
of the Members of Khandwala Securities Limited will be held 
on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 12.00 noon (IST) through 
Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to 
transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 together with the Report of the Directors 
and the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 together with the Report of the Auditors 
thereon. 

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 
(DIN:02335473), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, the approval of members of the Company, be and is 
hereby accorded to reappoint Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 
(DIN:02335473), as a director, who is liable to retire by 
rotation.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Khandwala Securities Limited

Date : August 12, 2024 	 Paresh Khandwala 
Place : Mumbai 	 Managing Director

NOTES:
1.	 In respect of resolution at item no. 3 of aforesaid Ordinary 

Business, a brief details of the directors, who are seeking re-
appointment are annexed hereto as required under Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

2.	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its General 
Circulars dated Nos. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, and 
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 
9/2023 dated September 25, 2023 (MCA Circulars) and the 
Circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
from time to time (SEBI Circulars), permitted convening the 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without physical 
presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance 
with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, SEBI Circulars, applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 
thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Thirty First AGM of the 
Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

3.	 The deemed venue for Thirty First AGM of the Company shall 
be the Registered office of the Company i.e. G-II, Ground 
Floor, Dalamal House, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021.

4.	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a 
Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled 
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf 
and the proxy need not be a member of the company. 
Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA 
circulars through VC/OAVM facility, the requirements of 
physical attendance of members has been dispensed 
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies 
by the members will not be available for this AGM and 
hence the proxy form, attendance slip and route map are 
not annexed to this notice.

5.	 Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/
HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (pdf/
jpg format) of its board or governing body’s resolution/
authorisation, etc., authorising their representative to attend 
the AGM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The 
said resolution/authorisation shall be sent to the scrutinizer 
by email through its registered email address to csbbansal@
gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com.

6.	 The Company has enabled the Members to participate at 
this AGM through VC/OAVM facility. The detailed instructions 
for joining the Meeting through VC/OAVM form part of the 
Notes to this Notice. The Members will be able to view the 
proceedings on the National Securities Depository Limited’s 
(‘NSDL’) e-Voting website at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

7.	 Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be 
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act.

8.	 The Company has provided the facility to Members to exercise 
their right to vote by electronic means both through remote 
e-voting and e-voting during the AGM. The process and 
instructions for remote e-voting are provided in the subsequent 
pages. Such remote e-voting facility is in addition to voting that 
will take place at this AGM being held through VC/OAVM.

9.	 Members joining the meeting through VC/OAVM, who have 
not already cast their vote by means of remote e-voting, shall 
be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the 
AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting prior to the AGM may also join the AGM through VC 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

10.	 As per Regulation 40 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended, securities of listed 
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with 
effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received 
for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this 
and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and 
for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares 
in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the 
Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, KFin 
Technologies Limited for assistance in this regard.

11.	 In accordance with the MCA circulars and the SEBI circulars, 
the Annual Report for FY 2023-24 including Notice of Thirty 
First AGM are being sent only through electronic mode to 
those members whose email addresses are registered with 
the Company/depositories. Members may note that the Notice 
and Annual Report for FY 2023-24 will also be available on 
the Company’s website at http://www.kslindia.com/Static/
InvestorRelations.aspx website of the stock exchanges 
i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and on the 
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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12.	 Members who have not registered their e-mail address are 
requested to register the same in respect of shares held in 
electronic form with the Depository through their Depository 
Participant(s) and in respect of shares held in physical form by 
writing to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, 
KFin Technologies Limited, Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot 
31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, 
Hyderabad - 500032. Members are requested to register their 
email id and support the green initiative efforts of the Company. 

13.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 
2013, members holding shares in physical form are advised 
to file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with KFin 
Technologies Limited. In respect of shares held in electronic/
demat form, the members may please contact their respective 
depository participant.

14.	 Members holding the equity shares under multiple folios in the 
identical order of names are requested to write to the KFin 
Technologies Limited, to consolidate their holdings in one folio.

15.	 Members are informed that in the case of joint holders 
attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in 
the order of names will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

16.	 Non-resident Indian shareholders are requested to inform about 
the following immediately to the Company or its Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent or the concerned Depository Participant, 
as the case may be:- a) the change in the residential status on 
return to India for permanent settlement, and b) the particulars 
of the NRE account with a Bank in India, if not furnished earlier.

17.	 Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning 
the accounts and operations of the Company are requested to 
address their questions in writing to the Company at least 10 
days in advance so that information required may be complied 
and make available at the Meeting.  

18.	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining 
to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/mobile 
numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name 
of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR 
code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held 
in electronic form and to KFin Technologies Limited in case the 
shares are held in physical form.

19.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, there are no dividends or interest which remains 
unpaid /unclaimed for a period of 7 years which should 
be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education 
Protection Fund (IEPF). Members are requested to note that 
no claims shall lie against the Company or IEPF in respect of 
any amounts which were unclaimed and unpaid for a period 
of seven years from the dates that they first became due for 
payment and no payment shall be made in respect of any such 
claims. 

20.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
and their shareholding and the Register of contracts or 
arrangements in which directors are interested maintained 
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be made 
available for inspection by the Members electronically during 
the AGM.

21.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed from September 20, 2024 to 
September 26, 2024 (both days inclusive). 

22.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended) and MCA circulars, the 

Company is providing facility of Remote e-voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 
AGM. For this purpose, necessary arrangements have been 
made with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
for facilitating remote e-voting and e-voting during AGM. The 
instructions for the process to be followed for Remote e-Voting 
and e-Voting during AGM is forming part of this Notice.

23.	 Members of the Company holding shares either in physical 
form or in electronic form as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 
September 19, 2024 may cast their vote by remote e-Voting. 
A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members 
or in the Register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to 
avail the facility of remote e-Voting before the AGM as well 
as remote e-Voting during the AGM. A person who is not a 
member of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 
September 19, 2024 should treat this Notice for information 
purpose only.

24.	 The Company has appointed Mr. Bhuwnesh Bansal, Proprietor 
of M/s. Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretary (Membership No. FCS 6526 & COP No. 9089) as 
the Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the e-voting process (remote 
e-voting and e-voting during AGM) in a fair and transparent 
manner. The Scrutinizer will submit the report to the Chairman 
or any person authorised by him after completion of the scrutiny 
and the results of voting will be announced after the AGM of 
the Company. The result declared along with the Scrutiniser’s 
report shall be communicated to the Stock Exchanges on 
which the Company’s shares are listed, NSDL and will also be 
displayed on the Company’s website at www.kslindia.com.

25.	 The Results on above resolutions shall be declared within 48 
hours from the conclusion of the Meeting of the Company and 
the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the Meeting 
date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor 
of the resolutions.  

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
ARE AS UNDER:-

The Remote E-voting period begins on Tuesday, September 24, 
2024 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Thursday, September 26, 
2024 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 
names appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners 
as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Thursday, September 
19, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 
shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, 
being Thursday, September 19, 2024.

How to vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of 
“Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility.
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	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode is given below:

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL.

A.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on 
a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
On the e-Services home page click on 
the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt 
you to enter your existing User ID 
and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and 
you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period.

B.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS 
e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.
com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com /SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

C.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User 
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can 
see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period.

D.	 Shareholders/Members can also 
download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR 
code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience.

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL

1.	 Existing users who have opted for CDSL 
Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi 
/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL 
website www.cdslindia.com and click 
on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then user your existing my 
easi username & password.

2.		 After successful login the Easi / 
Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies 
where the evoting is in progress as per 
the information provided by company. 
On clicking the evoting option, the user 
will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, 
there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website 
directly.

3.		 If the user is not registered for Easi/
Easiest, option to register is available at 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then click on registration 
option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly 
access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. 
from a e-Voting link available on www.
cdslindia.com home page. The system 
will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After 
successful authentication, user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also 
able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities 
in demat 
mode) login 
through their 
depository 
participants

You can also login using the login 
credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.
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	 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 
ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at above mentioned website.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com 
or call at 022 - 48867000

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia. com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911

A)	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode.

	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on 
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, 
your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. 
IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical Your User ID is:

Manner of holding shares 
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) 
or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a)	 For Members who hold 
shares in demat account 
with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID 
is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******.

b)	 For Members who hold 
shares in demat account 
with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID 
is 12************** then your user 
ID is 12**************

c)	 For Members holding 
shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the 
company
For example if folio number is 
001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 
user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders are given below:

a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user 
your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will 
need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated 
to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password.

c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with 
the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you 
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from 
your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. 
a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf 
file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your 
‘initial password’. 

(ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned 
below in process for those shareholders whose email ids 
are not registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial 
password” or have forgotten your password:

a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding 
shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares 
in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two 
options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your 
PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based 
login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and 
Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting 
will open.
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting 
on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting 
on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all 
the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote 
during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 
need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General 
Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent 
or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you 
wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” 
when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will 
be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by 
clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be 
allowed to modify your vote.		

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, 
NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer 
by e-mail to csbbansal@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.com.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 
password. In such an event, you will need to go through the 
“Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password. 

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of  
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 022-48867000  or 
send a request to Mr. Sagar S. Gudhate at evoting@nsdl.com.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide 
Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to investorgrievances@kslindia.com.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-
CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investorgrievances@
kslindia.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 
login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 
e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to 
evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for 
e-voting by providing above mentioned document.

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE 
DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as 
the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/shareholders, who will be present in the 
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system in the AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be 
eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to 
vote at the AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any 
grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day 
of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned or Remote 
e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM 
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/
AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above 
for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful 
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join 
General meeting” menu against company name. You are 
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General 
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
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Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will 
be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have 
the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid 
last minute rush.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops 
for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use 
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices 
or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot 
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.

5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/have 
questions may send their questions in advance mentioning 
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at investorgrievances@kslindia.com. The 
same will be replied by the company suitably.

6.	 Members desirous of getting any information in respect of the 
contents of the Annual Report are requested to forward the 
same to the Company Secretary at least 10 days prior to the 
AGM so that the required information can be made available. 
The same will be replied by/on behalf of the Company suitably.

7.	 In order to enable smooth conduct of AGM, the Members 
who would like to express their views during the AGM may 
register themselves as a Speaker by sending an email to 
investorgrievances@kslindia.com, alongwith your name and 
DP ID/CLIENT ID on or before Wednesday, September 18, 
2024. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number 
of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate for 
smooth conduct of the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Khandwala Securities Limited

                    						    
Date : August 12, 2024 	 Paresh Khandwala 
Place : Mumbai 	 Managing Director

Registered Office:- 
G-II, Ground Floor, Dalamal House,  
Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021 
CIN : L67120MH1993PLC070709

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Information of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting 
(SS-2):

Name of the Director Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 	

DIN 02335473

Date of Birth 26/12/1980  

Qualification B.Com, MBA (Finance)

Date of Appointment 30/05/2014

Expertise in Functional area She has diverse experience in the field of financial market and accounting.

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting 
fee), if any

As mentioned in Corporate Governance Report

Directorship held in other  Companies in 
India

•	 Trumonee Financial Limited
•	 Bentley Investments Private Limited

Memberships / Chairmanship of Committees 
in other Companies 

Nil

No. of Equity shares held in the Company 50,180

Relationship with Directors / Key Managerial 
Personnel, if any

Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala is the spouse of Mr. Pranav Khandwala, Director and  
Mr. Pranav Khandwala is the son of Mr. Paresh Khandwala, Managing Director. Mr. Pratik 
Khandwala and Mr. Pranav Khandwala are brothers.  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members,
Your Directors hereby present the Thirty First Annual Report on the 
business, operations and state of affairs of the Company together 
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 
2024.
FINANCIAL RESULTS
The summary of the Company’s financial performance for the 
financial year 2023-24 as compared to the previous financial year 
2022-23 is given below:
(I)	 Standalone Financial Performance :
	  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2024

Year ended 
March 31, 

2023

Total Income 870.09 648.63

Financial Cost 27.16 33.67

Depreciation and Amortization 
Expenses 31.34 29.50

Profit / (Loss) before 
Exceptional Items & Tax 16.40 49.77

Exceptional Items - -

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 16.40 49.77

Provision for Tax (1.01) 5.35

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 17.41 44.42

Other Comprehensive Income (0.18) 0.73

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the Year 17.23 45.15

(II)	 Consolidated Financial Performance :
 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 

2024

Year ended 
March 31, 

2023
Total Income 870.10 648.63

Financial Cost 27.16 33.67

Depreciation and 
Amortization Expenses

31.34 29.50

Profit / (Loss) before 
Exceptional Items & Tax

16.38 49.68

Exceptional Items - -

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 16.38 49.68

Provision for Tax (1.01) 5.35

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 17.39 44.32

Other Comprehensive 
Income

(0.18) 0.73

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the Year

17.21 45.05

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Standalone
During the year under review, the standalone total income for the 
financial year was Rs. 870.09 lakhs as compared to Rs. 648.63 
lakhs for the previous year. The total expenses incurred during the 
financial year was Rs. 853.70 lakhs as compared to Rs. 598.86 
lakhs in the previous year. The Net Profit after tax was Rs. 17.41 
lakhs in the financial year as compared to Rs. 44.42 lakhs in the 
previous year.
Consolidated
During the year under review, the consolidated total income for the 
financial year was Rs. 870.10 lakhs as compared to Rs. 648.63 
lakhs for the previous year. The total expenses incurred during the 
financial year was Rs. 853.72 lakhs as compared to Rs. 598.96 
lakhs in the previous year. The Net Profit after tax was Rs. 17.39 
lakhs in the financial year as compared to Rs. 44.32 lakhs in the 
previous year.
DIVIDEND
During the year under review, the Board of Directors has not 
recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024.
INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
The information on operational and financial performance of the 
Company is given in the Management Discussion & Analysis 
Report, forming part of this Annual Report.
LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES
The equity shares of the Company are listed on National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE).
SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES
Your company does not have any subsidiary company or joint 
venture.
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the year ended March 31, 2024, your Company had one 
associate Company i.e. Trumonee Financial Limited, within the 
meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company has been 
prepared in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards. The audited consolidated financial statements together 
with auditor’s report forms part of this Annual Report. A statement 
containing the salient features of the financial statement of associate 
Company as required under Sec.129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
in the prescribed form i.e. “Form AOC-1” is annexed as “Annexure 
- 1” to this report.
Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the financial statement of the Company, consolidated 
financial statements along with relevant documents and separate 
audited accounts in respect of associate company are also available 
on the website of the Company. The Company will also make 
available copy of audited accounts of the associate Company upon 
request by any member of the Company interested in obtaining the 
same. All these documents will also be available for inspection at 
the Registered Office of the Company till the date of ensuing Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92 and 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made thereunder, the extract of annual return in the 
prescribed format is available on the website of the Company at 
www.kslindia.com.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
A detailed analysis of the Company’s performance is explained in 
the Management Discussion & Analysis Report, forming part of this 
Annual Report.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
a)	 Retirement by Rotation of the Directors
	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala retires by rotation at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors 
recommends her re-appointment.

b)	 Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
	 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, the Board has appointed Mr. Kalpen 
Shukla (DIN:-00117482) as an Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect 
from January 31, 2024, subject to the approval of the Members 
of the Company. The Members approved the said appointment 
through a resolution passed by Postal Ballot with requisite 
majority on April 6, 2024.

	 Mr. Shyam Muralidhardas Seshadri (DIN:05242397) tendered 
his resignation as an Independent Director of the Company 
with effect from close of business hours on January 31, 2024 
citing pre-occupation and other personal commitments. The 
Board places on record its sincere appreciation of the services 
rendered by Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri during his tenure as an 
Independent Director on the Company.

	 Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Paresh Khandwala, Managing 
Director, Mr. Pranav Khandwala, Whole-time Director and 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Mr. Abhishek Joshi, 
Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company as on March 31, 2024.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE
The Board has received declarations from all the Independent 
Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are not disqualified from 
continuing as Independent Directors of the Company.
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the financial year, the Board met 6 (six) times i.e. 30th May 
2023, 14th August 2023, 13th November 2023, 31st January 2024, 
14th February 2024 and 22nd February 2024. The attendance details 
of directors at the Board Meetings are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report, forming part of this Annual Report.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted various 
Committees in compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. The details of the 
Committees along with their composition, terms of reference, no. 
of meeting held during the year and attendance at these meetings, 

are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, forming part of 
this Annual Report.
BOARD EVALUATION
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual 
evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual 
directors. The performance of the board and its committees was 
evaluated after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis 
of criteria such as board effectiveness, quality of discussion, 
contribution at the meeting, corporate governance practices, 
strategic thinking, time commitment, review of the terms of 
reference of the committees, etc. The above criteria are based on 
the guidance note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India.
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
reviewed the performance of the individual directors of the 
Company on the basis of their criteria such as effectiveness, 
performance, transparency, strategic thinking, quality of discussions 
at the meetings, etc. The performance evaluation of independent 
directors was done by the entire board. The Directors expressed 
their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board has, on recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, framed a Nomination and Remuneration 
policy on appointment of Directors, key managerial personnel, 
senior management personnel and their remuneration including the 
criteria for determining qualifications, independence of directors, 
positive attributes, etc. The said policy is annexed to this report as 
“Annexure - 2’’.
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the 
information and explanations, obtained by them, your Directors 
make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of 
Companies Act , 2013 that:
(i)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanations relating to 
material departures, if any;

(ii)	 such accounting policies as mentioned in the notes to accounts 
have been selected and applied consistently and judgments 
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit 
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024;

(iii)	 proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(iv)	 the Annual accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.
(v)	 proper internal financial controls have been laid down and the 

same are adequate and were operating effectively ; and
(vi)	 proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with 

the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has in place adequate internal financial control with 
reference to the financial statements. The Company has policies 
and procedures in place for ensuring proper and efficient conduct 
of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. During the year under review, the Internal 
Financial Controls were operating effectively and no material or 
serious observation has been received from the Auditors of the 
Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The details in respect of internal control system and their adequacy 
are included in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which 
forms part of this annual report.
RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has a risk management framework which not only 
ensures timely identification of risks, analysis of the reasons for 
such risk, assessment of its materiality, assessment of its impact 
but also adequate risk mitigation processes. The Risk management 
framework encompasses all areas of the Company’s business. The 
details of risk management including identification of elements of 
risk and their mitigation are provided in Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis, which forms part of this annual report. The Audit 
Committee monitors the risk management plan and ensures its 
effectiveness.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All the Related Party Transactions that were entered during the 
financial year 2023-24 were on arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business of the Company. Thus disclosure in 
form AOC-2 is not required.
Further, there were no materially significant related party 
transactions entered by the Company during the year which may 
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company. The 
disclosure with related parties is set out in the notes to accounts 
forming part of the Annual Report. The Company has also adopted 
a related party transactions policy which is available on the website 
of the Company.
DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has neither accepted 
nor renewed any deposits from the public under the provision of 
Section 73 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder.
LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY
The details of loans, guarantees and investments made by the 
Company under the provision of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013, during the financial year, have been disclosed in the notes of 
the financial statements.
EMPLOYEES
Your Company is consciously aware that its well being largely 
depends upon the quality and strength of human resource. Your 
Company recognizes that human capital is its most valuable asset 
and thus endeavors to attract and retain the best available talent. 
Towards the end of FY 2024 your Company undertook an exercise to 
shrink the payroll head count to make it lean and more competitive. 
The Company through constant monitoring of its milestones and 
goals ensures that its operations are adequately staffed and in sync 
with requirements. Your Company’s human resource policies are 
designed and implemented to achieve these objectives.

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for sincere 
and dedicated efforts put in by all the employees. Employee-
Management relations continued to remain cordial throughout the 
year under review.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 
2013, the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median 
employee’s remuneration and other details in term of sub-section 
12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) 
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are forming part of this report as “Annexure 
- 3”.
During the year under review, there was no employee was in receipt 
of remuneration exceeding the limits as prescribed under the 
provision of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
POLICY FOR PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
The Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual 
harassment of women at workplace under the provisions of 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The objective of this policy 
is to provide protection against sexual harassment of women at 
workplace and for redressal of complaints of any such harassment.
During the year under review, no complaints of sexual harassment 
was received by the Company.
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTER BLOWER POLICY
The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower 
Policy for the employees for reporting genuine concerns/grievances 
and reporting any unethical behavior or wrong practices such as 
fraud, violation of code of conduct, inappropriate behavior, etc. in the 
organization. This Policy provides the adequate safeguards against 
the victimization of the employees who use the vigil mechanism. 
The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy has been uploaded 
on the website of the Company at http://www.kslindia.com/Static/
KSLPolicies.aspx. The functioning of the vigil mechanism is 
reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
The Company has adopted a code of practices and procedure 
for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information for 
prevention of Insider Trading. The said code is in line with the 
provisions of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 and the same has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at http://www.kslindia.com/Static/KSLPolicies.aspx. All 
the Directors and the designated employees have complied with 
the Code.
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial 
Standards, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
relating to meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.
SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, there was no change in the equity 
share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 
2024 stood at Rs. 28,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Eight Crores 
only) divided into 1,70,00,000 (One Crore Seventy Lakhs only) 
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Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each and 5,00,000 
(Five Lakhs only) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 
Rs. 100/- each (Rupees Hundred Only) and 4,00,000 (Four Lakhs 
only) Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
(Rupees Hundred only) and 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs only) Optionally 
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
(Rupees Hundred Only).
The paid-up share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2024 
stood at Rs. 15,25,38,050/- comprising of 1,52,53,805 equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each.
STATUTORY AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Act and the 
rules made thereunder, the Members of the Company at their 
Twenty Seventh AGM held on November 23, 2020, had appointed 
M/s. Aniket Kulkarni & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 130521W), as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a term of five years, i.e. from the conclusion of Twenty 
Seventh AGM till the conclusion of the Thirty Second AGM to be 
held in the year 2025. The Statutory Auditor are not disqualified 
from continuing as Auditors of the Company.
The Reports issued by the Statutory Auditor on the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2023-24 forms part of 
this Annual Report.
Further, the Statutory Auditor’s has given the qualified opinion in 
their audit reports and the Board has furnished required details/
explanation in its note nos. 28 and 29 of notes of accounts to the 
Standalone Financial Statements and note nos. 30 and 31 of notes 
of accounts to the Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, 
the Company had appointed M/s. Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 
31, 2024 issued by the Secretarial Auditor has been annexed 
as “Annexure-4” to this report and there is no adverse remark, 
qualifications or reservation in the Secretarial Audit Report of the 
Company.
INTERNAL AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder, M/s. Shah & Ramaiya, 
Chartered Accountants was appointed as Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Internal Auditors 
have conducted the internal audit periodically and submitted their 
reports to the Audit Committee.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from 
the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions 
of Corporate Governance as prescribed under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has 
been provided in this Annual Report.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 

2014, the requirements of mandatory implementation of Corporate 
Social Responsibility activities is presently not applicable to the 
Company.
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURT
There was no material significant material orders passed by the 
Regulators or Court or Tribunals which can have an impact on the 
going concern status and its future operations.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by 
the Company, Rule 8(3) of the Company (Accounts), Rules, 2014 
concerning conservation of energy and technology absorption 
respectively are not applicable to the Company.
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
During the year under review, the foreign exchange earnings was 
Rs. 130.26 Lakhs (Previous Year was Rs. 31.00 lakhs). The foreign 
exchange outgo was Rs. 5.32 lakhs (Previous Year was Rs. 0.41).
OTHER DISCLOSURES:
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in 
respect of the following matters as there were no transactions on 
these matters during the financial year ended March 31, 2024:
	 There has been no change in the nature of business of the 

Company;
	 There has been no material changes and commitments 

affecting the financial position of the Company that occured 
between the end of financial year and the date of this Report;

	 There was no application made or proceeding pending against 
the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016.

	 There was no instance of one time settlement with any Bank/
Financial Institution in respect of loan taken by the Company;

	 No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit 
Committee and the Board;

	 Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit, 
as prescribed under the provision of section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company;

	 The Company has not issued equity shares with differential 
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
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Place : Mumbai	 Chairman
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Annexure – 1 to Director’s Report
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part A:  Subsidiaries 

 Not Applicable

Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of the Associate Company Trumonee Financial Limited

Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2024

No. of Shares of Associate held by the company on the year end 33,75,000

Amount of Investment in Associates  (In Rupees) 3,37,50,000

Extend of Holding % 43.41%

Description of how there is significant influence Significant influence due to percentage of 
share capital

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated -

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet (in Rupees) 15,05,694/-

Profit / Loss for the year Considered in Consolidation (In Rupees) (1,651)

Profit / Loss for the year not Considered in Consolidation -

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants	 Khandwala Securities Limited 
(FRN No:- 130521W)

Aniket Kulkarni	 Homiar N. Vakil	 Paresh J. Khandwala 
Proprietor	 Chairman	 Managing Director 
Mem. No: 127246	 DIN: 05210178	 DIN: 00112678

	 Pranav Khandwala	 Abhishek Joshi 
	 Whole-time Director / CFO         	 Company Secretary 
	 DIN: 02335473

Place:-  Mumbai 
Date:-   May 18, 2024
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Annexure – 2 to Director’s Report
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

1. 	 Preamble 

	 This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (herein 
after called as ‘the Act’) read along with the applicable rules thereto and the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time. This 
policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and has been approved by the Board of Directors. 

2. 	 Definitions 

	 “Company” means Khandwala Securities Limited. 

	 “Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of Khandwala Securities Limited as constituted/re-constituted from 
time to time. 

	 “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” or Committee” means the Committee of the Board constituted/re-constituted under 
the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as in force from time to 
time. 

	 “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes 
perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961; 

	 “Key Managerial Personnel” means: 

•	 Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time   Director; 

•	 Chief Financial Officer; 

•	 Company Secretary; and 

•	 Such other officer as may be prescribed. 

	 “Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core management team, excluding 
Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, 
including all functional heads. 

3. 	 Objective 

	 The objective of the policy is to ensure that: 

	 the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors to run the company 
successfully; 

	 relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

	 remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals. 

4. 	 Role of the Committee 

	 The role of the Committee will be the following: 

	 To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director. 

	 To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 

	 To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance. 

	 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down in this policy. 

	 To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management. 

	 To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

	 To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size. 

	 Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing. 

	 To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced by any statutory notification, 
amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 

	 To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties. 
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5. 	 Appointment and Removal of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Appointment criteria and 
qualifications 

a)	 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as 
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his/ her appointment, as per Company’s Policy. 

b)	 A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is considered for appointment. 
The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/ 
satisfactory for the position. 

c)	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager 
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the 
age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution. 

6. 	 Term / Tenure 

a) 	 Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

	 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director or Whole-time Director or Manager for a term not 
exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

b) 	 Independent Director: 

	 An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to the term fixed by the Board of Directors as prescribed under the Act, 
and shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in 
the Board's report. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms maximum of 5 years each, but 
such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiration of three years of ceasing to become an Independent 
Director. 

	 Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the 
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

7. 	 Evaluation 

	 The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel yearly or at such 
intervals as may be considered necessary. 

8. 	 Removal 

	 The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject 
to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy of the Company. 

9. 	 Retirement 

	 The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy 
of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

10. 	 Provision relating to Remuneration of Directors/KMP/ Senior Management Personnel 

1. 	 Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors: 

i.	 The Remuneration/Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors, etc. shall be governed as per provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the approvals 
obtained from the Members of the Company. 

ii.	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, as it may consider 
appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors. 

2. 	 Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Directors: 

i.	 The Non-Executive/ Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as permissible under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

ii.	 All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending meetings as prescribed 
under Section 197(5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may 
be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as 
the case maybe. 
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	 An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to participate in any remuneration 
paid to Non-Executive/ Independent Directors for services rendered which are of professional in nature shall not be considered as 
part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (III) above if the following conditions are satisfied: 

•	 The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 

•	 In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that profession. 

3. 	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 

i.	 The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in compliance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Policy. 

ii.	 The Committee shall determine the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management. 

iii.	 The Fixed pay may include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund contribution to pension fund, pension 
schemes, etc. as decided from to time. 

iv.	 The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and performance of the Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate. 

11.	 Amendments: 

	 The Board of Directors on its own and/or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee can amend this 
Policy, as and when deemed fit. In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not 
being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail 
upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such 
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc.
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Annexure – 3 to Director’s Report
Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with and Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Sr. 
No

Requirements                                       Disclosure

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the Financial Year and the percentage increase in 
remuneration of each  Director, Chief Financial Officer & 
Company Secretary  in the Financial Year 

Name  of Director / KMP & 
Designation

Ratio of the 
remuneration to the 

median remuneration 
of all employees

% increase 
In 

remuneration

Executive Directors / KMP

Mr. Paresh Khandwala  
(Managing Director)

6.62 Nil

Mr. Pranav Khandwala
(Whole-time Director/ CFO)

3.81 Nil

Mr. Abhishek Joshi
(Company Secretary) 

1.41 Nil

Non -Executive Directors

Mr. Kalpen Shukla - N.A

Mr. Homiar N. Vakil - N.A

Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala - N.A

Mr. Pratik Khandwala - N.A

2 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year 

5.86%

3 The number of employees as on 31st March, 2024 on the 
rolls of Company 

35 employees as on 31st March 2024

4 The explanation on the relationship between average 
increase in remuneration and company performance

The average decrease in remuneration of all employees was 7.17%. 
The increase in remuneration was in line with the Company’s market 
competitiveness.

5 Average percentile increase made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in 
the last financial year and its comparison with the 
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof and point out if there any 
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration.  

The average decrease in salaries of employees was 7.17% and increase in 
managerial remuneration was 33.33% during the year.

6 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company

It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Note:- 

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company has received remuneration by way of sitting fees only and the same is not been included in 
the aforesaid calculation of remuneration.   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
Khandwala Securities Limited	

Paresh Khandwala 
Managing Director

Date :   May 18, 2024 
Place:   Mumbai
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Annexure – 4
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORM NO. MR – 3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration personnel Rule, 2014]

To 
The Members, 
Khandwala Securities Limited 
Vikas Building, Ground Floor, 
Green Street, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 023

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by Khandwala Securities Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/Statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of records based on audit. I have 
conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The 
Auditing Standards require that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Based on my verification of Khandwala Securities Limited’s books, papers, minute books, form and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of Secretarial audit, , I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 
(“the audit period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent and in the manner reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, form and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of  

(1)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(2)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

(3)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

(4)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999, and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(5)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable 
to the Company during the Audit Period)

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable 
to the Company during the Audit Period).

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulation, 1993, regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;

h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit period)

i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during 
the Audit period) 

j.	 The Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018;
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I have also examined Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii)	 The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to listing agreement entered into by the 
Company with BSE Ltd (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above. 

I further report that, having regard to compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of relevant documents and records 
in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

1. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulation, 1992; 

2. 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulation, 2020;

3.	  Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous provision Act, 1952;

4.	  Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

5.	  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

6.	 Act as prescribed under Shop and Establishment Act of various local authorities.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board meetings and Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the 
Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has passed following Special Resolutions at Annual General Meeting held 
on Friday, September 29, 2023, which are having major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines.   

i.	 Alteration of Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

ii.	 Increase in Borrowings Limits under Section 180(1)(c) amount up to which monies may be borrowed by the Board shall not exceed the 
sum of Rs. 250 crores (Rupees Two Fifty Crores only) at any point of time. of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii.	 Creation of Charges, Mortgages, Hypothecation on the Assets/Properties of the Company under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

iv.	 Authorization for giving loan(s), providing Guarantee(s), securities or to make Investment(s) pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

(i)	 Public/Right/ debentures/ sweat equity.

(ii)	 Redemption /Buy-back of securities.

(iii)	 Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction etc.

(iv)	 Foreign technical collaborations.

				                                     For Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates

 
	 Bhuwnesh Bansal 

Proprietor 
FCS No. – 6526 

CP No. - 9089 
Place: Mumbai 	 UDIN: F006526F000395420  
Date: 18th May 2024 	 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1708/2022

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’

To, 
The Members 
Khandwala Securities Limited 
Vikas Building, Ground Floor, 
Green Street, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 023

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record is responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial 
records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5.	 The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 				                                     For Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates 
	

Bhuwnesh Bansal 
Proprietor 

FCS No. – 6526 
CP No. – 9089 

Date: 18th May 2024 	 UDIN: F006526F000395420 
Place: Mumbai 	 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1708/2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
GLOBAL ECONOMIC REVIEW

In 2023, the global economy stabilized, with the US leading 
the recovery and emerging markets showing resilience despite 
geopolitical tensions. These tensions led to supply chain disruptions 
and inflationary pressures, prompting coordinated policy responses 
from global leaders. As supply-side issues eased and monetary 
policies tightened, inflation was successfully moderated. Although 
balanced risks persisted, the threat of a hard landing diminished. 
Structural reforms and fiscal consolidation became crucial to 
enhancing productivity and addressing debt concerns. Policymakers 
focused on managing inflation while adjusting monetary policy 
and prioritizing multilateral coordination to tackle issues like debt 
resolution and climate change mitigation for sustainable economic 
development. The global economy reported an estimated growth of 
3.2% in 2023, exceeding initial projections. Advanced economies, 
driven largely by stronger-than-expected growth in the US, reported 
an estimated growth of 1.6%

Outlook

The global economic outlook remains cautiously optimistic, with 
growth projected to continue at 3.1% in 2024. Headline inflation is 
expected to decrease from an annual average of 6.8% in 2023 to 
5.9% in 2024, and further to 4.5% in 2025, indicating a favourable 
trajectory. While risks persist, proactive policy measures and 
international cooperation will help navigate uncertainties and drive 
sustainable economic growth in the coming years.

INDIAN ECONOMIC REVIEW

In FY24, the Indian economy demonstrated strong growth, 
estimated at 7.8%, an improvement from 7.2% in 2022-23. This 
robust performance was primarily driven by the mining and quarrying 
sectors, manufacturing, and select segments of the services sector. 
India maintained its position as the world’s fifth-largest economy. 
The Indian rupee showed relative stability, opening at INR 82.66 
against the US dollar at the start of 2023 and ending at INR 83.35 
on December 27, a modest depreciation of 0.8%.

Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation averaged 5.4%, with rural 
inflation surpassing urban levels. Food inflation spiked due to 
lower production and erratic weather patterns, while core inflation 
averaged 4.5%, a sharp drop from 6.2% in FY23. The moderation in 
global commodity prices contributed to this decline in core inflation.

India’s foreign exchange reserves reached a historic USD 645.6 Bn. 
The credit quality of Indian companies remained strong, bolstered 
by deleveraged balance sheets, sustained domestic demand, and 
government-led capital expenditure. Rating upgrades outpaced 
downgrades in the second half of FY24. The Unified Payments 
Interface (UPI) continued its remarkable growth, with transaction 
volumes up by 56% and value by 43% year-on-year.

FY24’s economic growth was the highest since FY17, excluding the 
9.7% post-COVID rebound in FY22. However, the 2023 monsoon 
was the weakest in five years, with August marking the driest month 
in a century. The June-September rainfall was only 94% of the 
long-term average. Despite these challenges, wheat production 
was projected to reach a record 114 Mn tonnes in the 2023-24 crop 
year. Conversely, rice production was expected to decline to 106 
Mn metric tons (MMT) from 132 MMT in the previous year. Kharif 
pulses production was estimated at 71.18 lakh metric tonnes, lower 
than the prior year due to adverse weather.

According to the National Statistical Office (NSO), manufacturing 
sector output was expected to grow by 6.5% in 2023-24, up from 
1.3% in the previous year. The mining sector was projected to grow 
by 8.1%, compared to 4.1% in 2022-23. Financial services, real 
estate, and professional services were estimated to grow by 8.9%, 
up from 7.1% in FY23. Real GDP was estimated at INR 171.79 
lakh Cr for 2023-24, a 7.3% increase compared to 7.2% in 2022-
23. Nominal GDP was projected at INR 296.58 lakh Cr, up from 
INR 272.41 lakh Cr in the previous year. The gross non-performing 
asset (NPA) ratio for scheduled commercial banks fell to 3.2% as of 
September 2023, down from 3.9% in March 2023.

India’s exports of goods and services were expected to reach 
USD 900 Bn in 2023-24, up from USD 770 Bn the previous year, 
despite global economic headwinds. Merchandise exports were 
projected between USD 495 Bn and USD 500 Bn, while services 
exports were expected to hit USD 400 Bn. Net direct tax collection 
increased by 19% to INR 14.71 lakh Cr by January 2024, with gross 
collections up by 24.58% year-on-year. Gross GST collections for 
FY24 were INR 20.1 lakh Cr, an 11.7% increase, with an average 
monthly collection of INR 1,68,000 Cr, surpassing the previous 
year’s average of INR 1,50,000 Cr.

The agriculture sector was expected to grow by 1.8% in 2023-
24, lower than the 4% expansion in 2022-23. The trade, hotel, 
transport, communication, and broadcasting services segment 
was estimated to grow by 6.3%, down from 14% in the previous 
year. The Indian automobile sector was projected to close FY24 
with growth between 6-9%, despite global supply chain disruptions 
and rising ownership costs. The construction sector was expected 
to grow by 10.7% year-on-year, up from 10% in 2022-23. Public 
administration, defense, and other services were estimated to grow 
by 7.7%, compared to 7.2% in FY23. Growth in Gross Value Added 
(GVA) at basic prices was pegged at 6.9%, slightly down from 7% 
in 2022-23.

India reached a crucial phase in its development, characterized 
by rapid urbanization, industrialization, rising household incomes, 
and increasing energy consumption. The country emerged as the 
fifth-largest economy, with a GDP of YSD 3.6 Tn and a nominal 
per capita income of INR 123,945 in 2023-24. The Nifty 50 index 
grew by 30% in FY 2023-24, with India’s stock market becoming the 
fourth-largest globally, boasting a market capitalization of USD 4 Tn. 
Foreign investment in Indian government bonds surged in the last 
quarter of 2023. India ranked 63rd among 190 economies in ease 
of doing business, according to the World Bank’s latest ratings. 
Unemployment declined to 3.2% in 2023, down from 6.1% in 2018.

Outlook

India’s economic outlook for FY25 remains strong, with a projected 
growth rate of 7% and a gradual easing of inflationary pressures. 
According to the Reserve Bank of India’s inflation expectation 
survey, both short-term and long-term median inflation are expected 
to remain moderate. The domestic economy is anticipated to 
perform well, driven by an improving investment cycle, higher 
capacity utilization, a resilient services sector, robust credit growth, 
and healthier corporate and bank balance sheets.

Key drivers of growth include the ongoing digital transformation, 
a more dynamic regulatory environment, and the diversification of 
export portfolios. The reforms implemented by the government over 
the past decade have established a solid foundation for sustained 
long-term economic growth. Additionally, state-level initiatives and 
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other measures are focused on unlocking the potential of MSMEs 
and addressing infrastructure needs, further accelerating economic 
expansion.

THE INDIAN EQUITY MARKET

Industry Overview

During FY24, the S&P BSE Sensex index reached multiple new 
highs, with the market capitalization of companies listed on the 
BSE surpassing USD 4 Tn. The BSE Sensex recorded its second-
largest five-year gain of 24.85%, following the 68.01% surge in 
FY21 during the post-pandemic recovery. Since 2016, the Sensex 
has maintained a consistent upward trend, with a remarkable 187% 
increase from its low during the COVID-19 pandemic to the close 
of FY24.

The fiscal year concluded on a strong note for benchmark equity 
indices, Sensex and Nifty, spurred by significant investments 
in sectors such as power, automotive, and banking, along with 
favourable global market conditions. Throughout FY24, the BSE 
benchmark index climbed by 14,659.83 points, or 24.85%, while 
the Nifty rose by 4,967.15 points, or 28.61%.

Midcap and small-cap stocks also experienced substantial gains, 
with the NSE Midcap 100 and NSE Small Cap 250 indices surging 
by approximately 60.06% and 63.07%, respectively. Corporate 
earnings improved, aided by declining commodity prices that 
enhanced profitability and margins across various sectors. This 
positive momentum is expected to continue, driven by strong 
domestic demand, favourable macroeconomic factors, and a revival 
in private capital investments, which are likely to propel the Indian 
equity markets further. (Source: Mint, Business Standard)

India’s domestic equity markets reclaimed their position as the 
world’s fourth-largest, surpassing Hong Kong in June 2024. 
Following a significant recovery from lows observed on election 
result day, India’s market capitalization surged by 10% to USD 
5.2 Tn (approximately INR 435 Tn for BSE-listed companies). In 
contrast, Hong Kong’s market capitalization stood at USD 5.17 Tn, 
reflecting a 5.4% decline from its peak of USD 5.47 Tn. (Source: 
Business Standard)

Retail participation in India’s equity markets also saw robust growth, 
with a significant increase in demat accounts. The total number of 
demat accounts grew at a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) 
of approximately 33.3% from FY19 to FY24, rising from 3.59 Cr to 
15.14 Cr accounts. This growth was driven by heightened awareness 
among retail investors, greater accessibility to trading platforms 
due to technological advancements, and reduced brokerage costs. 
The active client base on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) 
expanded significantly, with a CAGR of 37.8% from 0.8 Cr in March 
2019 to approximately 4.08 Cr in March 2024. This trend highlights 
the increasing influence and participation of retail investors in the 
Indian equity markets, marking a democratization of investment 
opportunities.

CAPITAL MARKET SEGMENT

In FY24, India experienced a significant surge in equity market 
participation, highlighted by the opening of 3.7 Cr new demat 
accounts, up from 2.5 Cr in FY23. This growth was fueled by bullish 
market conditions and increased activity in the Initial Public Offering 
(IPO) markets. The Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL), 
India’s largest depository, surpassed the 11-crore mark in demat 
clients, contributing to a total of 15.14 Cr demat accounts as of 
March 31, 2024, representing a remarkable year-on-year growth 
rate of 32%.

Throughout the fiscal year, the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI) introduced several new regulations and initiatives 
aimed at enhancing market penetration and growth. These 
included the Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) 
system, a shortened trade settlement cycle, and extensive investor 
education campaigns. These regulatory efforts played a crucial role 
in encouraging retail investors to actively engage across various 
product segments, thereby enriching the vibrancy and inclusivity of 
the Indian capital market ecosystem.

FY24 saw a significant increase in transactional activities, particularly 
in IPOs, Qualified Institutional Placements (QIPs), and block deals. 
Total equity fundraising reached INR 1.86 lakh Cr, a substantial 
142% increase from FY23. The IPO market, in particular, witnessed 
a resurgence, with 75 main board offerings raising a record INR 
61,915 Cr, reflecting strong investor confidence and participation. 
This marked a recovery from the relatively subdued performance 
in FY23 due to market volatility and moderate listing outcomes. 
Notable IPOs in FY24 included Mankind Pharma (INR 4,326 Cr), 
Tata Technologies (INR 3,043 Cr), and JSW Infrastructure (INR 
2,800 Cr), highlighting robust investor interest. Retail investor 
participation also surged, with the average number of applications 
rising to 13.2 lakh, compared to 5.6 lakh in FY23. Tata Technologies 
received the highest number of retail applications (52.11 lakh), 
followed by DOMS Industries (41.30 lakh) and INOX India (37.34 
lakh).

In FY24, Indian equities attracted substantial net inflows from both 
Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) and Domestic Institutional 
Investors (DIIs). FIIs contributed INR 2.1 lakh Cr, demonstrating 
strong foreign investor interest in India’s capital markets. 
Simultaneously, DIIs also recorded inflows of INR 2.1 lakh Cr, 
indicating robust domestic investor confidence in the market’s 
growth prospects. These inflows underscored the attractiveness 
of Indian equities amidst favourable economic conditions and a 
supportive regulatory framework, further enhancing market liquidity 
and depth.

India’s capital market sector continues to thrive, driven by a robust 
economy that fuels increased corporate activities such as mergers, 
acquisitions, and capital market transactions. The expansion of 
capital markets, including IPOs and bond issuances, presents 
significant opportunities for underwriting and advisory services. 
Rapid digitalization and financial inclusion initiatives are boosting 
retail investor participation, while regulatory reforms are enhancing 
transparency and investor confidence. Strategic alliances with 
global counterparts and innovative fintech solutions are further 
propelling growth in the Indian investment banking sector, making it 
increasingly adaptable to evolving market dynamics.

The Rise of Retail Investors

The year 2024 stands out as a transformative period for the Indian 
capital markets, marked by an unprecedented surge in retail investor 
participation. By March 2024, the total number of Demat accounts in 
India had surpassed 151 Mn, driven by a record-breaking addition 
of 36.9 Mn new accounts during the year—making it the best 
annual performance to date. The National Stock Exchange (NSE) 
also reported a remarkable 26.0% year-on-year growth in its unique 
investor base, reaching an impressive 92 Mn as of March 2024.

This surge in numbers signifies more than just impressive statistics; 
it reflects a significant shift in investment behaviour and wealth 
creation across India, with retail investors increasingly taking 
charge of their financial futures. A deeper look at the geographical 
distribution of NSE-registered investors reveals a growing 
participation from states beyond the traditional top five, which 
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accounted for 51.7% of the investor base in FY24, up from 47.2% 
in FY19.

Notably, states such as Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Bihar, and 
Assam contributed 16.8% of NSE’s investor base in FY24, with 
remarkable growth rates ranging from 4.5x to 11.1x over the FY19-
24 period, collectively adding 12 million investors. This broad-based 
participation from across the country is largely attributed to the rise 
of fintech platforms, which have democratized access to investment 
opportunities and empowered individuals nationwide to engage in 
wealth creation.

Democratization of Stock Trading - Stock trading has evolved 
beyond the confines of a select group of investors. Technology 
has ushered in a new era of inclusivity, enabling retail investors to 
actively participate in the market. With the widespread availability 
of smartphones, individuals now have unprecedented access to 
trading platforms, effectively democratizing the equity culture in 
India.

The Digital Investment Era - The surge in retail investors is largely 
driven by the proliferation of digital investment platforms. Today, 
investors can easily access a wide range of options, from traditional 
stocks to innovative avenues like Infrastructure Investment Trusts 
(InvITs), Sovereign Gold Bonds (SGBs), and Real Estate Investment 
Trusts (REITs). This diversification is reshaping the market 
landscape, catering to a broad spectrum of investor preferences 
and needs.

Generational Shift in Investing - The influx of Generation Z and 
Millennials is making a significant impact on the stock market. This 
younger generation, with a preference for innovative and credible 
investments, is injecting new energy into the traditional investment 
landscape. Their active participation highlights a growing appetite 
for financial literacy and a proactive approach to wealth creation.

DIY Investing Takes Centre Stage - The wealth of online resources 
has fuelled the rise of DIY (Do-It-Yourself) investing among tech-
savvy individuals. With access to vast amounts of information and 
sophisticated analytical tools, more investors are taking control of 
their financial futures. Seeking both independence and a deeper 
understanding of market dynamics, they are using online platforms 
to research, analyse, and execute investment decisions seamlessly.

Exploring Beyond Traditional Investments - As awareness grows 
among India’s middle class, more investors are venturing beyond 
traditional investment options. With the help of technology, they 
now have real-time access to markets and comprehensive trade 
execution capabilities. Digital platforms are empowering investors 
to confidently explore unconventional avenues, allowing them to 
diversify their portfolios and expand their investment horizons.

Reflecting on Market Dynamics - The FY24 market data highlights 
the vibrancy and scale of the Indian stock market. The NSE recorded 
a cash segment turnover of INR 201.0 Tn (+51.1% y-o-y) across 6.8 
Bn trades (+43.9% y-o-y), showcasing robust activity and strong 
investor participation. Additionally, market capitalization surged to 
INR 384.2 Tn, underscoring the substantial growth and dynamism 
of India’s financial marketplace. The rise of retail investors in India’s 
capital market underscores the transformative power of technology 
in democratizing investing. As the landscape continues to evolve, 
technology’s role in fostering inclusivity and addressing the evolving 
needs of a new generation of investors will be increasingly vital. 
With digital advancements paving the way for greater accessibility 
and innovation, the future of the Indian stock market promises to be 
even more dynamic and inclusive.

Regulatory Developments

In FY24, regulatory authorities took significant steps to enhance 
transparency, protect investor interests, and advance technological 
innovations in the industry. Key regulatory developments included:

•	 Bank Guarantees (BGs) Created from Client Funds: SEBI 
imposed restrictions on stock brokers, prohibiting the creation 
of Bank Guarantees using client funds, a move designed to 
prevent any potential misuse of client money.

•	 Risk Disclosure in Equity Futures & Options Trading: 
Stock brokers are now required to display risk disclosures 
related to trading in the Equity Futures & Options (F&O) 
segment each time a client logs in. This ensures that traders 
are well-informed before making decisions in the derivatives 
market.

•	 Upstreaming of Client Funds by Stock Brokers/Clearing 
Members to Clearing Corporations: To further safeguard 
client funds, SEBI mandated that brokers must upstream client 
funds to Clearing Corporations at the end of each day. These 
funds can only be upstreamed in the form of cash, a lien on 
fixed deposit receipts, or a pledge of units from Mutual Funds 
Overnight Schemes.

•	 Trading Supported by Blocked Amount in the Secondary 
Market: A new, optional process was introduced for secondary 
market trading where funds are blocked in the client’s bank 
account rather than being transferred upfront to the trading 
member. This measure enhances the protection of cash 
collateral and is currently available in the cash segment.

•	 Risk Management and Inter-Bank Dealings – Hedging 
of Foreign Exchange Risk: Following an RBI directive, 
from May 5, 2024, clients will no longer be permitted to take 
positions in the currency derivative market without a valid 
underlying exposure.

•	 Beta Version of T+0 Rolling Settlement Cycle: A beta 
version of the T+0 rolling settlement cycle was introduced on an 
optional basis for select securities, alongside the existing T+1 
cycle. This initiative aims to enhance cost and time efficiency, 
improve transparency, and strengthen risk management in 
India’s securities market.

ASSET AND PRIVATE WEALTH MANAGEMENT SEGMENT

India has witnessed a remarkable increase in household participation 
in equity markets, driven by greater financial awareness, expanded 
financial inclusion initiatives, improved banking access, and 
advancements in nonbank distribution technologies. This growth 
has been complemented by a rising preference for equity funds, 
spurred by enhanced investor engagement and education 
efforts. Systematic Investment Plans (SIPs) have gained traction, 
particularly among non-traditional investing households, further 
fuelling this trend.

In FY24, the mutual fund industry’s assets under management 
(AUM) soared to INR 53.4 lakh Cr, reflecting a robust 35% year-
over-year growth. The equity mutual fund segment (excluding 
arbitrage) accounted for INR 29.2 lakh Cr of the total AUM, marking 
a significant 51% year-over-year increase and contributing 55% 
to the overall AUM. Strong net inflows of INR 2.4 lakh Cr into 
the equity category underscored growing investor confidence, 
demonstrating a 46% year-over-year growth. SIP registrations also 
surged, reaching 4.2 Cr during the year, up from 2.5 Cr previously. 
March 2024 saw a record-high monthly SIP contribution of INR 
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19,271 Cr, with cumulative flows for FY24 totalling INR 1,99,219 Cr, 
surpassing the previous fiscal year.

In the private equity (PE) sector, FY24 concluded with India’s GDP 
growing by 8.2%, signalling economic resilience despite a decline 
in deal activity. The year witnessed over 1,500 transactions totalling 
USD 53 Bn, representing a 23% decrease in volume and a significant 
59% decrease in value from the previous year. Domestically, deal 
dominance persisted amid cautious investor sentiment and global 
funding constraints. While PE deal volumes declined, the average 
deal sizes increased compared to 2022. Investments amounted to 
USD 27 Bn across 1,045 deals, down from USD 36 Bn across 1,531 
deals in 2022. Key sectors included pharmaceuticals, biotechnology, 
and startups, with notable transactions such as Temasek Holding’s 
USD 2 Bn investment in Manipal Health. Bengaluru led in deal 
volume with 296 transactions, while Mumbai led in deal value, with 
the NCR and Bengaluru together accounting for 74% of total deal 
values.

India’s wealth management sector is on a strong growth trajectory, 
with the market projected to reach USD 539.90 Bn in AUM by 2024. 
The country saw a 6.1% annual increase in ultra-high-net-worth 
individuals (UHNWIs) in 2023, outpacing the global growth rate of 
4.2%, bringing the total to 626,619 individuals. India is expected to 
lead globally with a projected 50.1% growth in UHNWIs from 2023 
to 2028, driven by urbanization, regulatory reforms, technological 
advancements, and demographic shifts. The UHNWI segment, 
with average household financial assets exceeding USD 30 Mn, is 
anticipated to grow at an 8.5% CAGR from 2022 to 2027, while the 
HNI segment, with assets surpassing USD 1 Mn, is expected to grow 
at approximately 15% CAGR over the same period. As of FY23, 
India’s gross financial household savings stood at approximately 
INR 280 Tn, with bank deposits accounting for 42% of this amount.

Looking ahead, the asset and private wealth management sector 
presents significant opportunities. McKinsey estimates suggest 
that UHNI financial assets could double over the next five years. 
Currently, professionally managed wealth in India constitutes only 
15-20% of total wealth, indicating substantial growth potential as 
affluent individuals increasingly seek professional financial services 
and advice to optimize their wealth management strategies.

AN OVERVIEW OF KHANDWALA SECURITIES LIMITED

Khandwala Securities Limited’s equity shares are listed on Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). The 
way to understand the activities of the Company is to analyse the 
business it carries out. It may be noted that the Company is focused 
on financial services as its core business area. Various businesses 
in the Company are divided in four segments. These are: Investment 
banking business comprising Capital Raising, M&A Advisory, 
Domestic IPOs, Private Equity placements, Corporate finance 
advisory, Restructuring, FCCBs and GDRs; Institutional Equities 
business comprising institutional equity sales, execution, research; 
Broking and Distribution business comprising non-institutional 
equity sales, trading, research, broking and distribution,  depository  
participant ship;  Investment Advisory business comprising private 
and corporate wealth management, portfolio management.

Various operating businesses are carried out by having independent 
teams and regulatory licenses. Our Company wide clients include 
public and private sector corporations, multinational corporations, 
financial institutions, institutional investors -both domestic and 
global, high net-worth individuals and retail investors as well as 
market intermediaries.

Financial Highlights:

The salient features of the Company’s performance:-

Total Revenues of INR  870.09 Lakhs

Net Profit of INR 17.41 Lakhs

Earnings Per Share (EPS) of INR 0.11

Segment Highlights – FY24 over FY23 & FY22:

(INR In Lakhs)

Segment FY24  FY23 FY22
Brokerage 465.11 304.47 448.58

Corporate Advisory Services 352.06 317.92 148.06

Income from Capital Market 
Operations

34.53 4.06 13.20

Others 18.39 22.19 25.30

Total Income 870.09 648.63 635.14

The Brokerage services of your Company include equity and debt 
broking and are supported by a strong research platform.

Income received for brokerage services had accounted for 
approximately 53.46% of our total revenues at INR 870.09 Lakhs 
for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Private Client Broking business:

Our private client broking services are targeted at High Net worth 
Individuals (HNIs) who actively invest and trade in equity markets 
and seek priority service with Bloomberg research and advisory 
support. Our approach is to provide advisory-based brokerage 
services with a strong emphasis on research, and to offer our clients 
value-added services usually reserved for institutional clients.

KSL with its concentrated efforts in equity broking business, and 
as future strategy to build high volumes and revenues could 
successfully add a good number of Trading Accounts for various 
segments (Cash, Whole-sale Debt Market, Future & Option) during 
1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. 

Institutional Equities business:

Equity and derivatives brokerage business of the Company 
contributed 53.46% of the consolidated revenue during this financial 
year. The Company’s revenue of Rs. 870.09 lakhs for the year 
showed a increase of 34.14% over the previous year corresponding 
to a comparable increase in volume. However it is encouraging to 
note that we marginally increased our market share. The number of 
clients who traded and the number of transactions were also good.

The institutional equities business comprises institutional equity 
sales, sales- trading and research. We differentiate ourselves 
based on our cutting-edge research focus, which aids our execution 
capabilities across our sales and trading platforms. We provide 
equity and derivatives sales and trading services to a large and 
diversified base of institutional investors, including FIIs and 
domestic institutional investors. At present, we have more than 
over 10 institutional investors actively transacting with us on a 
continuous basis.

The category wise contribution from the Institutional Dealing Desk 
to our revenues has been mentioned in the table below which shows 
a decrease of 30.48% during the FY 2024 over previous FY 2023.
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Category
Brokerage 
Revenue 
during FY 

23-24

Brokerage 
Revenue 
during FY 

22-23

Brokerage 
Revenue 
during FY 

21-22
MF - - -
INS - 2,33,765.02 10,66,490
BANKS  3,06,248.62  1,75,185.15  5,39,113
CORP 
(Including FPI)

1,07,71,790.03  30,61,492.68  41,28,367

Total 1,10,78,038.65 34,70,442.85 57,33,970
Investment banking business:

The equity capital markets team focuses on structuring and 
executing diverse equity capital raising transactions in the public 
and private markets for our clients. Products in this segment include 
IPOs, follow-on offerings, rights offerings, private placement, ADR 
offerings, GDR offerings, QIP transactions and convertible offerings, 
etc. for both listed and unlisted entities.

As an Investment Banking firm, it has always been our endeavor 
to structure and put together transaction structures that build 
long term, sustainable value for both the borrower and lender of 
funds in the equity markets. This approach, though having proved 
its importance during the stages of market tightness, has been 
somewhat considered as a weakness by industry participants, 
resulting in us not being able to successfully convince Bloomberg 
on its benefits. This has led to situations wherein KSL has had to 
either withdraw from certain mandates or had to face resistance 
from Indian Corporates in awarding their fund raising mandates to 
us from the secondary markets. This is despite the management of 
these corporate houses acknowledging the deep knowledge and 
understanding of the micro and macro economy factors including 
the future growth prospects in specific industry, and the sustainable 
long term valuation parameters.

We always believe that in order for market to value and reward its 
participants, it is important for both the Promoter Groups and the 
Merchant Bankers to design appropriate and sustainable valuation 
models such that it remains consistent with the overall corporate 
performance and at the same point in time is able to ride both the 
good and the bad times.

Investment Baking and Advisory Group is putting their best 
endeavors on reviving some of the lost or delayed transactions, 
and are confident that in improved market sentiment same can be 
executed efficiently.

Portfolio Management Services:

The  Portfolio  Management  Segment  is  bound  to  grow  and  
offer  immense business potential for financial advisory services. 
The NRI community is the key market segment. Successful NRI 
business owners and professionals are of great interest to Portfolio 
management institutions. KSL has identified this rapidly growing 
segments’ need for specific products and services and has created 
practice models and advisory teams that specialize in servicing 
NRIs. Our service offerings include providing HNIs with investment 
advisory, planning and asset deployment advice, asset allocation 
and the distribution of a wide range of products. Our primary focus is 
on understanding each client’s financial profile, including tolerance 
for risk, capital growth expectations, and current financial position 
and income requirements in order to create comprehensive and 
tailored investment strategies. Our Portfolio Management services 
have increased our clients’ access to and use of our financial 
products and services

Your Company is confident of garnering much larger assets under 
management through the PMS division compared to last year and 
would be able to clearly demonstrate its core expertise to maximize 
the value under PMS, even during adverse market situation.

Market Research:

Our institutional equities business is supported by an experienced 
and dedicated team of analysts in fundamental, technical and 
alternative investment research. Our research initiatives are driven 
by committed professionals, management graduates, Chartered 
Accountants and Engineers having combined experience of several 
decades.

Besides conventional tools, including quantitative analytical 
techniques and models to identify short and medium-term 
investment opportunities; Our research team maintains an updated 
database on, and tracks regularly, various factors impacting 
economy, industry and companies. The trends are analyzed using 
data both on macro and micro level.

Various research products such as Market Today, Market Weekly, 
Market Technicals, India Strategy, Model Portfolio, Eco Update, 
In Sight, Company/Sector reports/updates and others are 
sent to esteemed clients on a regular basis. These reports are 
supplemented by day-to-day market information by way of market 
alerts and impact analysis. Strength of our research capability 
lies in our ability to identify emerging investment themes and spot 
winners ahead of time.

Our research reports, widely acknowledged by domestic and 
international print and electronic media, are rated among the 
leading domestic brokerage houses and have earned royalties from 
international data services providers in foreign exchange.

Our Intelligent Research Reports are accessible on globally 
acknowledged and marquee websites such as Bloomberg. net, 
thomsonreuters.com, 1call.com, moneycontrol.com, securities.
com, valuenotes.com, capitaliq.com.

Our research reports are highly recognized by international 
investor’s community including leading Foreign Institutional 
Investors, global central banks, multi- lateral development agencies 
and independent multi-strategy funds. Some of the research 
reports, apart from being widely acclaimed, have been ranked 
among the best by international financial information providers such 
as Thomson- Reuters and Bloomberg.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The following factors present specific opportunities across our 
businesses:

•	 Expected GDP growth coupled with reforms push by the 
government relating to project approvals, land acquisition, 
mining, and infrastructure will lead to huge investments by 
both the public and private sector companies. There will be 
large capital requirement to fund these investments which will 
present opportunities for investment banking and advisory 
business;

•	 Fall in global commodity prices will reinvigorate private 
consumption demand and lead to capacity expansion by the 
industry;

•	 Corporates are looking at expanding in domestic as well as 
overseas markets through mergers & acquisitions which offer 
opportunities for the corporate advisory business.
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•	 Growing mid-size segment of corporates where the need 
for customized solutions is particularly high will present 
opportunities for our advisory businesses;

•	 With  increase  in  the  income  levels,  change  in  attitude  from  
wealth protection to wealth creation and risk taking abilities of 
the youth, there is also a huge market opportunity for wealth 
management service providers.

•	 Improved sentiments in the secondary markets will also 
enhance the participation of investors across segments 
thereby helping the prospects of equity brokerage business. 
We expect economic activity to pick up from grass root 
levels presenting opportunities in both lending and asset 
reconstruction business.

	 Despite the above opportunities, our performance could be 
affected by following perceived threats to our businesses:

•	 Impact of abnormal monsoon, rising fiscal deficit, sustained 
high interest rates and high inflation;

•	 Geopolitical tensions across the globe;

•	 Regulatory changes impacting the landscape of business;

•	 Increased intensity of competition from players across the 
segment/ industry;

•	 Attrition of employees caused by strong demand from ever 
increasing number of market participants;

•	 Continuous downward pressure on the fees, commissions and 
brokerages caused by heightened competition and willingness 
of most players to deliver services at very low fees;

•	 Entry  of  corporate  heavy  weights  and  global  players  in  
the  lending business. Given their capital strength as well as 
access to cheaper source of capital will increase pressure on 
us to remain competitive and impact margins.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Our research reports are highly recognized by international 
investor’s community including leading foreign institutional 
investors, global central banks, multi- lateral development agencies 
and independent multi-strategy funds. Some of the research 
reports, apart from being widely acclaimed, have been ranked 
among the best by international financial information providers such 
as Thomson- Reuters and Bloomberg.

We maintain adequate internal control systems commensurate 
with the nature of business, size and complexity of its operations. 
We have well-established processes, guidelines and procedures 
to augment the internal controls. This, coupled with adequate 
internal information systems ensures proper information flow for the 
decision-making process. Adherence to these processes is ensured 
through frequent internal audits. The internal control system is 
designed to ensure maintenance of proper accounting controls, 
monitoring of operations, protection and conservation of assets and 
compliances with applicable laws and regulations.

These controls ensure that financial and other records are reliable for 
preparing financial statements and other information. An extensive 
programme of internal audit  is  conducted  by  an  independent  
firm  and  reviewed  by  the  Audit Committee. Internal audit also 
evaluates and suggests improvement in effectiveness of risk   
management, control and governance process. All our operating 
subsidiaries are subject to internal audits to assess and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance process. 

These procedures ensure that all transactions are properly reported 
and classified in the financial records.

The Audit Committee of Board provides necessary oversight and 
directions to the internal  audit  function  and  periodically  review  
the  findings  and  ensures corrective measures are taken keeping 
in mind the organization’s requirements, growth prospects and ever 
evolving business environment. This system enables us to capture 
a precise reflection of the organization’s position at all times and 
also facilitates timely detection and plugging of anomalies by 
various business groups. We also address any issues identified by 
regulatory inspection teams very diligently and report the same to 
the Board of Directors and the regulators.

RISK CONCERNS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Function is overseen by the Audit Committee. 
Risk Management Policies are designed after discussion with 
various constituents and experts. In a business where prices and 
realities change every instant, it is imperative for KSL to operate 
within a broadly de-risked business model that protects stakeholder 
interests on the one hand and facilitates growth on the other.

Therefore, the concept of real-time risk mitigation management is 
integrated within the Company’s existing business strategy. It is 
integrated into the Company’s strategic and operational decision 
making process; it is ingrained in the organizational mindset; it 
pervades all organizational tiers, roles and functions.

KSL’s effective risk management is guided by an understanding of 
the various parameters that can have a bearing on its business and 
profitability:

•	 External: These comprise risks that the Company faces but 
cannot control – industry slowdown, competition, regulatory 
changes, brand perception etc.

•	 Internal: These comprise risks that the Company can directly 
control through prudent strategy – costs, liquidity, technology, 
operations, people etc.

KSL controls client risk through a prudent categorization of clients 
as per their financial depth. This helps circumscribe their trading 
limits, leading to effective risk management. KSL monitors a 
client’s trading pattern in addition to keeping a continuous vigil on 
positions, balances and margins. This provides an understanding of 
a client’s trading pattern in terms of nature of transactions, trading, 
investments, F&O types of scrips, etc. to detect any undesirable or 
prohibited practices. Based on this, remedial actions are initiated 
whenever required. This ensures strict regulatory compliance.

Industry Risk

KSL is primarily engaged in the business of financial services. Any 
slowdown in the country’s economy or financial sector as well as 
any changes in interest rates, political climate or regulatory changes 
could affect the Company’s prospects. Further the capital market is 
always exposed to the cyclical risk of upswing and downturns, which 
in turn depend on the overall economical growth of the country.

Management Perception

KSL’s presence in multiple product segments also serves as a natural 
hedge against a downturn in any particular sector. For instance, 
the Company’s presence in the relatively volatile equity segment is 
balanced by its presence in the relatively stable insurance, mutual 
funds and fixed interest- bearing debt instruments. Your Company 
has broadly three major revenue generation department viz. Broking 
division, Corporate Advisory Division and Capital Market Operation. 
The total revenue generated by the company during the year shows 
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the overall performance of all the departments jointly and doesn’t 
depend on any single segment of revenue.

Liquidity Risk

In the event of clients not honoring their financial commitments 
following an unexpected market movement, the Company’s cash 
flow could be significantly affected.

KSL has exercised prudence in client selection and credit extension. 
For instance, the Company’s internal audit team ascertains client 
credentials before they are permitted to trade.

Management Perception

As a corporate policy, it is endeavor to constantly monitor the margin 
payments and settlements of our customers on a continuous basis. 
Our ability to understand the financial track record of each of our 
customers provides us with a judgment and direction on the margin 
calls to be issued as also calling for pre- payments if need be in 
cases of exigencies. This approach we believe gives the Company 
the required flexibility in managing the liquidity risk across multiple 
categories and types of customer profiles. This assumes that at KSL 
we follow an independent and customer centric risk management 
exercise thereby ensuring timely interventions to significantly 
reduce potential liquidity risks.

Economic Risk

A  slowdown  in  economic  growth  in  India  could  cause  the  business  
of  the Company to suffer. While the Indian economy has shown 
sustained growth over the last several years, the growth in industrial 
production has been variable. Any slowdown in the Indian economy, 
and in particular in the demand for housing and infrastructure, could 
adversely affect the Company’s business. Similarly, any sustained 
volatility in global commodity prices, including a significant increase 
in the prices of oil and petroleum products, could once again spark 
off a new inflationary cycle, thereby curtailing the purchasing power 
of the consumers.

Management Perception

The Company manages these risks by maintaining a conservative 
financial profile and following prudent business and risk 
management practices.

Human Resource Risk

Human Resources represent the company’s principal asset in a 
knowledge-led business, where any attrition or skill obsolescence 
could lead to a weaker industry position.

Management Perception

Your Company has consciously made the transition from a 
family based organization into a professionally managed one, 
accompanied by delegation of responsibilities for intellectual 
growth. Over the years, your company has invested in the human 
resource by providing timely training, various seminars on personal 
development etc. The free work environment provided by the 
Company has also resulted in to low attrition of manpower.

Client Risk

In the financial industry the company depends on a few bigger 
corporate and institutional clients from where majority of the 
revenue is generated.

Regulatory Risk

The Company’s presence in a variety of financial segments 
warrants an ongoing compliance with the evolving requirements of 
their various regulators. Any violation or transgression could invite 
censure, affecting the Company’s brand.

Management Perception

Your Company enjoys strong long term relationship with its clients. 
However, as a good Risk Management practice, the company has 
never relied upon particular client base and hence not exposed 
to such risk. During the year under review company has added 
new institutional client from where regular business is generated. 
It is your company’s constant endeavor to search for new area of 
business and clients.

KSL takes its compliance commitment seriously, recognizing that 
the business must not only serve the interest of the customer but 
also function well within the established guidelines of the various 
regulatory authorities for responsible and profitable growth. At KSL, 
the compliance discipline extends across the entire transaction 
cycle, client identification, KYC process transaction execution, 
transaction settlement involving securities and funds transfer. 
The compliance requirements across the various service points 
have been communicated comprehensively to branch through 
compliance manuals, leading to uniformity, quality, priority and 
discipline

Human Resources

Your company considers its human resource as the most valuable 
asset and, recognizing this, devotes a considerable development of 
its employees in various traits, apart from job related skills:

•	 Employee satisfaction survey was carried out along with 
various seminars by the HR department of the Company to 
understand the employees and help them to perform in the 
most efficient manner. Feedbacks were received during such 
sessions and corrective actions have been initiated;

•	 Communication meeting is being organized once in a quarter 
to apprise all the employees on the major development on 
various fronts such as market, deals stroked etc;

•	 Your company had recruited Management Trainees during 
the year and they were given specific job assignments in 
the research department. This has helped your company to 
establish goodwill with local management schools and prepare 
future prospects for employment.
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Corporate Governance provides the structure through which 
corporations set and pursue their objectives, while reflecting the 
context of the social, regulatory and market environment. Corporate 
Governance is a mechanism for monitoring the actions, policies 
and decisions of corporations. It involves the alignment of interests 
among the stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of your company takes the responsibility for 
maintaining sound principle of Corporate Governance. As a part of 
it, we have laid a foundation for good corporate governance that 
helps to maintain transparency and encourage timely disclosures, 
encompassing good corporate practices, procedures, standards 
and implicit rules in the working of the Company. It has always been 
an integral part of your Company’s philosophy. 

The Company has complied with all the regulations in relation to 
corporate governance stipulated in the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

	 The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance 
envisages the attainment of the highest levels of transparency 
and accountability in all aspects of its operations, interactions 
with shareholders, employees, government departments, 
SEBI, Stock Exchanges and other regulatory authorities.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(i)	 Composition and Category of the Board

	 The Composition of the Board is in conformity with Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the Listing 
Regulations. The Company has an optimum combination of 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors.  As on 31st March, 
2024, the Board comprises of six Directors out of which four 
are non-executive Directors and two are executive directors. 
Out of the four non-executive Directors, two are Independent 
Directors. The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive & 
Independent Director. The Management of the Company is 
headed by Mr. Paresh Khandwala, Managing Director and Mr. 
Pranav Khandwala, Whole-time Director, who operates under 
the supervision and control of the Board. 

	 All the Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board 
that they meet the criteria for Independence in terms of the 
definition of ‘Independent Director’ stipulated under Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. These confirmations have been placed 
before the Board. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent 
Director fulfills the conditions specified in the Listing 
Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 and are independent of 
the Management.

	 The following table gives details for the financial year 2023-
24 of directorships, category and number of memberships of 
board / committees of various other public companies: 

Name & DIN No. of the 
Directors

Category of 
Directorship

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
Companies

(excl. 
Khandwala 
Securities 
Limited)*

No. of Committee 
Positions held in  
other Companies 
(excl. Khandwala 

Securities Limited)**

Member Chairman

Mr. Homiar N. Vakil
(DIN: 05210178)

Chairman, 
Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

- - -

Mr. Paresh J. Khandwala
(DIN: 00112678)

Managing Director, 
Promoter 

1 - -

Mr. Pranav  Khandwala  
(DIN: 00519113)

Whole-time Director 
& Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) 

1 - -

Mrs. Bhagyashree 
Khandwala
(DIN: 02335473)

Non-Executive 
Director

1 - -

Mr. Pratik Khandwala
(DIN: 00519147)

Non-Executive 
Director

- - -

Mr. Kalpen Shukla ($1)

(DIN: 00117482)
Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri ($2) 
(DIN:- 05242397)

Non-Executive, 
Independent Director 

- - -

	 *	 Only directorship in public limited companies incorporated 
in India have been considered.

	 **	Only audit committee and stakeholders’ relationship 
committee in other public limited companies have been 
considered for the committee positions.

	 $1	 Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 
January 31, 2024.

	 $2	 Resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f January 31, 
2024.

Pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board has, subject to the 
approval of the Members, appointed Mr. Kalpen Shukla (DIN: 
00117482) as an Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company for a term of 5 years with effect from January 31, 
2024. The Members of the Company vide the Postal Ballot 
process completed on April 6, 2024, approved his appointment 
and e-voting results of the postal ballot was announced on 
April 8, 2024.

None of the Directors on the Board is a members of more than 
10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees, 
across all the public limited companies in which they hold 
the Directorship. All the Directors have made necessary 
disclosures regarding other directorship and committee 
positions held by them in other Companies. Further, none of 
the Directors hold Directorship in more than 10 Public Limited 
Companies and none of the Independent Directors served as 
Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies. 

(ii)	 Board Meetings and Attendance

(a)	 The Board meets at regular intervals of time to discuss 
and decide business strategies, company’s policies, future 
goals and review financial results, business operations and 
overall performance of the Company. The Board also, inter 
alia, considers and reviews annual operating and capital 
expenditure budgets, investments and exposure limits, minutes 
of the meeting of audit committee and other committees of the 
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board, periodically compliance reports of all laws applicable to 
the Company, etc. The notice and agenda for the meetings of 
the Board and its Committees, together with the appropriate 
supporting documents are sent well in advance separately 
to each director. However, in case of a special and urgent 
business need, the Board’s approval is taken by passing 
resolution(s) by circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted 
in the subsequent Board Meeting. There were no material, 
financial and commercial transactions entered into between 
the senior management and the Company which could have 
potential conflict of interests with the Company at large.

(b)	 During the financial year 2023-24, information as mentioned in 
Part A of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been 
placed before the Board for its consideration.

(c)	 Except for Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala, Mr. Pranav 
Khandwala, Mr. Pratik Khandwala and Mr. Paresh Khandwala, 
none of the other directors are related to each other. 

(d)	 During the financial year 2023-2024, 6 (six) Board Meetings 
were held on 30th May 2023, 14th August 2023, 13th November 
2023, 31st January 2024, 14th February 2024 and 22nd February 
2024. The gap between two meetings did not exceed four 
months. The details of attendance of directors in the Board 
meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 and at the last 
Annual General meeting are given below:

Name of the Directors No. of Board 
Meetings during 
the financial year 

2023-2024

Attendance at 
the last Annual 

General Meeting 
held on September 

29, 2023Held attended

Mr. Paresh J. Khandwala 6 6 Present
Mr. Pranav Khandwala 6 6 Present
Mr. Homiar N. Vakil 6 6 Present
Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 6 6 Present
Mr. Pratik Khandwala 6 5 Present
Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri 
(till January 31, 2024)

4 3 Present

Mr. Kalpen Shukla 
(from January 31, 2024)

2 1 NA

(iii)	  Shares held by Non-Executive Directors
Sr. 
No

Name of the Directors No. of equity shares held as 
on March 31, 2024

1 Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 50,180
2 Mr. Kalpen Shukla Nil
3 Mr. Homiar N. Vakil Nil
4 Mr. Pratik Khandwala 7,96,555

(iv)	 Board Skills/expertise/competence matrix

	 The Directors of the Company possesses the following skills / 
expertise / competences:-

• 	 Legal, Accounting, Finance, Compliance, Market Research, 
Consultancy, Marketing, Human Resources, Expertise 
in various businesses like Broking & Distribution, Wealth 
Management, Private Equity, Institutional Equities, Investment 
Banking, Asset Management.

(v)	 Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

	 The Company has conducted the familiarisation programmes 
for Independent Directors during the Financial Year 2023-24. 
The Programmes aims to provide insights into the Company to 
enable the Independent Directors to understand its business in 
depth, to familiarise them with the functioning, operations and 
business of the Company and to assist them in performing their 
role as Independent Directors of the Company. The Company’s 
Policy of conducting the familiarisation programmes along with 
the details of the programmes imparted to the Independent 
Directors has been disclosed on the website of the Company 
at http://www.kslindia.com/Static/KSLPolicies.aspx.

(vi)	 Independent Directors Meeting

	 Pursuant to the provision of Section 149(8) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV and Regulation 25(3) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the meeting of the Independent Directors 
of the Company was held on March 27, 2024. 

3.	 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

	 With a view to have more focused attention on the business 
and for better corporate governance and accountability and to 
ensure effective compliances of all the statutory requirements, 
the Board has constituted various committees. The details 
of composition, role, functions and responsibility of each 
Committee are as follows: 

I.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

a)	 Composition:

	 The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with 
the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations. During the year under 
review, the audit committee was re-constituted. As on 31st 
March, 2024, the Audit Committee comprises of following 3 
(three) Directors as Members:

Sr. 
No

Name of Members Designation Category

1 Mr. Homiar N. Vakil Chairman Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 Mr. Kalpen Shukla Member Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

3 Mrs. Bhagyashree 
Khandwala

Member Non-Executive 
Director

	 The Members of the Audit Committee are financially literate 
and have requisite experience in financial management. 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee is in line with the 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations. 

b)	 Terms of Reference:

	 The brief terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

(1)	 oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and 
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2)	 recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of 
appointment of auditors of the Company;

(3)	 approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services 
rendered by the statutory auditors;
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(4)	 reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to 
the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a.	 matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility 
statement to be included in the board’s report in terms of 
clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013;

b.	 changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same;

c.	 major accounting entries involving estimates based on the 
exercise of judgment by management;

d.	 significant adjustments made in the financial statements 
arising out of audit findings;

e.	 compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to 
financial statements;

f.	 disclosure of any related party transactions;

g.	 modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5)	 reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval;

(6)	 reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / 
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized 
for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the 
board to take up steps in this matter;

(7)	 reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

(8)	 approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the 
listed entity with related parties;

(9)	 scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(10)	 valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever 
it is necessary;

(11)	 evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management 
systems;

(12)	 reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and 
internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

(13)	 reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, 
including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting 
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(14)	 discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and 
follow up there on;

(15)	 reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the 
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 
nature and reporting the matter to the board;

(16)	  discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, 
about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(17)	  to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment 
to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(18)	 to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

(19)	 approval of appointment of chief financial officer after 
assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. 
of the candidate;

c)	 Meetings and Attendance:

	 During the financial year 2023-24, 4 (four) meetings of the 
Committee were held on 30th May 2023, 14th August 2023, 13th 
November 2023 and 14th February 2024. The gap between 
two meetings did not exceed four months. The details of 
attendance of members in the Audit Committee Meeting held 
during the financial year 2023-2024 are given below:

Name of Members No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Homiar N. Vakil 4 4
Mr. Kalpen Shukla* 1 1
Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 4 4
Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri ** 3 3

	 *  Appointed as Member w.e.f January 31, 2024.

	 ** Resigned as an Independent Director from the Board w.e.f 
January 31, 2024 and accordingly ceased to be a member.

	 The Managing Director, Auditors, Internal Auditors and Chief 
Financial Officer are invited to attend the meeting of the 
Committee. The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit 
Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to 
the Committee.

	 Mr. Homiar N. Vakil, the chairman of the Audit Committee was 
present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on September 29, 2023. 

II.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

a)	 Composition:

	 The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
of the Company is in compliance with the provisions of Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing 
Regulations. During the year under review, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee was re-constituted. As on 31st 
March, 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
comprises of following 3 (three) Directors as Members:

Sr. 
No

Name of Members Designation Category

1 Mr. Kalpen Shukla Chairman Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 Mr. Homiar N. Vakil Member Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

3 Mrs. Bhagyashree 
Khandwala

Member Non-Executive 
Director
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b)	 Terms of Reference:

	 The brief terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee are as follows:

(1)	 To form criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to 
the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of 
the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

(2)	 To form criteria for evaluation of performance of independent 
directors and the board;

(3)	 To devise policy on diversity of board of directors;

(4)	 To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and 
who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of 
directors their appointment and removal.

(5)	 To extend or continue the term of appointment of the 
independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors.

(6)	 To carry out performance evaluation of all directors.

c)	 Meeting and Attendance:

	 During the financial year 2023-24, 3 (three) meetings of the 
Committee were held on 30th May, 2023, 31st January 2024 
and February 14, 2024. The details of attendance of members 
in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held 
during the financial year 2023-2024 are given below:

Name of Members No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Homiar N. Vakil 3 3
Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 3 3
Mr. Kalpen Shukla* 1 1
Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri ** 2 1

	 * Appointed as Member w.e.f January 31, 2024.

	 **Resigned as an Independent Director from the Board w.e.f 
January 31, 2024 and accordingly ceased to be a member.

	 Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the Company has framed 
a Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and 
it has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.
kslindia.com.

	 BOARD EVALUATION

	 In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with rules issued there under and the Listing Regulations, the 
Board of Directors on recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee have evaluated the effectiveness 
of the Board. The Board had also carried out an annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors 
individually as well as the working of its various committees 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The evaluation 
of the Directors was based on various aspects which, inter 
alia, included the level of participation in the Board Meetings, 
understanding of their roles and responsibilities, business of 
the Company along with the environment and effectiveness of 
their contribution.

III.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a)	 Composition

	 The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Listing Regulations. As on 
March 31, 2024, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
comprised of the following 3 (three) Directors as members:

Sr. 
No

Name of Members Designation Category

1 Mr. Homiar N. Vakil Chairman Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

2 Mr. Kalpen Shukla Member Non-Executive, 
Independent 
Director

3 Mr. Paresh 
Khandwala

Member Managing 
Director

b)	 Terms of Reference:

	 The terms of reference of the Committee are to deal with 
matters relating to transfer/transmission of shares and 
monitors redressal of complaints from shareholders relating 
to transfers, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of 
dividend, etc. with a view to expediting the process of share 
transfers, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Secretary 
is authorized to approve transfers/transmission of shares. 

c)	 Meeting and Attendance:

	 During the financial year 2023-24, 2 (two) meeting of the 
Committee was held on May 30, 2023 and 14th February 2024. 
The details of attendance of members in the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee Meeting held during the financial year 
2023-2024 are given below:

 Name of Members No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Paresh Khandwala 2 2
Mr. Homiar N. Vakil 2 2
Mr. Kalpen Shukla* 1 -
Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri ** 1 1

	 *Appointed as Member w.e.f January 31, 2024.

	 **Resigned as an Independent Director from the Board w.e.f 
January 31, 2024 and accordingly ceased to be a member.

	 The Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance 
Officer. 

	 The details of the complaints received and resolved during the 
financial year 2023-2024 are as follows:-

Opening as on April 1, 2023 Nil
Received during the year Nil
Resolved during the year Nil
Closing as on March 31, 2024 Nil
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	 Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace

	 The Company has adopted a ‘Policy against Sexual 
Harassment’ as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 (“Sexual Harassment Act”) and an Internal Complaints 
Committee has also been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. As per the policy, any women 
employee may report her complaint to the Committee. We 
affirm that adequate access was provided to any complainant 
who wish to register a complaint under the policy. 

	 During the financial year 2023-24, there was no complaint 
received by the Company.

4.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

a)	 Remuneration to Executive Directors

	 The details of remuneration paid to the Managing Director and 
Whole-time Director during the financial year ended March 31, 
2024 are as under: 

Name & Designation 
of Directors

Salary 
(In Rs.)

Commission
(In Rs.)

Perquisites
and 

Allowance
(In Rs.)

Total
(In Rs.)

Tenure of 
Appointment

Mr. Paresh J. 
Khandwala
(Managing Director)

27,90,000 Nil 3,35,000 31,25,000 January 1, 2023 
to December 31, 

2027
Mr. Pranav Khandwala
(Whole-time Director 
& CFO)

16,15,000 Nil 1,85,000 18,00,000 February 11, 
2020 to February 

10,2025

	 Note: There is no Scheme of “Employee Stock Options” during 
the financial year 2023-24.

b)	 Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors

	 The Non-Executive / Independent Directors are paid 
remuneration by way of sitting fees only for attending the 
Board Meeting and they are within the limits prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013. The non-executive directors have 
no material pecuniary relationships or transactions with the 
Company in their personal capacity. 

	 The details of remuneration paid to non-executive directors 
during the financial year 2023-2024 are as under:

Names of Directors Sitting Fees
(in Rs.)

Mr. Homiar N. Vakil 25,000
Mr. Pratik Khandwala 20,000
Mrs. Bhagyashree Khandwala 25,000
Mr. Shyam M. Seshadri 20,000
Mr. Kalpen Shukla 5,000

Total 95,000
5.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

	 Annual General Meetings

	 Details of last three Annual General Meetings and One Extra 
Ordinary General Meeting of the Company are given below:

Financial Year 
& Name of 
Meeting

Day, Date 
and Time

   Venue Special Resolutions passed 
and approved

2022-23

30th Annual 
General 
Meeting

Friday, 
September 
29, 2023 at 
12.00 noon

Video Conferencing 
(‘VC’)/ Other Audio 
Visual Means (‘OAVM’) 
at Vikas Building, 
Ground Floor, Green 
Street, Fort, Mumbai – 
400023 (deemed venue) 

	 Alteration of the 
Object Clause of 
the Memorandum of 
Association of the 
Company;

	 Increase in Borrowings 
Limits under Section 
180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013; 

	 Creation of Charges, 
Mortgages, Hypothecation 
on the Assets/Properties 
of the Company under 
Section 180(1)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013;  

	 Authorization for giving 
loan(s), providing 
Guarantee(s), securities 
or to make Investment(s) 
pursuant to Section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013

2021-22

29th Annual 
General 
Meeting

Wednesday, 
September 
28, 2022 at 
12.00 noon

Video Conferencing 
(‘VC’)/ Other Audio 
Visual Means (‘OAVM’) 
at Vikas Building, 
Ground Floor, Green 
Street, Fort, Mumbai – 
400023 (deemed venue) 

	 Re-appointment of Mr. 
Paresh Khandwala as 
Managing Director of the 
Company

2021-22

Extra-Ordinary 
General 
Meeting

Thursday, 
June 2, 2022 
at 12.00 
noon

Video Conferencing 
(‘VC’)/ Other Audio 
Visual Means (‘OAVM’) 
at Vikas Building, 
Ground Floor, Green 
Street, Fort, Mumbai – 
400023 (deemed venue)

	 Issue of Equity Shares on 
Preferential Basis

2020-21

28th Annual 
General 
Meeting

Thursday, 
September 
30, 2021 at 
12 noon

Video Conferencing 
(‘VC’)/ Other Audio 
Visual Means (‘OAVM’) 
at Vikas Building, 
Ground Floor, Green 
Street, Fort, Mumbai – 
400023 (deemed venue) 

	 Continuation of 
Directorship of Mr. 
Rohitasava Chand as 
Independent Director 
of the Company in term 
of Reg. 17(1A) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

6.	 POSTAL BALLOT 

	 Details of resolutions passed through postal ballot during FY 
2023-24:

	 The Company sought the approval of its shareholders on 
following matters through a Special Resolution by postal 
ballot by utilizing a remote e-voting process only. The notice 
of this postal ballot, dated February 22, 2024, was circulated 
on March 6, 2024. Remote e-voting began on March 8, 2024, 
and concluded on April 6, 2024. On the final day of remote 
e-voting, i.e. April 6, 2024, the resolutions were passed with the 
necessary majority, and the outcomes were declared on April 
8, 2024. Please see the information below for a description of 
the resolutions and details on the voting pattern.
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Description of Resolution and Type of 
resolution

Number of Votes

For % Against %
Special Resolution
Appointment of Mr. Kalpen Shukla 
(DIN:00117482) as an Independent 
Director of the Company for a  term of 5 
years with effect from January 31, 2024  

9589897 81.90 2119510 18.10

Special Resolution
Approval for the Sale/Transfer/Disposal 
of the Immovable Property of the 
Company located at C-8/9, Dr. Herekar 
Park, Next to Kamala Nehru Park, off. 
Bhandarkar Road, Pune - 411004

9589892 81.80 2119515 18.10

Procedure for the postal ballot: 

The aforementioned Postal Ballot was conducted solely through the 
remote e-voting process in accordance with provisions of Sections 
108 and 110, as well as other applicable provisions of the Act and 
its corresponding Rules. Mr. Bhuwnesh Bansal, Proprietor of M/s. 
Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary 
(Membership No. FCS 6526 & COP No. 9089), was appointed 
as Scrutinizer, for conducting the above Postal Ballot through the 
Remote E-Voting process fairly and transparently and following the 
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder. 

7.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES:

(a)	 Related Party Transaction

	 The Company did not have any material significant related 
party transactions having a potential conflict with the interest 
of the Company at large. All the transactions entered into with 
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on 
arms length basis. The transactions entered with the related 
parties are disclosed in the notes to accounts. 

(b)	 Compliance Status

	 There has neither been any non-compliance of any legal 
provision of applicable law, nor any penalty, stricture imposed 
by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory 
authorities, on any matter related to capital market during the 
last three years.

(c)	 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

	 The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower Policy for employees and directors to report genuine 
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud 
or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The said policy 
has been post on the website of the Company at www.kslindia.
com. None of the directors/employee has been denied access 
to the audit committee.

(d)	 Mandatory Requirements 

	 The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of Listing Regulations.  

(e)	 Discretionary Requirements

	 The Company has fulfilled following discretionary requirements 
as prescribed in Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule 
II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015:

	 The Company has separate persons to the post of Chairman 
and Managing Director.

	 For the Financial Year 2023-24, the Statutory Auditor has 
issued qualified opinion in his Independent Auditors’ Report. 
In regard to the qualified opinion, the Board has furnished 
required details/explanation in its Note Nos. 28 and 29 of 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements and Note Nos. 
30 and 31 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
respectively.

	 The Internal auditor of the Company report directly to the Audit 
Committee of the Board. 

(f)	 Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries

	 The policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ is not 
applicable as the Company do not have any subsidiary.

(g)	 Policy on dealing with related party transactions

	 The policy on dealing with related party transactions is 
disclosed on the website of the Company at www.kslindia.
com. 

(h)	 CEO / CFO Certification

	 As required under Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the 
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
have certified to the Board regarding the Financial Statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.  

(i)	 Disclosure of Accounting treatment in preparation of 
Financial Statements

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable 
and other accounting principle generally accepted in India.  

(j)	 Code of Conduct

	 The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior 
Management Personnel has been disclosed on the website 
of the company at www.kslindia.com. The declaration by the 
Managing Director stating that all the Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance 
with the laid down code of conduct for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024 is annexed to this Report. 

(k)	 Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

	 The Company has adopted a code of practice and procedure 
for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 
for prevention of Insider Trading for its directors and designated 
employees in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015. The said code is also disclosed 
on the website of the Company at www.kslindia.com

(l)	 Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance

	 The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance 
requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing 
Regulations. 

	 As per Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the certificate 
issued by M/s. Aniket Kulkarni & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance is annexed to this Report. 
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(m)	 Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

	 A certificate has been received from Bhuwnesh Bansal & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors 
of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

(n)	 Payment to Statutory Auditor 

	 The total fees paid to M/s. Aniket Kulkarni & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors by the Company on 
consolidated basis is Rs. 2,50,000/- for the F.Y. 2023-24.

(o)	 Management Discussion and Analysis

	 The Management Discussion and Analysis forms a part of this 
Annual Report. 

8.	  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

	 In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, 
the Company regularly intimates quarterly, half yearly and 
annual financial results of the Company to the stock exchanges 
immediately after they are taken on record by the Board. These 
financial results are normally published in Free Press Journal 
(English) and Navshakti (Marathi) newspapers. The quarterly, 
half yearly and annual financial results and other official 
news are displayed on the website of the Company at. www.
kslindia.com. During the year, the Company has not made any 
presentations to the Institutional Investors or analysts. 

9.	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a)	 Date and Venue of the 31st Annual General Meeting

	 The 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled 
to be held through Video-Conference (VC)/Other Audio-Visuals 
Means (OAVM) at the Registered Office of the Company on 
Friday,  September 27, 2024 at 12.00 noon IST. 

b)	 Financial Year of the Company

	 The financial year covers the period from April 1, 2023 to 
March 31, 2024.

c)	 Dates of Book Closure

	 September 20, 2024 to September 26, 2024 (both days 
inclusive)

d)	 Dividend

	 The Board of Director do not recommend equity dividend for 
the financial year under review. 

e)	 Listing of Equity Shares

	 The Company’s equity shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). 

	 Stock Code

	 BSE Limited (BSE) :	 531892

	 National Stock Exchange  
of India Limited (NSE) :	 KHANDSE

	 ISIN No for NSDL/CDSL : INE060B01014

	 The Annual Listing Fees for financial year 2024-2025 has been 
paid by the Company to BSE and NSE. 

f)	 Custodial Fees to Depositories

	 The Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the financial year 2024-
2025 has been paid by the Company to National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
Limited (CDSL). 

g)	 Stock performance

	 Market Price Data

	 Monthly High, Low and Close Price of Equity Shares of the 
Company during the financial year 2023-24 at BSE Limited 
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited:- 

  Month BSE NSE 
High

(In Rs.)
Low

(In Rs.)
Close

(In Rs.)
High

(In Rs.)
Low

(In Rs.)
Close

(In Rs.)
April 2023 30.42 22.25 24.68 29.85 22.70 24.05
May 2023 41.00 22.01 37.53 40.85 23.30 37.70
June 2023 39.40 29.01 30.65 39.50 28.70 29.70
July 2023 30.69 25.60 28.35 30.35 26.05 27.65
August 2023 28.75 25.94 27.12 29.35 25.25 27.15
September 
2023

27.70 24.57 25.50 28.00 24.40 25.00

October 2023 26.75 23.20 24.09 27.10 22.35 23.70
November 
2023

25.10 22.27 24.00 24.90 22.60 23.95

December 
2023

29.00 22.75 25.62 28.95 22.45 25.65

January 2024 31.80 25.35 29.05 32.40 25.50 29.40
February 2024 35.99 27.70 33.26 35.90 27.90 33.40
March 2024 33.69 26.33 30.20 34.15 26.60 29.35

	 Source:-  BSE and NSE website

	 Performance of the KSL Share Price in comparison with 
BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty
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h)	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

	 KFin Technologies Limited  
Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,  
Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana 
Tel :-  91-40-6716 2222 
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com 
Website: www.kfintech.com

i)	  Share Transfer System

	 Trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted only in 
dematerialized form. Shares sent for transfer in physical form 
are registered and returned within a period of one month from 
the date of receipt of the documents, provided the documents 
are valid and complete in all respects. With a view to expediting 
the process of share transfers, the Chairman and Secretary 
are authorised to approve transfers/transmission of shares 
below 5000 in numbers. The Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee meets as and when required to consider the other 
transfer proposals and attend to shareholder grievances.

j)	 Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2024

Number of 
Shares 

Number of 
Shareholders 

% of 
Shareholders

Number 
of Shares 

held

% of 
Shares 

held
From To

1 1000 3122 88.14 514884 3.38
1001 2000 149 4.21 245011 1.61
2001 3000 58 1.64 148493 0.97
3001 4000 40 1.13 143973 0.94
4001 5000 31 0.88 146571 0.96
5001 10000 56 1.58 414687 2.72

10001 20000 19 0.54 262946 1.72
20001 Above 67 1.89 13377240 87.70

Total 3542 100.00 15253805 100.00

	 Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2024

Sr. 
No.

Category No. of 
Shares 

held

% of 
Issued 
Share 
Capital

A Promoter & Promoters Group 7285054 47.76
B Mutual Funds/Banks / FIs / 

Flls /Insurance Companies 
/ FPIs 0 0.00

C Bodies Corporate 350383 2.30
D NRI’s and OCB’s 511428 3.35
E HUF 196616 1.29
F Public and Others 6910324 45.30

Total 15253805 100.00

l)	 Dematerialization of Shares

	 As on March 31, 2024, 99.22% of total equity share capital of 
the Company was held in a dematerialized form with National 
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited. At the end of each quarter, reconciliation of 
share capital audit is conducted by a Practicing Company 
Secretary to reconcile the total issued capital, listed capital 
and capital held by the Depositories in dematerialised form.

	 The Shareholders who continue to hold shares in physical 
form are requested to dematerialize their shares at the 
earliest and avail benefits of dealing in securities in electronic 
/ dematerialized form. For any clarification, assistance or 
information, please contact the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent of the Company.

m)	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity

	 Not Applicable

n)	 Details of shares lying in the suspense account [Pursuant 
to SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)]

	 Nil  

o)	 Plant Location

	 The Company does not have any plant at any locations.

p)	 Address for Correspondence

	 Shareholders may correspond with the Registrar and Transfer 
agents viz M/s. KFin Technologies Limited at the address 
mentioned herein above on all matters relating to transfer or 
transmission of shares, dematerialization of shares and any 
other query relating to shares of the Company. Shareholders 
would have to correspond with the respective Depository 
Participants for shares held in demat mode.

	 For all investor related matters and investor grievances, 
shareholders may correspond at the below mentioned 
address:

	 Company Secretary / Compliance Officer

	 Khandwala Securities Limited 
Registered office: G-II, Ground Floor, Dalamal House,  
Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021 
Website: www.kslindia.com 
Telephone no.: +91-22-40767373   
Fax no.: +91-22-40767377 
Email:kslsupport@kslindia.com
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DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR 
To, 
The Members of, 
Khandwala Securities Limited

I, Paresh Khandwala, Managing Director of Khandwala Securities Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the Board and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2024.

For Khandwala Securities Limited

Paresh Khandwala	 
Managing Director 

Date:  May 18, 2024 
Place: Mumbai

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer Certification
To, 
The Board of Directors 
Khandwala Securities Limited

We, Paresh Khandwala, Managing Director and Pranav Khandwala (Whole-time Director & CFO) of Khandwala Securities Limited, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:   

a)	 we have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

(i)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading; 

(ii)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness 
of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or 
propose to take rectify these deficiencies.

d)	 we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

(i)	 there are no significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year ;

(ii)	 there are significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

(iii)	 there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and there has been no involvement of the management 
or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

By order of the Board
For Khandwala Securities Limited

Paresh Khandwala	 Pranav Khandwala
Managing Director 	 Whole-time Director / CFO

Date:  May 18, 2024 
Place: Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To, 
The Members of 
Khandwala Securities Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Khandwala Securities Limited (‘the Company’) for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2024, as stipulated in the Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of 
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management, and our examination was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
Proprietor 
Membership No:  127246

Date:- 18th May 2024 
Place: - Mumbai  
UDIN: - 24127246BKATTY2717
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To, 
The Members of 
Khandwala Securities Limited 
Vikas Building, Ground Floor, 
Green Street, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 023

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Khandwala Securities Limited 
having CIN - L67120MH1993PLC070709 and having registered office at Vikas Building, Ground Floor, Green Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 
023 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at 
the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Maharashtra, Mumbai or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Mr. Paresh Jayantilal Khandwala 00112678 09/02/1993

2. Mr. Pranav Paresh Khandwala 00519113 11/02/2020

3. Mrs. Bhagyashree Pranav Khandwala 02335473 30/05/2014

4. Mr. Homiar Nariman Vakil 05210178 19/09/2015

5. Mr. Pratik Paresh Khandwala 00519147 14/08/2020

6. Mr Kalpen Shukla 00117482 31/01/2024

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Bhuwnesh Bansal & Associates 
	

Bhuwnesh Bansal 
Proprietor 

FCS No. – 6526 
CP No. – 9089 

Date: 18th May, 2024 	 UDIN: F006526F000395453  
Place: Mumbai 	 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1708/2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KHANDWALA SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of “Khandwala Securities Limited”, which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to 
as “the standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view except for the effects of the 
matters  described in the Basis for qualified opinion section 
of our report in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit/loss 
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. However 
we draw your kind attention to the following qualifications to the 
audit opinion of the financial statements produced as under:-

1.	 The Company had advanced application money towards 
purchase of shares of Rs 216.69 lakhs which is outstanding 
for a period of 264 months as at the end of the year. In the 
absence of information regarding the status of the allotment 
or the net worth of the entities in which the company made 
applications, we are unable to ascertain the extent to which 
an amount of Rs 216.69 lakhs is recoverable and accordingly, 
the effect thereof on the financial statements cannot be 
ascertained. However, it has been noted and confirmed after 
looking at relevant documents that at present the said matter 
is under litigation and pending for hearing before the Hon’ble 
High Court of Mumbai.

2.	 Long-Term deposits to various companies of Rs 530.00 lakhs 
are subject to subsequent adjustments. We are unable to 
ascertain the recoverability of these amounts, as the Company 
has not made any provisions for the same in the standalone 
financial statements.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone 
financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In 
connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 
we report that: 

a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including 
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as 
amended.

e) 	 On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act. 

f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the 
year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act. 

h) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
financial statements. 

ii. 	 The Company has made provision, as required under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts. 
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iii. 	 There are no amounts which were required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iv.	 Based on our examination which included test checks, 
the company has used an accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our 
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with.

	 As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting 
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

 2	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Aniket Kulkarni& Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Registration No. 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
Partner 

Membership No.127246 

Place: Mumbai                                                                          
Date: May 18th 2024 
UDIN: 24127246BKATJB7777
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Report on the Internal Financial Control s under clause (i) of 
sub – section 3 of  Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over financial 
reporting of Khandwala Securities Limited (“the Company”) as 
of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial 
Reporting issued by the ICAI. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and 
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the standards on auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

“Annexure-A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report – 31st March 2024
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that 

(1)	 pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) 	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) 	 Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Because of inherent limitations of internal controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatement due to 
error or fraud may occur and not to be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
effectively as at 31stMarch,2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by Institute of Chartered Accounts of India. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Registration No. 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
Partner 

Membership No:  - 127246

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 18th 2024 
UDIN: 24127246BKATJB7777 
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(As referred to in Paragraph 2 of Report on Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of our report Companies (Auditors Report) Order’ 
2020 (the order) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act for the year ended on 
31st   March 2024).
To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the company and books of accounts and records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, we state that:- 
Property, Plant and Equipment: 
(i)	 (a) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing 

full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fixed assets.

	 (b) 	 The Company has a regular programme of physical 
verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are 
verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this 
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets.

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company.

	 (d) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment’s (including Right of Use assets) or 
Intangible Assets or both during the year end. 

	 (e) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or 
are pending against the company for holding any Benami 
property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the 
year end. 

(ii)	 Inventories:
	 The company does not have any inventory and hence reporting 

under clause (ii) of the CARO 2020 is not applicable.
	 Loans and Advances to Related Parties:
(iii)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 

us, the company has not made any investments, provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances, in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 
other parties.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the company has not made any investments, 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans 
or advances. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (b) of the Order 
is not applicable.

	 (c) 	 The company has not provided any loans and advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (c) of 
the Order is not applicable.

	 (d) 	 The company has not provided any loans and advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (d) of 
the Order is not applicable.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	 (e) 	 The company has not granted any loans and advances in 

the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the 
Order is not applicable.

	 (f) 	 The company has not granted any loans and advances in 
the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (f) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the 
loans and investments made.  

	 Acceptance of Deposits:
(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 

the company has not accepted deposits under the provisions 
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act and the rules framed there under.

	 Maintenance of Cost Records:-
(vi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost 
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	 Payment of Statutory Dues:-
(vii)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 

us and on the basis of our examination of the books of 
accounts, the company has generally been regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed 
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues 
applicable to it during the year.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, there were no amounts of Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues 
have not been deposited by the Company on account of 
any dispute. The Company is under process of rectifying 
the defaults by revising the TDS returns and except as 
reported below:-

Name of 
the

Statute

Nature of 
the Dues

Amount
(Rs. in 
lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
Dispute is 
pending

Under 
Section

Income Tax 
Act 1961  

Income 
Tax 

4.96 A.Y. 2007-08 Mumbai High 
Court

143(3)

Unrecorded Income:
(viii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 

on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income in 
the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961) in respect of any transaction nor recorded in the books 
of accounts during the year.

	 Repayment of Borrowings:
(ix)	 (a) 	 The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 

and other borrowings or in  the payment of interest 
thereon to banks or financial institution. 
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	 (b) 	 The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or other lender.

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the term loans are applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained.

	 (d) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, funds raised on short term basis have not been 
utilized for long term purposes during the year.

	 (e) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the 
year.

	 (f) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies.

		  Initial Public Offer:
(x)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations provided 

to us and as per the records of the company examined 
by us, company has not raised funds by way of public 
issue/ follow-on offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans. Therefore paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not 
applicable to the company.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations give to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) 
during the year. 

	 Frauds:
(xi)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 

us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the course of our 
audit. 

	 (b) 	 No material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (c) 	 No material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 Nidhi Company:
(xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 Transactions with related parties:-
(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

	 Internal Audit:
(xiv)	(a) 	 In our opinion, the company has an adequate internal 

audit system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business.

	 (b) 	 We have taken into consideration, the internal audit 
reports for the period under audit issued to the company 
till the date while determining the nature, timing and 
extent of audit procedures.

	 Non-Cash Transactions with Directors:-
(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

	 Registration with RBI:-
(xvi)	The Company is not required to be registered under section 

45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
	 Cash Losses:-
(xvii)	The company has profit for the year ended 31st March 

2024, therefore the paragraph 3(xvii) is not applicable to the 
company. 

	 Resignation of Statutory Auditors:-
(xviii)There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors 

during the year.
	 Material Uncertainty:-
(xix)	On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates 

of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors 
and management plans, in our opinion no material uncertainty 
exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. 

	 Corporate Social Responsibility:
(xx)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 

based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to 
the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xx) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 Consolidated Financial Statements:-
(xxi)	With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) 

and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the 
“Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms 
of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s 
report, according to the information and explanations given 
to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the 
Company and its Associates included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under 
CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications 
or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
Partner 

Membership No:  - 127246

Place: Mumbai 
Date: - May 18th 2024 
UDIN: 24127246BKATJB7777
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
(Rupees in Thousands)

 Particulars  Note 
 No. 

 As At 
 March 31, 2024 

 As At 
 March 31, 2023 

 A ASSETS 
 (1) Non Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  53,134.56  52,059.95 
(b) Intangible assets  2,245.72  2,861.68 
(c) Financial Assets

(i) 	 Investments 3  35,719.24  38,973.94 
(ii) 	 Loans and Advances 4  2,02,093.51  97,707.87 
(iii) 	 Others 5  21,668.64  21,668.64 

(d) Deferred tax assets (net)  3,427.27  3,070.40 
(e) Other non-current assets 6  1,010.00  15,210.00 

 3,19,298.94  2,31,552.48 
 (2)  Current Assets 

(a) Finaincal Assests
(i) Investments 7  28,729.40  15,182.24 
(ii) Trade receivables 8  66,472.94  78,342.19 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9  556.01  158.63 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10  6,037.13  49,738.54 
(v) Loans and Advances 11  51,441.05  55,913.01 
(vi) Other current assets 12  9,775.32  11,109.49 

 1,63,011.85  2,10,444.11 
 Total Assets  4,82,310.79  4,41,996.59 

 B  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 (1)  Equity 

 (a)  Equity Share Capital 13  1,52,538.05  1,52,538.05 
 (b)  Other Equity 14  1,50,542.57  1,48,651.65 
 Total Equity  3,03,080.62  3,01,189.70 

 (2)  Non Current Liabilities 
 (a)  Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15  14,679.78  26,090.90 
 (b)  Provisions 16  1,569.10  1,214.14 
 (c)  Other non-current liabilities 17  455.73  424.73 
 Total Non Current Liabilities  16,704.60  27,729.78 

 (3)  Current Liabilities 
 (a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade payables 18  1,56,559.34  1,09,162.15 
 (b) Other current liabilities 19  5,966.23  3,914.95 
 Total Current Liabilities  1,62,525.57  1,13,077.11 

Total Equity and Liabilities  4,82,310.79  4,41,996.59 

See accompanying notes ( 1 to 44 ) to the Financial Statements.
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Khandwala Securities Limited 
FRN No. 130521W 

Aniket Kulkarni Homiar N. Vakil Paresh J. Khandwala 
Proprietor Chairman Managing Director 
Mem. No: 127246 DIN: 05210178 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala Abhishek Joshi 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO Company Secretary 
DIN: 00519113 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date : - 18th May, 2024 Date : - 18th May, 2024
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rupees in Thousands)

 Particulars  Note  For the year ended
 March 31, 2024

 For the year ended
March 31, 2023

 I  Revenue from Operations 20  85,169.93  62,643.77
 II  Other Income 21  1,839.47  2,219.23
 III  Total Income  87,009.40  64,863.00
 IV  Expenses

 Cost of materials consumed  -  -
 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  -  -
 Changes in inventories of finished goods 22  332.82  758.39
 Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress  -  -
 Employee benefits expense 23  25,607.55  24,897.12
 Finance costs 24  2,715.70  3,367.17
 Depreciation and amortization expense  3,133.90  2,949.70
 Other expenses 25  53,579.90  27,913.31
 Total Expenses  85,369.86  59,885.70

 V  Profit/(Loss) before Tax and prior period items  1,639.54  4,977.29
 VI  Exceptional Iterms  -  -
 VII  Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary items and tax ( V - VI )  1,639.54  4,977.29
 VIII  Extraordinary items  -  -
 IX  Porfit/(Loss) before Tax ( VII - VIII )  1,639.54  4,977.29
 X  Tax Expense

 (1) 	 Current Tax  -  -
 (2) 	 MAT Tax  255.77  921.00
 (3) 	 Deferred Tax (Credited)/ Charged  (356.87)  (385.61)

 XI  Profit / (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations  1,740.64  4,441.90
 XII  Profit / (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations  -  -
 XIII  Tax Expense of Discountinuing Operations  -  -
 XIV  Profit / (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (after tax ) ( XII -XIII )  -  -
 XV  Profit (Loss) for the period (XI +XIV )  1,740.64  4,441.90
 XVI Other Comprehensive Income

A 	 (i) 	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (17.78)  73.10
	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -
B 	 (i) 	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -
	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -

 XVII  Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV)  1,722.86  4,515.00
 (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income
 for the period)

 XVIII  Earnings Per Share of - Basic (Rs.)
 - 	 Basic (Rs.)  0.11  0.29
 - 	 Diluted (Rs.)  0.11  0.29

See accompanying notes ( 1 to 44 ) to the Financial Statements.
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Khandwala Securities Limited 
FRN No. 130521W 

Aniket Kulkarni Homiar N. Vakil Paresh J. Khandwala 
Proprietor Chairman Managing Director 
Mem. No: 127246 DIN: 05210178 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala Abhishek Joshi 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO Company Secretary 
DIN: 00519113 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date : - 18th May, 2024 Date : - 18th May, 2024
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rupees in Thousands)

 Particulars For the Year ended  
March 31, 2024

For the Year ended  
March 31, 2023

A. Cash flow from operational activities
Net (Loss)/Profit before tax adjusted for prior period items
and excess provisions for tax written back  1,639.54  4,977.29
 Adjustments for:

Depreciation  3,133.90  2,949.70
Interest Income  (1,632.67)  (1,278.30)
Finance Cost  2,715.70  3,367.17
Unrealised Gains On Mark to Market of F&O Stock  -  (38.37)
Provision for Dimunition in Investments/ Stock  332.82  758.39
Other Comprehensive Expenses  (17.78)  73.10
Interest on Income Tax Refund  (87.57)  (409.49)
Provision for MAT  (87.71)  (1,020.18)
Sundry Debit Balance written off  9,617.58  -
Dividend Income  (100.55)  (123.20)

 13,873.70  4,278.84
 15,513.24  9,256.13

Operating profit before working capital changes
 Adjustments for:

Inventories  (679.97)  (4,258.21)
Trade Receivables & Other Receivables  (82,127.83)  14,943.28
Current Liabilities & Provision  49,834.41  (32,973.39)  (92,311.94)  (81,626.87)

Cash generated from operations  (17,460.15)  (72,370.74)
Direct taxes Refunded / (paid)  -  -
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  (17,460.15)  (72,370.74)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Sale / (Purchase) of fixed assets (Net)  (3,592.56)  (5,910.14)
Sale/ (Purchase) of Investments (Net of purchase)  3,254.71  302.17
Investment in Fixed Deposit  (13,200.00)  (11,050.00)
Interest received  1,720.24  1,470.24
Dividend received  100.55  117.71
 Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities  (11,717.07)  (15,070.02)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
(Repayment)/Proceeds from long term borrowings(Net)  1,801.62  (2,086.23)
(Repayment)/Proceeds from Preference shares  -  89,499.74
(Repayment)/Proceeds from short term borrowings(Net)  -  -
Interest and other Finance charges  (2,715.70)  (3,367.17)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (914.08)  84,046.34
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (30,091.29)  (3,394.42)
Cash and Cash equivalents (opening balance)  26,558.63  29,953.05
Cash and Cash equivalents (closing balance)  (3,532.66)  26,558.63

 (30,091.29)  (3,394.42)

See accompanying notes ( 1 to 44 ) to the Financial Statements.
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Khandwala Securities Limited 
FRN No. 130521W 

Aniket Kulkarni Homiar N. Vakil Paresh J. Khandwala 
Proprietor Chairman Managing Director 
Mem. No: 127246 DIN: 05210178 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala Abhishek Joshi 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO Company Secretary 
DIN: 00519113 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date : - 18th May, 2024 Date : - 18th May, 2024
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE NO.1
A.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION
	 Khandwala Securities Limited (“the Company”) is a Public 

Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act 1956. The Company is domiciled in India 
and addresses of its registered office and principal place of 
business are disclosed in the introduction to the annual report. 
Its shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock 
Exchange of India Ltd (NSE).

	 The Company engaged in the business of providing Stock 
Broking Services, Investment Banking, Portfolio Management 
Service, Research Analysts and Investment Advisory Services.

	 The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (“SEBI”) under the Stock brokers and sub-
brokers Regulations, 1992 and is as a Member of BSE and 
NSE. It is also registered as a Depository Participant with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

B.	 Significant Accounting Policies
	 Basis of Preparation
	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

	 Historical Cost
	 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 

cost basis except for following assets and liabilities which have 
been measured at fair value amount:
i)	 Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative 

instruments),
ii)	 Defined benefit plans - plan assets and
iii)	 Equity settled share based payments

	 Use of estimates
	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity 

with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
the management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date 
of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from the 
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized 
prospectively in current and future periods.

	 Revenue recognition
	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenues 
can be reliably measured. Income from capital market 
operations (non-delivery based transactions) is accounted for 
on sale of securities. Income from Merchant Banking services, 
Brokerage and income from corporate advisory services are 
accounted for as and when the relevant services are rendered 
except where the recovery is uncertain in which case it is 
accounted for on receipt. Interest income is accounted for 
on accrual basis except where the recovery is uncertain, in 
which case it is accounted for on receipt. Dividend income is 
accounted for when the unconditional right to receive dividend 
is established.

	 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
	 The company has used the following rates to provide 

depreciation on its non-current assets.

Class of asset Estimated useful 
Life (In Years)

Tangible Fixed Assets :
Building 60
Office equipment’s 5
Computers 3
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Plant and Machinery 15
Intangible Fixed Assets :
Computer Software 6

	 Investments
	 Investments are classified into current investments and non-

current investments. Investments, which are intended to 
be held for one year or more, are classified as non-current 
investments and investments, which are intended to be held 
for less than one year, are classified as current investments.

	 Non-current investments are carried at cost less provision for 
diminution, other than temporary.

	 Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value. 
The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in 
respect of each investment.

	 Inventories
	 Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and market value. 

While determining market value, due consideration has been 
given to shares which have become ex-rights/ex-bonus at the 
year- end for which rights/bonus shares have been received 
subsequent to year end.

	 Foreign currency transactions
	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of 

exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the 
year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss of the 
year.

	 Employee benefits
	 Short Term Employee Benefits
	 The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits 

expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by 
employees are recognized as an expense during the period 
when the employees render the services.

	 Post-Employment Benefits
	 Defined Contribution Plans
	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit 

plan under which the Company pays specified contributions 
to a separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly 
contributions towards Provident Fund, Superannuation 
Fund and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is 
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the period in which the employee renders the related 
service.



50

KHANDWALA SECURITIES LIMITED

	 Defined Benefit Plans
	 The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has 

completed five years of service with the Company at the time 
of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days 
salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment 
of Gratuity Act 1972.

	 The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved 
gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to 
employees. The gratuity fund has been approved by respective 
IT authorities.

	 The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment 
benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method 
and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected 
to be derived from employees’ services.

	 Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-
employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

	 Employee Separation Costs
	 Compensation to employees who have opted for retirement 

under the voluntary retirement scheme of the Company 
payable in the year of exercise of option by the employee. 
The Company recognizes the employee separation cost when 
the scheme is announced and the Company is demonstrably 
committed to it.

	 Tax Expenses
	 The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred 

tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the 
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is 
also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

	 Current Tax
	 Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

	 Deferred Tax
	 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit.

	 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end 
of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end each reporting 
period.

	 Derivative Instruments
	 Initial / additional margin paid for futures / options is included 

under the head current assets. Contracts are marked to market 
in accordance with the prevalent regulations and the amount 
receivable or payable is disclosed under the head current 
assets or current liabilities, as the case may be. The profit 
or loss on settlement of derivative contracts is recognized in 
the Profit and Loss account. As on the balance sheet date, 
provision for loss on futures contracts is made to the extent 
of mark to market margins paid, while for open options, to the 
extent premium paid exceeds premium prevailing on that date.

	 Provisions:
	 A provision is recognized when the company has a present 

obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

	 Cash & Cash Equivalents:
	 Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow 

statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and fixed 
deposits.

	 Current / Non Current Classification
	 An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of 

the following criteria:—
(a)	 it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or 

consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;
(b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c)	 it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the 

reporting date; or
(d)	 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from 

being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current.
A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of 
the following criteria:—
(a)	 it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal 

operating cycle;
(b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c)	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the 

reporting date; or
(d)	 the company does not have an unconditional right to defer 

settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the 
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

	 All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



51

THIRTY-FIRST ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2- Property, Plant and Equipment  (Rupees in Thousands) 

Particulars  Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
 As At 

01-Apr-23
Additions

during the period
Deductions 

during the period
 As At 

31-Mar-24
As At 

01-Apr-23
For the 
period

As At 
31-Mar-24

As At 
31-Mar-24

As At 
31st March 23

Property, Plant and Equipment
Office Buildings *  81,905.67  -  -  81,905.67  34,067.76  1,376.62  35,444.38  46,461.29  47,837.91 

Computers  3,155.06  713.92  -  3,868.98  2,122.33  524.78  2,647.11  1,221.88  1,032.74 

Office Equipments  2,471.88  143.52  -  2,615.40  1,912.01  200.64  2,112.66  502.75  559.86 

Furniture and Fixtures  513.23  -  -  513.23  499.18  4.30  503.48  9.75  14.04 

Vehicles  6,660.00  2,719.92  -  9,379.92  4,100.09  396.40  4,496.49  4,883.42  2,559.91 

Plant & Machinery (Computer)  1,109.58  -  -  1,109.58  1,054.10  -  1,054.10  55.48  55.48 

 95,815.42  3,577.36  -  99,392.78  43,755.47  2,502.74  46,258.22  53,134.56  52,059.95 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software  4,147.42  15.20  -  4,162.62  1,285.74  631.15  1,916.90  2,245.72  2,861.68 

Total  99,962.84  3,592.56  -  1,03,555.40  45,041.21  3,133.90  48,175.11  55,380.29  54,921.62 
Previous Year  94,052.70  5,910.14  -  99,962.84  42,091.51  2,949.70  45,041.21  54,921.62 

 (Rupees in Thousands) 

 Particulars  Face 
 Value 

 As at 
 March 31, 2024 

 As at 
 March 31, 2023 

 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS 
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments measured at Cost
Quoted, fully paid up
Vodafone Idea Ltd  10  1,12,910  1,964.24  3,00,000  5,218.94 

 1,964.24  5,218.94 
In Equity Shares of Associate Companies
Unquoted, fully paid up
Trumonee Financial Limited  10  33,75,000  33,750.00  33,75,000  33,750.00 

In Equity Shares
Unquoted, fully paid up
Kowa Spinning Limited  10  10,08,000  21,358.20  10,08,000  21,358.20 

Vadodara Stock Exchange Limited  10  500  5.00  500  5.00 

 21,363.20  21,363.20 

 57,077.44  60,332.14 
Less : Provision for diminution  21,358.20  21,358.20 

 TOTAL  35,719.24  38,973.94 
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Notes of Financial Statements  (Rupees in Thousands) 
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE - 4 LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Deposits with exchange & other  1,49,093.51  44,707.87 
Deposit with Companies  53,000.00  53,000.00 

 TOTAL  2,02,093.51  97,707.87 
NOTE - 5 OTHERS 
Share Application  21,668.64  21,668.64 

 TOTAL  21,668.64  21,668.64 
NOTE - 6 OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS 
Advance Payment of Tax  1,010.00  2,010.00 
In Fixed Deposit Accounts  -  13,200.00 

 TOTAL  1,010.00  15,210.00 
NOTE 7 - CURRENT INVESTMENT 
Investment n Equity Shares -(Refer Appendix 7-A)  4,479.40  4,132.24 
Investment In Fixed Deposit  24,250.00  11,050.00 

 TOTAL  28,729.40  15,182.24 

Appendix 7-A  (Rupees in Thousands) 
NAME OF THE SCRIP As at

March 31, 2024
As at

March 31, 2023

Number  Rs. Number  Rs. 
Equity Shares :
Creative Casting Ltd  1,500  1,016.55  500  224.98 
Dabur India Ltd  1,500  784.73  -  - 
Deccan Granite Ltd  20,300  37.56  20,300  37.56 
G R Magnets Ltd  7,100  -  7,100  - 
ICSA (India) Ltd  3,000  0.60  3,000  0.60 
IIFL Fin Ltd  1,000  340.10  -  - 
LIC MF Liquid Plus Fund  17,287  188.34  16,350  176.97 
National Fertilizers Limited  10,000  876.00 - -
NRB Bearing Ltd  164  22.35  164  22.35 
NRB Industrial Bearing Ltd  49  1.06  49  1.06 
Omax Auto Ltd  10  0.73  25,010  990.40 
Rattan India Enterprises Ltd  5,000  346.00  -  - 
Saraswat Co-Op Bank  2,550  25.50  2,550  25.50 
Setech Electronics Ltd  2,70,000  0.00  2,70,000  0.00 
Sharp Industries Ltd  2,210  10.48  2,210  10.48 
Steel City Securities Ltd  3,500  258.89  -  - 
Unichem Laboratories Ltd  -  -  5,000  1,448.50 
United Breweries Ltd  300  519.65 - -
UTI Top 100 Funds  1,000  6.21  1,000  6.21 
Vedanta Ltd  5,000  44.65  1,750  480.29 
Yes Bank  -  -  47,000  707.35 

 4,479.40  4,132.24 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 (Rupees in Thousands) 

Particulars  As At 
March 31, 2024

 As At 
March 31, 2023

NOTE 8 - Trade Receivables 
(Unsecured & Considered Good) 
Outstanding for more than six months 
Considered good  66,445.33  59,777.32 

Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  4,601.13  - 

 61,844.20  59,777.32 

Outstanding for Less than Six Months 
Considered good  4,628.74  18,564.88 

Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  -  - 

 4,628.74  18,564.88 

 TOTAL  66,472.94  78,342.19 

NOTE 9 - Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand  556.01  158.63 

 TOTAL  556.01  158.63 

NOTE 10 - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Balance with Scheduled Banks: 

In Current Accounts  6,037.13  49,738.54 

 TOTAL  6,037.13  49,738.54 

NOTE 11 - LOANS AND ADVANCES 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 
Employees  1,411.68  265.45 

Prepaid Expenses  2,629.89  1,510.09 

ICD -Short Term Loan  27,707.00  - 

Advance to Sundry Creditors  18,106.24  39,256.10 

Exchanges Fines  1,340.48  6,950.00 

Exchange Obligation -Receivable  245.75  7,931.37 

 TOTAL  51,441.05  55,913.01 

NOTE 12 - OTHER CURRENTS ASSETS 
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit  209.70  206.64 

Advance for Expenses  292.14  1,471.15 

Income Tax  2,636.38  2,322.31 

Unbilled Revenue A/c  6,000.00  6,000.00 

Balance with GST Authorities  637.10  1,109.39 

 TOTAL  9,775.32  11,109.49 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Nos  Amount  Nos  Amount 
NOTE 13 - SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised 
1,70,00,000 (P.Y. 14,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  1,70,00,000  1,70,000.00  1,40,00,000  1,40,000.00 
500,000 (P.Y. 500,000) Cumulative Redeemable Preference  5,00,000  50,000.00  5,00,000  50,000.00 
Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
400,000 (P.Y.400,000) Cumulative Convertible Preference  4,00,000  40,000.00  4,00,000  40,000.00 
Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
2,00,000 (P.Y. 2,00,000) Optionally Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each

 2,00,000  20,000.00  2,00,000  20,000.00 

 TOTAL  1,81,00,000  2,80,000.00  1,51,00,000  2,50,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
Equity Share Capital 
1,52,53,805 (P. Y. 1,52,53,805) Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05 

 TOTAL  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05 

Reconciliation Of Shares 
Equity shares with voting rights 
Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,19,39,000  1,19,390.00 
Add: Issue of fresh shares during the year  -  -  33,14,805  33,148.05 
Balance as at the end of the year  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05 

b) List of Share Holders Holding More than 5% of the total number of shares issued by the Company
Name of Equity Share Holder  Number 

 of Shares 
 Percentage 

 Shareholding 
 Number 

 of Shares 
 Percentage 

 Shareholding 
Jayantilal Khandwala & Sons Pvt. Ltd.  17,33,321 11.36%  17,33,321 11.36%
Bentley Investments Pvt Ltd  14,40,968 9.45%  14,40,968 9.45%
Daxa Paresh Khandwala  13,02,058 8.54%  13,02,058 8.54%
Pratik Paresh Khandwala  7,96,555 5.22%  7,96,555 5.22%

Terms / Rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. In the event of the liquidation of the Company, the holder of the equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity 
shares held by the shareholders. The Company declares and pay dividend in Indian Rupees.

Shares held by Promotes/ Promoters Group at the end of the Year
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023
% Change in 
Share holding 
during the year Nos  %  Nos  % 

Paresh Jayantilal Khandwala (HUF)  2,65,103 1.74%  2,65,103 1.74% 0.00%
 Pratik Paresh Khandwala  7,96,555 5.22%  7,96,555 5.22% 0.00%
 Tulsi Paresh Khandwala  3,03,958 1.99%  3,03,958 1.99% 0.00%
 Pranav Paresh Khandwala  7,08,617 4.65%  7,08,617 4.65% 0.00%
 Mayank Ashok Khandwala  14,453 0.09%  14,453 0.09% 0.00%
 Jatin Ashok Khandwala  16,953 0.11%  16,953 0.11% 0.00%
 Leena Mayank Khandwala  54,740 0.36%  54,740 0.36% 0.00%
 Daxa Paresh Khandwala  13,02,058 8.54%  13,02,058 8.54% 0.00%
 Ramila Ashok Khandwala  2,127 0.01%  2,127 0.01% 0.00%
 Sonal Jatin Khandwala  126 0.00%  126 0.00% 0.00%

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Shares held by Promotes/ Promoters Group at the end of the Year
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023
% Change in 
Share holding 
during the year Nos  %  Nos  % 

 Paresh Jayantilal Khandwala  2,12,733 1.40%  2,02,407 1.33% 0.07%
 Bhagyashree Pranav Khandwala  50,180 0.33%  1,33,980 0.88% -0.55%
 Bentley Investments Pvt Ltd  14,40,968 9.45%  14,40,968 9.45% 0.00%
 Jayantilal Khandwala & Sons Pvt. Ltd.  17,33,321 11.36%  17,33,321 11.36% 0.00%
 Piggero Investments Private Limited  2,98,486 1.96%  2,94,986 1.93% 0.03%
 Khandwala Commodity And Derivatives Pvt. Ltd.  84,676 0.56%  875 0.01% 0.55%

 (Rupees in Thousands) 
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 14 - Other Equity 
Share Premium  1,04,624.69  1,04,624.69 
Capital Redemption Reserve  34,000.00  34,000.00 
Profit & Loss Account 
As per last Balance Sheet  10,026.97  5,611.15 
Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account  1,722.86  4,515.00 
Provision for MAT  168.06  (99.18) 

 11,917.88  10,026.97 
 TOTAL  1,50,542.57  1,48,651.65 

A.	 Equity Share Capital	 (Rupees in Thousands) 
Balance at the beginning of the 

reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during 

the year
Balance at the end of the reporting 

period
15,253.81                        -                    15,253.81 

B.	 Other Equity
Share  

application 
money 

pending 
allotment

Equity com-
ponent of 
compound 
financial  

instruments

Reserves and Surplus Debt instruments 
through Other  

Comprehensive 
Income

Equity Instru-
ments through 

Other  
Comprehensive 

Income

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges

Revaluation 
Surplus

Exchange 
differences 

on translating 
the financial 
statements 
of a foreign 
operation

Other items of 
Other Com-

prehensive In-
come (specify 

nature)

Money  
received 

against share  
warrants

Total

Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Share  
Premium 

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
reporting period

 -  -  -  34,000.00  1,04,624.69  -  10,026.97  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,48,651.65 

Changes in 
accounting policy or 
prior period errors

 -  -  -  -  -  -  168.06  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  168.06 

Restated balance at 
the beginning of the 
reporting period

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  1,722.86  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,722.86 

Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Transfer to retained 
earnings

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Any other change (to 
be specified)

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of 
the reporting period

 -  -  -  34,000.00  1,04,624.69  -  11,917.88  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,50,542.57 
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(Rupees in Thousands)

Particulars  As At 
March 31, 2024

 As At 
March 31, 2023

NOTE 15 - BORROWINGS 
Secured 
Canara Bank Overdraft Account  10,125.80  23,338.54 

Vehicle Loan (Secured by hypothecation of vehicle)  3,294.94  1,493.33 

(Terms of payment 60 Months EMI Rs.39,144/- P.M. Interest Rate @8.70% 
and 60 Months EMI Rs.54,482/- P.M. Interest Rate @ 8.90%)

 13,420.74  24,831.87 

Unsecured 
Yukti Securities Ltd.  1,259.04  1,259.04 

 1,259.04  1,259.04 

 TOTAL  14,679.78  26,090.90 

NOTE 16 - PROVISIONS 
Provision for Gratuity  1,569.10  1,202.16 

Provision for Leave Encashment  -  11.98 

 TOTAL  1,569.10  1,214.14 
NOTE 17 - OTHER NON CURRENTS LIABILITIES 
Security Deposits  455.73  424.73 

 TOTAL  455.73  424.73 

 (Rupees in Thousands) 

Particulars  As At 
March 31, 2024

 As At 
March 31, 2023

NOTE 18 - TRADE PAYABLE 
Dues of Creditors Other Than Micro & Small Enterprises 
Undisputed. Considered Good, Unsecured (Less than 180 Days)  1,49,397.61  1,02,281.81 

Considered Doubtful 

Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  -  - 
 1,49,397.61  1,02,281.81 

Dues of Creditors Other Than Micro & Small Enterprises 
Undisputed, Considered Good, Unsecured (More than 180 Days)  7,161.73  6,880.35 

Considered Doubtful 

Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  -  - 
 71,61,727  68,80,346 

Total Trade Payables  1,56,559.34  1,09,162.15 

1. 	 Confirmation of Balances from parties under Trade Payables has not been received by the company. These balances have therefore 
been taken as per the Books of Accounts of the company which is subject to confirmation, reconciliation & adjustments if any. 

2. 	 The SSI status of the creditors is not known to the company, hence the entire trade payable is shown as “Trade Payable-due to other 
micro and small enterprises”
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(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 19 - OTHER CURRENTS LIABILITIES 
Payable to Employees  1,521.87  1,030.70 
Statutory Dues  2,939.63  1,308.61 
Provision MAT Tax  255.77  921.00 
Other Expenses Liabilities  452.49  330.31 
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt  796.47  324.33 

TOTAL  5,966.23  3,914.95 

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 20 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
Sale of Services 
Brokerage  46,511.04  30,446.59 
Corporate Advisory Services  35,205.51  31,791.53 
Income from Capital Market Operations  3,453.38  405.65 

 TOTAL  85,169.93  62,643.77 
NOTE 21 - OTHER INCOME 
Interest on Fixed deposits with Banks  1,632.67  1,278.30 
[Tax deducted at source Rs.-1,63,267/- P.Y.Rs. 1,27,829/-) 
Dividend :- On stock in trade  100.55  123.20 
Interest on Income Tax Refund  87.57  409.49 
Unrealised Gains/(Loss) On Mark to Market of F&O Stock  -  38.37 
Other Income  18.68  369.87 

 TOTAL  1,839.47  2,219.23 

 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 22 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS 
Loss on Stock Valuation  332.82  758.39 

 TOTAL  332.82  758.39 

NOTE 23 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 
Salaries and Bonus  19,153.03  19,536.93 
Managing Director's Remuneration  4,925.00  3,693.75 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds  648.74  710.88 
Staff Welfare Expenses  514.05  655.10 
Gratuity  366.73  300.47 

 TOTAL  25,607.55  24,897.12 

 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE - 24 FINANCE COST 
Interest Expense  2,141.55  2,856.23 
Bank Guarantee Commission and Other Charges  574.14  510.94 

 TOTAL  2,715.70  3,367.17 
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 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 25 - OTHER EXPENSES 
Financial Advisory charges  181.55  119.72 
Computer Expenses  973.02  1,280.06 
Demat charges  145.10  376.27 
Rates and Taxes  3,647.10  3,268.44 
Consultancy Charges  375.91  47.50 
Commission Brokerage  11,017.84  4,249.96 
Commission Paid  1,290.00  - 
Insurance  624.01  390.41 
Internet Expenses  318.73  252.07 
Advertisement Expenses  147.97  224.31 
Business Promotion Expenses  762.76  333.07 
Legal & Professional Fees  14,327.54  4,964.99 
Telephone/Postage and Courier Charges  357.27  397.21 
Electricity Charges  668.13  608.14 
Registration Fees  1,401.64  998.48 
Repairs and Maintenance  3,494.22  2,923.54 
Rent  26.00  - 
Security Charges  168.14  162.72 
Printing and Stationery  329.91  176.00 
Subscription Expenses  496.92  501.64 
Travelling and Conveyance  1,696.62  1,068.86 
Auditor's Remuneration 
For Statutory Audit  225.00  225.00 
For Certification  25.00  25.00 
Directors sitting fees  95.00  145.00 
Donation  14.10  37.60 
Miscellaneous Expenses  577.63  1,033.66 
Sundry Balance Written off  9,617.58  - 
Loss on Market Operation  575.20  4,103.68 

TOTAL  53,579.90  27,913.31 

26.	 Financial Ratios :
	 The ratios for the years ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are as follows :

Particulars Numerator Denominator  As at 
31.03.2024 

 As at 
31.03.2023 

 Variance 
 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities  1.00  1.86  0.86 
Debt - Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity  0.05  0.09  0.04 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio * Earnings Avaibale for Debt 

Service
Debt Service  0.51  0.43  -0.08 

Return on Equity Net Profit after taxes Average Shareholder's 
Equity

 0.01  0.01  0.01 

Trade Receivables Turnovers Ratio Trade Receivable Turnover  0.78  1.25  0.47 
Trade Payables Turnovers Ratio Trade Payable Turnover  1.84  1.74  -0.10 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Share Capital Turnover  1.79  2.44  0.64 
Net Profit Ratio Net Profit before Tax Revenue  0.02  0.08  0.06 
Return on Capital Employed Earning before Interest and Taxes # Capital Employed  0.01  0.03  0.01 

	 * Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest
	 # Tangible Net Worth + Deferred Tax Liabilities + Lease Liabilities
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27.	 The Company provides Portfolio Management Services (PMS) 
to its clients. Transactions on account of PMS activities are 
carried out exclusively on behalf of PMS clients. Therefore, 
assets and liabilities arising out of the above effectively 
belong to the PMS clients and hence are not reflected in the 
Company’s accounts. Management fees earned/expenditure 
incurred by the Company from this activity is accounted for on 
an accrual basis. 

28.	 The Share Application Money for an amount of Rs. 216.69 
Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 216.69 Lakhs) is outstanding for 
a period of 264 months as at date of Balance Sheet date, 
for which the financial statements are in the process of 
being obtained. The Company has already initiated legal 
proceedings against the other party for recovery of the said 
application money along with interest thereon, under Section 
138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881. At present, the 
matter is pending for hearing before the Hon’ble High Court at 
Mumbai.

29.	 Long-term Deposits which were given to M/s. Shree Rama 
Polysynth Private Ltd and M/s. Vimpsan Investments Private 
Ltd, upto total aggregate amount of Rs. 530.00 lakhs are still 
outstanding as at March 31, 2024. Since the Company is not 
in the receipt of any interest on the said deposits since long 
period, the Company has not accounted any interest income 
on such deposits in the financial statement. The Company is 
in the process to initiate legal proceedings against them for 
recovery of the said deposits.

30.	 In the matter of M/s. Shree Rama Multitech Limited (SRML) in 
relation to recovery of outstanding rental income/license fee 
from SRML, the Hon’ble High Court, Mumbai had passed the 
order/decree in favor of the company during the period October 
2019. Although the company is yet to receive the rental Income 
from SRML. Later, the Company filed the execution application 
in the Small Cause Court during the period April 2022 in 
Mumbai for recovering the pending rental income/license fee 
amount from SRML. The Hon’ble Small Cause Court, Mumbai 
vide its order/decree dated December 7, 2022 shifted the said 
matter to the Hon’ble Civil Court, Gandhinagar for execution to 
recover the outstanding rental income/license fee. At present, 
the matter is pending for hearing before the Hon’ble Civil 
Court, Gandhinagar 

31.	 In the matter of Mr. Hiten Parmar regarding receivable of 
the outstanding amount, the Company had filed the case in 
the month of October 2015 before the panel of arbitrators of 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The panel of 
arbitrators of NSE has considered the matter and passed the 
arbitral in favour of the Company on April 12, 2016. The panel 
of arbitrators directed Mr. Hiten Parmar to pay to the Company 
Rs. 55,85,544.87/- within 30 days from the date of receipt of 
award. However, the Company has not received any such 
amount till date from Mr. Hiten Parmar.  The Company has 
initiated legal action and filed the suit against Mr. Hiten Parmar 
in the Hon’ble District Court, Surat (‘the Court’) for recovery of 
the arbitral award amount.  At present, the matter is pending 
for hearing before the Court. Further, the Company are in 
process of simultaneously filing a complaint with Economic 
Offence Wing (EOW) Mumbai in the aforesaid matter. 

32.	 The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India on September 21, 2023 
passed their final order/verdict in favour of the Company and 
quashed/set aside the Securities Appellate Tribunal’s (“SAT”) 
Order dated 08th March, 2017 (and consequently, the WTM’s 
Order of Securities and Exchange Board of India dated 13th 
May, 2015) pertaining to the suspension of certificate of 
registration of the Company as a stock broker at National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited (Old SEBI Registration No. 
INB230600030) for a period of one month.

33.	 The net deferred tax assets are calculated as follows: 	

	 (Rs. In Thousand )
Particulars Accumulated 

As at  
31st March 

2023

Charge/ 
Credit 

during the 
year

As at  
31st March 

2024

Deferred tax asset:
Provision for doubtful debtors/
advances that are deducted 
for tax purposes when written 
off	

19,945.79 - 19,945.79

Deferred Tax Asset on account 
of Unabsorbed Depreciation

21,650.36 - 21,650.36

Deferred tax liability:
Additional depreciation on fixed 
assets for tax purposes due to 
higher tax depreciation rates

(38,403.88) 356.87 (38,047.01)

Expenses carried forward as 
per books but claimed for tax 
purposes as incurred         

(121.87) - (121.87)

Net Deferred tax Assets/ 
(Liability)	

3,070.40 356.87 3,427.27

34.	 Segment Information

	 For management purposes, the Company is organized into two 
segments - Fee based and Investment/Trading In Stock. The 
Company has considered these two divisions as its business 
segments. 

	 The Fee based division provides financial advisory services 
relating to mergers and acquisitions, equity and debt issue 
management, portfolio management and broking. 

	 Investment and Stock division carries out trading, investing 
and speculation activities in capital markets (debt and equity) 
for the Company.

	 Fixed assets used in the Company’s business are not 
identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are 
used interchangeably between segments and hence the 
fixed assets and depreciation are not allocated to any of the 
reportable segments. 

	 As the entire business operations of the Company are 
conducted only in India, the Company has not reported any 
secondary segment information.
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	 Information about Primary Business Segments

	 (Rs. In Thousand )
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year  Ended 
31st March 

2024

Year Ended 
31st March 

2023
1 Segment Revenue-external
a) Investment / Stock Operations 3453.38 405.65
b) Fee-based Operations 81,716.55 62,238.12
c) Other Unallocated Revenue 1,839.47 2,219.23

Total revenue 87,009.40 64,863.00
2 Segment Result 
a) Investment / Stock Operations 1,670.23 (5,171.22)
b) Fee-based Operations 16,005.60 30,560.09

Total 17,675.83 25,388.87
Less: Interest 2,715.70 3,367.17
Unallocated Expenses less 
unallocated income

(13,320.59) (17,044.40)

Net (Loss) / Profit before Tax & 
prior Period Items

1,639.54 4,977.29

Provision for tax (including deferred 
tax)

(101.10) 535.40

Net (Loss)/Profit after tax for the 
year

1,740.64 4,441.90

Other Comprehensive Income (17.78) 73.10
Total Comprehensive Income 1,722.86 4,515.00
Other Items

3 Segment Assets
a) Investment / Stock Operations 40,202.63 43,110.18
b) Fee-based Operations 2,38,559.96 1,89,779.65
c) Unallocated Corporate Assets 2,03,548.21 2,09,106.76

  4,82,310.79 4,41,996.59
4 Segment Liabilities
a) Investment / Stock Operations 2.44 2.45
b) Fee-based Operations 1,56,185.31 1,03,477.46
c) Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 8,362.65 10,911.74

1,64,550.40 1,14,391.65
5 Depreciation 3,133.90 2,949.70
6 Non cash items other than 

depreciation
a) Investment / Stock operations 332.82 758.39
b) Fee based operations - -

35.	 Earnings per share:			 

	 The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in 
accordance with Ind AS -33 - Earnings Per Share.

	 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net 
profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year. 

	 Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that 
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity 
shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit 
after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares and 
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at year-end.	

(Rs. In Thousand )
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Basic
Numerator used for calculating basic 
earnings per share – Profit after taxation 

1,740.64 4,441.90

Less: Dividend on Cumulative Preference 
share dividend (including dividend tax 
thereon)

- -

Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity 
shareholders

1,740.64 4,441.90

Weighted average number of shares 
used as Denominator for calculating basic 
earnings per share

15,253.81 15,253.81

Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basic earnings per share – (Rs). 0.11 0.29
Diluted
Numerator used for calculating Diluted 
earning per Share-Profit /(Loss) after 
taxation 

1,740.64 4,441.90

Weighted Average Number of Shares used 
as Denominator for calculating Diluted 
Earning per Share

15,253.81 15,253.81

Diluted earnings per Share- (Rs.) 0.11 0.29

36.	 Related Party Disclosures

	 Names of Related Parties:

A)	 Enterprises where control exists

	 Associate Companies:

1.	 Trumonee Financial Ltd.

B)	 Enterprises controlled by the relatives of the Key Managerial 
Personnel:

1.	 Piggero Investments Pvt. Ltd.

2.	 Bentley Investments Pvt. Ltd.

3.	 Khandwala Commodity & Derivatives Pvt. Ltd.

C)	 Key Management Personnel:

1.	 Mr. Paresh J. Khandwala - Managing Director

2.	 Mr. Pranav P. Khandwala - Whole-Time Director/CFO

3.	 Mrs. Bhagyashree P. Khandwala - Non-Executive Director

4.	 Mr. Homiar Vakil - Non-Executive Independent Director

5.	 Mr. Pratik Khandwala - Non-Executive Director

6.	 Mr. Kalpen Shukla - Non-Executive Independent Director

D)	 Relatives of Key Management Personnel:

1.	 Mrs. Daxa P. Khandwala 

2.	 Mrs. Tulsi Khandwala

3.	 Mrs. Brinda P. Khandwala

4.	 Mr. Mayank Khandwala
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	 Transactions with related parties for the year ended  
31st March 2024

	 (Rs. In Thousand)
Transaction 2023-24 2022-23
Brokerage received
Remuneration Paid
Advisory fees paid
Outstanding Balance
Loans and Advance
Sundry Debtors
Sundry Creditors
Investment Associate Companies 

138.10
4,925.00

181.55

-
7,630.87

176.56
33,750.00

81.31
3,693.75

-

-
9130.87

27.73
33,750.00

37.	 As per information and explanation received there are no dues 
payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings as at March 31, 
2024. 

38.	 Transaction in foreign currency: (In Thousand)

	 Foreign Travel Expenses – Rs. 532.89 (Previous year  
Rs. 41.61).

	 Foreign Currency Income – Rs. 13,025.76 (Previous year  
Rs. 3,100.00).

39.	 Debtors include: (In Thousand)

(i)	 Due from a firm in which a director is interested as partner 
- Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil )  

(ii)	 Due from relatives and Enterprises controlled by the 
relatives of the Key Management Personnel Rs. 7,630.87

(iii)	 The above dues have arisen in the normal course of 
business.

40.	 The creditors are largely from receipt of margin money from 
the clients while the debtors reflect the pattern of settlement 
period, wherein year-end date falls within to be settled period.

41.	 Managerial Remuneration:

(i)	 Remuneration to Managing Director (In Thousands)

	 Salary and Other Allowances : Rs. 4,925.00  (P.Y. Rs. 
3,693.75)

(ii)	 Sitting fees to other Directors : Rs. 95.00 (P.Y. Rs. 145.00)

42.	 Liability for Employee benefits has been determined by an 
actuary, appointed for the purpose, in conformity with the 
principles set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 19 ( Ind 
AS 19) the details of which are as hereunder.	

(Rupess In Thousand)
Change in Benefit Obligation: Current Period Previous Period
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the 
beginning of the Period

4,894.05 4,588.42

Interest Cost 364.12 320.27
Current Service Cost 266.12 232.00
Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit) - -
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) - -
Settlement - -
Liability Transfer in - -
Liability Transfer out - -
(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (177.57) (165.88)

(Rupess In Thousand)
Change in Benefit Obligation: Current Period Previous Period
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations-Due to 
change in Demographic Assumptions

- -

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations-Due to 
change in Financial Assumptions

58.22 (104.01)

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations-Due to 
Experience 

(47.65) 23.24

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the 
End of the Period

5,357.30 4,894.05

Fair value of Plan Assets: Current Period Previous Period
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of 
the Period

3,691.89 3,607.56

Interest Income 274.68 251.81
Contributions by the Employer 6.41 6.01
Expected Contribution by the employees - -
Expected Contributions by the Employees - -
(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (177.57) (165.88)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest 
Income

(7.21) (7.67)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the 
Period

3,788.20 3,691.89

Amount Recognized in the Balance 
Sheet:

Current Period Previous Period

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the 
end of the Period)

(5,357.30) (4,894.05)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the 
Period

3,788.20 3,691.89

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (1,569.10) (1,202.16)
Net (Liability) /Asset Recognized in the 
Balance Sheet

(1,569.10) (1,202.16)

Net Interest Cost for Current Period Current Period Previous Period
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the 
Beginning of the Period

4,894.05 4,588.42

(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning 
of the Period)

(3,691.89) (3,607.56)

Net (Liability) /Asset at the Beginning 1,202.16 980.86
Interest Cost 364.12 320.27
(Interest Income) (274.77) (251.81)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period 89.44 68.46

Expenses Recognized in the Income 
Statement: 

Current Period Previous Period

Current Service Cost 	 266.12 	 232.00
Net Interest Cost 89.44 68.46
Past Service Cost - -
(Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -
(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailments And 
Settlements

- -

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rates

- -

Expense Recognized 355.56 300.47
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See accompanying notes ( 1 to 44 ) to the Financial Statements.
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants Khandwala Securities Limited 
FRN No. 130521W 

Aniket Kulkarni Homiar N. Vakil Paresh J. Khandwala 
Proprietor Chairman Managing Director 
Mem. No: 127246 DIN: 05210178 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala Abhishek Joshi 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO Company Secretary 
DIN: 00519113 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date : - 18th May, 2024 Date : - 18th May, 2024

Balance Sheet Reconciliation Current Period Previous Period
Opening Net Liability 1,202.16 980.86
Expense Recognized in Statement of 
Profit or Loss

355.56 300.47

Expense Recognized in OCI 17.78 (73.10)
Net Liability/ (Asset) Transfer in - -
Net Liability/ (Asset) Transfer out - -
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -
(Employer’s Contribution) (6.41) (6.06)
Net Liability /(Asset) Recognized in 
Balance Sheet

1569.10 1202.16

Category of Assets Current Period Previous Period
Government of India Assets - -
State Government Securities - -
Special Deposits Scheme - -
Debts Instruments - -
Corporate Bonds - -
Cash And Cash Equivalents - -
Insurance Fund 3,788.20 3,691.89
Other - -
Total 3,788.20 3,691.89

Expenses Recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Income OCI for Current 
Period 

Current Period Previous Period

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligation for 
the Period

10.57 (80.77)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest 
Income

7.21 7.67

Change in Asset Ceiling - -
Net (Income)/ Expense for the Period 
Recongnized in OCI

17.78 (73.10)

Assumptions Current Period Previous Period
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.19% 7.44%
Rate of Discounting 7.19% 7.44%
Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 5.00% 5.00%

Other Details Current Period Previous Period
No. Of Active Members 35 35
Per Month Salary For Active Member 811.80 734.13
Weighted Average Duration of the 
Projected Benefit Obligation

- 6

Average Expected Future Service - 10
Projected Benefit Obligation 5,357.30 4,894.05
Prescribed Contribution for next year (12 
Months)

811.80 734.13

	 Note:-

	 Gratuity is payable as per company’s scheme as detailed in 
the report.

	 Actuarial Gain/ Loss are recognized in the period of occurrence 
under other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

	 All above reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation.

	 Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised 
by the company; they appear to be in line with the industry 
practice considering promotion and demand & supply of the 
employees.

	 Maturity Analysis of Benefit payments is undiscounted cash 
flows considering future salary, attrition & death in respective 
year for members as mentioned above.

	 Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term 
of Post- Employment Benefit Obligation.

	 Value of asset provided by the client is considered as fair 
value of plan asset for the period of reporting as same is not 
evaluated by us.

43.	 Contingent Liabilities: -

i)	 Contingent Liabilities on account of disputed cases 
pending before various authorities of   Income Tax Act 
is annexed below. No provision has been made in the 
books of accounts as the outcome is still awaited:     

	 (Rs. In Thousand)
Name of the 

Statute
Nature of 
the Dues

Amount Period to 
which the 

amount relates

Forum where 
Dispute is 
pending

Under 
Section

Income Tax 
Act 1961

Income 
Tax

496.27 A.Y. 2007-08 Mumbai High 
Court

143(3)

ii)	 Preference dividends are in arrears from F.Y. 2008-09 to 
F.Y.2020-21 as aggregating to Rs. 2.49 Crores.

iii)	 TDS defaults showing on TDS traces website for the 
various Financial Years as on 31st March 2024 has been 
reviewed and there is no possible demand arising due 
to that. The Company is under process of rectifying the 
defaults by revising the TDS returns.

44.	 The figures for the previous period have been regrouped, 
rearranged or reclassified wherever necessary to conform to 
the current period’s presentation.

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KHANDWALA SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of “Khandwala Securities Limited”, (the Company) and 
its associates (the Company and its associates together referred 
to as the group) which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view except for the effects of the matters  described in the Basis 
for qualified opinion section of our report, in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2024, the consolidated profit and consolidated total 
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. However we draw your kind attention to the following 
qualifications to the audit opinion of the consolidated financial 
statements produced as under:-

1.	 The Company had advanced application money towards 
purchase of shares of Rs 216.69 lakhs which is outstanding 
for a period of 264 months as at the end of the year. In the 
absence of information regarding the status of the allotment 
or the net worth of the entities in which the company made 
applications, we are unable to ascertain the extent to which 
an amount of Rs 216.69 lakhs is recoverable and accordingly, 
the effect thereof on the financial statements cannot be 
ascertained. However, it has been noted and confirmed after 
looking at relevant documents that at present the said matter 
is under litigation and pending for hearing before the Hon’ble 
High Court of Mumbai.

2.	 Long-Term deposits to various companies of Rs 530.00 lakhs 
are subject to subsequent adjustments. We are unable to 
ascertain the recoverability of these amounts, as the Company 
has not made any provisions for the same in the consolidated 
financial statements.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of 
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, is representations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 
we report that: 

a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including 
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as 
amended. 

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act. 

f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the 
year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act. 
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h) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations 
on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements. 

ii. 	 The Company has made provision, as required under 
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts. 

iii. 	 There are no amounts which were required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.	 Based on our examination which included test checks, the 
company has used an accounting software for maintaining 
its books of account which has a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across 
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

	 As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for 
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024.

2	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Aniket Kulkarni& Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Registration No. 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
(Proprietor) 
Membership No.127246

Place: Mumbai                                                                          
Date:- 18th May 2024 
UDIN: 24127246BKATJC7490
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Report on the Internal Financial Control s under clause (i) of 
sub – section 3 of  Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over financial 
reporting of Khandwala Securities Limited (“the Company”) as 
of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial 
Reporting issued by the ICAI. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and 
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
have conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the standards on auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 

control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that 

(1) 	 pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) 	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) 	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

Because of inherent limitations of internal controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatement due to 
error or fraud may occur and not to be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
effectively as at 31st March,2024, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accounts of 
India. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Registration No. 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
Proprietor	  
Membership No:  - 127246

Place: Mumbai 
Date: - 18th May 2024 
UDIN: 24127246BKATJC7490

Annexure-A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report – 31st March 2024
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(As referred to in Paragraph 2 of Report on Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of our report Companies (Auditors Report) Order’ 
2020 (the order) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act for the year ended on 
31st March 2024).

To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the company and books of accounts and records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, we state that:- 

Property, Plant and Equipment: 

(i)	 (a) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The Company has a regular programme of physical 
verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are 
verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this 
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the Company.

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment’s (including Right of Use assets) or 
Intangible Assets or both during the year end. 

	 (e)	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or 
are pending against the company for holding any Benami 
property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the 
year end. 

(ii)	 Inventories:

	 The company does not have any inventory and hence reporting 
under clause (ii) of the CARO 2020 is not applicable.

	 Loans and Advances to Related Parties:

(iii)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the company has not made any investments, provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances, in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 
other parties.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given 

to us, the company has not made any investments, 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans 
or advances. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (b) of the Order 
is not applicable.

	 (c) 	 The company has not provided any loans and advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (c) of 
the Order is not applicable.

	 (d) 	 The company has not provided any loans and advances 
in the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (d) of 
the Order is not applicable.

	 (e) 	 The company has not granted any loans and advances in 
the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the 
Order is not applicable.

	 (f) 	 The company has not granted any loans and advances in 
the nature of loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (f) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the 
loans and investments made.  

	 Acceptance of Deposits:

(v)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not accepted deposits under the provisions 
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act and the rules framed there under.

	 Maintenance of Cost Records:-

(vi)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost 
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	 Payment of Statutory Dues:-

(vii)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the books of 
accounts, the company has generally been regular in 
depositing with appropriate authorities the undisputed 
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues 
applicable to it during the year.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, there were no amounts of Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues 
have not been deposited by the Company on account of 
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any dispute. The Company is under process of rectifying 
the defaults by revising the TDS returns and except as 
reported below:-

Name of the
Statute

Nature of 
the Dues

Amount
(Rs. in 
lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
Dispute is 
pending

Under 
Section

Income Tax 
Act 1961  

I n c o m e 
Tax 

4.96 A.Y. 2007-08 Mumbai High 
Court

143(3)

Unrecorded Income:

(viii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income in 
the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961) in respect of any transaction nor recorded in the books 
of accounts during the year.

	 Repayment of Borrowings:

(ix)	 (a) 	 The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to 
banks or financial institution. 

	 (b) 	 The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or other lender.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the term loans are applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained.

	 (d) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, funds raised on short term basis have not been 
utilized for long term purposes during the year.

	 (e) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the 
year.

	 (f) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies.

	 Initial Public Offer:

(x)	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations provided 
to us and as per the records of the company examined 
by us, company has not raised funds by way of public 
issue/ follow-on offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans. Therefore paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not 
applicable to the company.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations give to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) 
during the year. 

	 Frauds:

(xi)	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the course of our 
audit. 

	 (b) 	 No material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (c) 	 No material fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 Nidhi Company:

(xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

	 Transactions with related parties:-

(xiii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

	 Internal Audit:

(xiv)	(a)	  In our opinion, the company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business.

	 (b) 	 We have taken into consideration, the internal audit 
reports for the period under audit issued to the company 
till the date while determining the nature, timing and 
extent of audit procedures.

	 Non-Cash Transactions with Directors:-

(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

	 Registration with RBI:-

(xvi)	The Company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
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	 Cash Losses:-

(xvii)	The company has profit for the year ended 31st March 
2024, therefore the paragraph 3(xvii) is not applicable to the 
company. 

	 Resignation of Statutory Auditors:-

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year.

	 Material Uncertainty:-

(xix)	On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates 
of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors 
and management plans, in our opinion no material uncertainty 
exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. 

	 Corporate Social Responsibility:

(xx)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to 
the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xx) of the Order is not 
applicable.

	 Consolidated Financial Statements:-

(xxi)	With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) 
and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the 
“Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms 
of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s 
report, according to the information and explanations given 
to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the 
Company and its Associates included in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under 
CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications 
or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Registration No. 130521W

Aniket Kulkarni 
Proprietor	  
Membership No:  - 127246

Place: Mumbai 
Date: - 18th May 2024 
UDIN: 24127246BKATJC7490
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
(Rupees in Thousands)

 Particulars  Note 
 No. 

 As At 
 March 31, 2024 

 As At 
 March 31, 2023 

 A ASSETS
 (1) Non Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  53,134.56  52,059.95 
(b) Intangible assets  2,245.72  2,861.68 
(c) Goodwill on Consolidation  25,976.62  25,976.62 
(d) Financial Assets

(i) 	 Investments 3  1,969.24  5,223.94 
(ii) 	 Loans and Advances 4  2,02,182.26  97,796.62 
(iii) 	Others 5  21,668.64  21,668.64 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net)  3,427.27  3,070.40 
(f) Other non-current assets 6  1,010.00  15,210.00 

 3,11,614.31  2,23,867.84 
 (2) Current Assets 

(a) Finaincal Assests
(i) 	 Stock In Trade 7  28,737.25  15,189.58 
(ii) 	 Trade receivables 8  66,472.94  78,384.74 
(iii) 	Cash and cash equivalents 9  643.20  245.83 
(iv) 	Bank balances other than (iii) above 10  6,099.57  49,762.08 
(v) 	 Loans and Advances 11  51,441.05  55,913.01 
(vi) 	Other current assets 12  11,047.72  12,381.89 

 1,64,441.73  2,11,877.12 
Total Assets  4,76,056.04  4,35,744.96 

 B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 (1) Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 13  1,52,538.05  1,52,538.05 
(b) Other Equity 14  1,44,274.88  1,42,385.62 
Total Equity  2,96,812.93  2,94,923.67 

 (2) Non Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) 	 Borrowings 15  14,679.78  26,090.90 
(b) Provisions 16  1,569.10  1,214.14 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 17  455.73  424.73 
 Total Non Current Liabilities  16,704.60  27,729.78 

 (3) Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade payables 18  1,56,572.27  1,09,176.56 
(b) Other current liabilities 19  5,966.23  3,914.95 
Total Current Liabilities  1,62,538.51  1,13,091.52 
Total Equity And Liabilities  4,76,056.04  4,35,744.96 

 See accompanying notes ( 1 to 46 ) to the Financial Statements. 
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 130521W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Khandwala Securities Limited 

Aniket Kulkarni
Proprietor
Mem. No: 127246

Homiar N. Vakil 
Chairman 
DIN: 05210178 

 Paresh J. Khandwala 
 Managing Director 
 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO 
DIN: 00519113 

 Abhishek Joshi 
 Company Secretary 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date :- 18th May 2024 Date : - 18th May 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rupees in Thousands)

Particulars  Note  For the year ended 
 March 31, 2024 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 I Revenue from Operations 20  85,169.93  62,643.77 
 II Other Income 21  1,839.99  2,219.50 
 III Total Income  87,009.92  64,863.27 
 IV Expenses 

Cost of materials consumed  -  - 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  -  - 
Changes in inventories of finished goods 22  332.82  758.39 
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress  -  - 
Employee benefits expense 23  25,607.55  24,897.12 
Finance costs 24  2,715.70  3,367.17 
Depreciation and amortization expense  3,133.90  2,949.70 
Other expenses 25  53,582.08  27,923.25 
Total Expenses  85,372.03  59,895.64 

 V Profit/(Loss) before Tax and prior period items  1,637.89  4,967.63 
 VI Exceptional Iterms  -  - 
 VII Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary items and tax ( V - VI )  1,637.89  4,967.63 
 VIII Extraordinary items  -  - 
 IX Porfit/(Loss) before Tax ( VII - VIII )  1,637.89  4,967.63 
 X Tax Expense 

(1) 	 Current Tax  -  - 
(2) 	 MAT Tax  255.77  921.00 
(3) 	 Deferred Tax (Credited)/ Charged  (356.87)  (385.61) 

 XI Profit / (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations  1,738.99  4,432.24 
 XII Profit / (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations  -  - 
 XIII Tax Expense of Discountinuing Operations  -  - 
 XIV Profit / (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations (after tax) (XII -XIII)  -  - 
 XV Profit (Loss) for the period (XI +XIV )  1,738.99  4,432.24 
 XVI Other Comprehensive Income

A 	 (i) 	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (17.78)  73.10 
	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 

or loss
 -  - 

B 	 (i) 	 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 
	 (ii) 	 Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or 

loss
 -  - 

 XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV)  1,721.21  4,505.34 
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income 
for the period) 

 XVIII Earnings Per Share of - Basic (Rs.) 
- 	 Basic (Rs.)  0.11  0.29 
- 	 Diluted (Rs.)  0.11  0.29 

 See accompanying notes ( 1 to 46 ) to the Financial Statements. 
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 130521W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Khandwala Securities Limited 

Aniket Kulkarni
Proprietor
Mem. No: 127246

Homiar N. Vakil 
Chairman 
DIN: 05210178 

 Paresh J. Khandwala 
 Managing Director 
 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO 
DIN: 00519113 

 Abhishek Joshi 
 Company Secretary 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date :- 18th May 2024 Date : - 18th May 2024
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(Rupees in Thousands)

 Particulars For the Year ended  
March 31, 2024

For the Year ended  
March 31, 2023

A. Cash flow from operational activities 
Net (Loss)/Profit before tax adjusted for prior period items 
and excess provisions for tax written back  1,637.89  4,967.63 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation  3,133.90  2,949.70 
Interest Income  (1,632.67)  (1,278.30) 
Finance Cost  2,715.70  3,367.17 
Unrealised Gains On Mark to Market of F&O Stock  -  (38.37) 
Provision for Dimunition in Investments/ Stock  332.82  758.39 
Other Comprehensive Expenses  (17.78)  73.10 
Interest on Income Tax Refund  (87.57)  (409.49) 
Provision for MAT  (87.71)  (1,020.18) 
Sundry Debit Balance written off  9,617.58  - 
Dividend Income  (101.07)  (123.48) 

 13,873.18  4,278.57 
 15,511.07  9,246.20 

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:

Inventories  (680.49)  (4,258.49) 
Trade Receivables & Other Receivables  (82,085.29)  14,960.91 
Current Liabilities & Provision  49,832.94  (32,932.84)  (92,302.26)  (81,599.84) 

Cash generated from operations  (17,421.77)  (72,353.65) 
Direct taxes Refunded / (paid)  -  - 
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities  (17,421.77)  (72,353.65) 

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Sale / (Purchase) of fixed assets (Net)  (3,592.56)  (5,910.14) 
Sale/ (Purchase) of Investments (Net of purchase)  3,254.71  302.17 
Investment in Fixed Deposit  (13,200.00)  (11,050.00) 
Interest received  1,720.24  1,470.24 
Dividend received  101.07  117.98 
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities  (11,716.55)  (15,069.75) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities
(Repayment)/Proceeds from long term borrowings(Net)  1,801.62  (2,086.23) 
(Repayment)/Proceeds from Preference shares  -  89,499.74 
(Repayment)/Proceeds from short term borrowings(Net)  -  - 
Interest and other Finance charges  (2,715.70)  (3,367.17) 
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (914.08)  84,046.34 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (30,052.40)  (3,377.06) 
Cash and Cash equivalents (opening balance)  26,669.36  30,046.41 
Cash and Cash equivalents (closing balance)  (3,383.04)  26,669.36 

 (30,052.40)  (3,377.06) 

See accompanying notes ( 1 to 46 ) to the Financial Statements. 
As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 130521W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Khandwala Securities Limited 

Aniket Kulkarni
Proprietor
Mem. No: 127246

Homiar N. Vakil 
Chairman 
DIN: 05210178 

 Paresh J. Khandwala 
 Managing Director 
 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO 
DIN: 00519113 

 Abhishek Joshi 
 Company Secretary 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date :- 18th May 2024 Date : - 18th May 2024
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE NO.1

A. 	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

	 Khandwala Securities Limited (“the Company”) is a Public 
Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, applicable in India. The Company is domiciled 
in India and addresses of its registered office and principal 
place of business are disclosed in the introduction to the 
annual report. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and 
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE).

	 The Company engaged in the business of providing Stock 
Broking Services, Investment Banking, Portfolio Management 
Service, Research Analysts and Investment Advisory Services. 

	 The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (“SEBI”) under the Stock brokers and sub-
brokers Regulations, 1992 and is as a Member of BSE and 
NSE. It is also registered as a Depository Participant with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited.     

B.	 Significant Accounting Policies

	 Basis of Preparation 

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. 

	 Historical Cost

	 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis except for following assets and liabilities which have 
been measured at fair value amount:

i)	 Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative 
instruments),

ii)	 Defined benefit plans - plan assets and

iii)	 Equity settled share based payments

	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in 
conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles 
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the 
date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results 
could differ from the estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future 
periods. 

	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenues 
can be reliably measured. Income from capital market 
operations (non-delivery based transactions) is accounted for 
on sale of securities. Income from Merchant Banking services, 
Brokerage and income from corporate advisory services are 
accounted for as and when the relevant services are rendered 
except where the recovery is uncertain in which case it is 
accounted for on receipt. Interest income is accounted for 
on accrual basis except where the recovery is uncertain, in 
which case it is accounted for on receipt. Dividend income is 
accounted for when the unconditional right to receive dividend 
is established.

	 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

	 The company has used the following rates to provide 
depreciation on its non-current assets.

Class of asset Estimated useful Life 
 (In Years)

Tangible Fixed Assets :
Building 60
Office equipment’s 5
Computers 3
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Plant and Machinery 15
Intangible Fixed Assets :
Computer Software 6

	 Investments

	 Investments are classified into current investments and non-
current investments. Investments, which are intended to 
be held for one year or more, are classified as non-current 
investments and investments, which are intended to be held 
for less than one year, are classified as current investments. 

	 Non-current investments are carried at cost less provision for 
diminution, other than temporary. 

	 Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value. 
The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in 
respect of eachinvestment. 

	 Inventories

	 Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost and market value. 
While determining market value, due consideration has been 
given to shares which have become ex-rights/ex-bonus at the 
year- end for which rights/bonus shares have been received 
subsequent to year end.

	 Foreign currency transactions

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of 
exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the 
year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss of the 
year. 

	 Employee benefits

	 Short Term Employee Benefits

	 The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by 
employees are recognized as an expense during the period 
when the employees render the services.

	 Post-Employment Benefits

	 Defined Contribution Plans

	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan under which the Company pays specified contributions 
to a separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly 
contributions towards Provident Fund, Superannuation 
Fund and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is 
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
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during the period in which the employee renders the related 
service.

	 Defined Benefit Plans

	 The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has 
completed five years of service with the Company at the time 
of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days 
salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment 
of Gratuity Act 1972.

	 The gratuity liability amount is contributed to the approved 
gratuity fund formed exclusively for gratuity payment to 
employees. The gratuity fund has been approved by respective 
IT authorities.

	 The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment 
benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method 
and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected 
to be derived from employees’ services.

	 Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-
employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

	 Employee Separation Costs

	 Compensation to employees who have opted for retirement 
under the voluntary retirement scheme of the Company 
payable in the year of exercise of option by the employee. 
The Company recognizes the employee separation cost when 
the scheme is announced and the Company is demonstrably 
committed to it.

	 Tax Expenses

	 The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred 
tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except tothe extent that it relates to items recognized in the 
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is 
also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

	 Current Tax

	 Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit.

	 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end 
of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax 
liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period.

	 Derivative Instruments

	 Initial / additional margin paid for futures / options is included 
under the head current assets. Contracts are marked to market 
in accordance with the prevalent regulations and the amount 
receivable or payable is disclosed under the head current 
assets or current liabilities, as the case may be. The profit 
or loss on settlement of derivative contracts is recognized in 
the Profit and Loss account. As on the balance sheet date, 
provision for loss on futures contracts is made to the extent 
of mark to market margins paid, while for open options, to the 
extent premium paid exceeds premium prevailing on that date.  

	 Provisions:

	 A provision is recognized when the company has a present 
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

	 Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

	 Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow 
statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and fixed 
deposits.

	 Current / Non Current Classification

	 An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of 
the following criteria:—

(a)	 it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or 
consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c)	 it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the 
reporting date; or

(d)	 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting date.

	 All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

	 A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of 
the following criteria:—

(a)	 it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal 
operating cycle;

(b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c)	 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting date; or

(d)	 the company does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the 
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

	 All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 2- Property, Plant and Equipment  (Rupees in Thousands) 
Particulars  Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

 As At 
01-Apr-23

Additions
during the 

period

Deductions 
during the 

period

 As At 
31-Mar-24

As At 
01-Apr-23

For the 
period

As At 
31-Mar-24

 As At 
31-Mar-24

As At 
31st March 

23
Property, Plant and 
Equipment
Office Buildings *  81,905.67  -  -  81,905.67  34,067.76  1,376.62  35,444.38  46,461.29  47,837.91 
Computers  3,155.06  713.92  -  3,868.98  2,122.33  524.78  2,647.11  1,221.88  1,032.74 
Office Equipments  2,471.88  143.52  -  2,615.40  1,912.01  200.64  2,112.66  502.75  559.86 
Furniture and Fixtures  513.23  -  -  513.23  499.18  4.30  503.48  9.75  14.04 
Vehicles  6,660.00  2,719.92  -  9,379.92  4,100.09  396.40  4,496.49  4,883.42  2,559.91 
Plant & Machinery 
(Computer)

 1,109.58  -  -  1,109.58  1,054.10  -  1,054.10  55.48  55.48 

 95,815.42  3,577.36  -  99,392.78  43,755.47  2,502.74  46,258.22  53,134.56  52,059.95 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software  4,147.42  15.20  -  4,162.62  1,285.74  631.15  1,916.90  2,245.72  2,861.68 
Total  99,962.84  3,592.56  - 1,03,555.40  45,041.21  3,133.90  48,175.11  55,380.29  54,921.62 
Previous Year  94,052.70  5,910.14  -  99,962.84  42,091.51  2,949.70  45,041.21  54,921.62 

 (Rupees in Thousands) 
 Particulars  Face 

 Value 
As at  

March 31, 2024 
 As at 

 March 31, 2023 
 Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS 
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments measured at Cost
Quoted, fully paid up
Vodafone Idea Ltd  10  1,12,910  1,964.24  3,00,000  5,218.94 

 1,964.24  5,218.94 
In Equity Shares
Unquoted, fully paid up
Kowa Spinning Limited  10  10,08,000  21,358.20  10,08,000  21,358.20 
Vadodara Stock Exchange Limited  10  500  5.00  500  5.00 

 21,363.20  21,363.20 
 23,327.44  26,582.14 

Less : Provision for diminution  21,358.20  21,358.20 
 TOTAL  1,969.24  5,223.94 

 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE - 4 LOANS 
Deposits with exchange & other  1,49,182.26  44,796.62 
Deposit with Companies  53,000.00  53,000.00 

 TOTAL  2,02,182.26  97,796.62 
NOTE - 5 OTHERS 
Share Application  21,668.64  21,668.64 

 TOTAL  21,668.64  21,668.64 
NOTE - 6 OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS 
Advance Payment of Tax  1,010.00  2,010.00 
In Fixed Deposit Accounts  -  13,200.00 

 TOTAL  1,010.00  15,210.00 
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 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 7 - CURRENT INVESTMENT 
Investment In Equity Shares -(Refer Appendix 7-A)  4,487.25  4,139.58 
Investment In Fixed Deposit  24,250.00  11,050.00 

 TOTAL  28,737.25  15,189.58 

Appendix 7-A  (Rupees in Thousands) 
NAME OF THE SCRIP As at

March 31, 2024
As at

March 31, 2023
Number  Rs. Number  Rs. 

Equity Shares :
Creative Casting Ltd  1,500  1,016.55  500  224.98 
Dabur India Ltd  1,500  784.73  -  - 
Deccan Granite Ltd  20,300  37.56  20,300  37.56 
G R Magnets Ltd  7,100  -  7,100  - 
ICSA (India) Ltd  3,000  0.60  3,000  0.60 
IIFL Fin Ltd  1,000  340.10  -  - 
LIC MF Liquid Plus Fund  17,287  196.20  16,350  184.31 
National Fertilizers Limited  10,000  876.00 - -
NRB Bearing Ltd  164  22.35  164  22.35 
NRB Industrial Bearing Ltd  49  1.06  49  1.06 
Omax Auto Ltd  10  0.73  25,010  990.40 
Rattan India Enterprises Ltd  5,000  346.00  -  - 
Saraswat Co-Op Bank  2,550  25.50  2,550  25.50 
Setech Electronics Ltd  2,70,000  0.00  2,70,000  0.00 
Sharp Industries Ltd  2,210  10.48  2,210  10.48 
Steel City Securities Ltd  3,500  258.89  -  - 
Unichem Laboratories Ltd  -  -  5,000  1,448.50 
United Breweries Ltd  300  519.65 - -
UTI Top 100 Funds  1,000  6.21  1,000  6.21 
Vedanta Ltd  5,000  44.65  1,750  480.29 
Yes Bank  -  -  47,000  707.35 

 TOTAL  4,487.25  4,139.58 

 (Rupees in Thousands) 
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 8 - Trade Receivables 
(Unsecured & Considered Good) 
Outstanding for more than six months 
Considered good  66,445.33  59,819.86 
Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  4,601.13  - 

 61,844.20  59,819.86 
Outstanding for Less than Six Months 
Considered good  4,628.74  18,564.88 
Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  - 

 4,628.74  18,564.88 
 TOTAL  66,472.94  78,384.74 

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 (Rupees in Thousands) 
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 9 - Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand  643.20  245.83 

 TOTAL  643.20  245.83 
NOTE 10 - BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Balance with Scheduled Banks: 
In Current Accounts  6,099.57  49,762.08 

 TOTAL  6,099.57  49,762.08 
NOTE 11 - LOANS AND ADVANCES 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 
Employees  1,411.68  265.45 
Prepaid Expenses  2,629.89  1,510.09 
ICD -Short Term Loan  27,707.00  - 
Advance to Sundry Creditors  18,106.24  39,256.10 
Exchanges Fines  1,340.48  6,950.00 
Exchange Obligation -Receivable  245.75  7,931.37 

 TOTAL  51,441.05  55,913.01 
NOTE 12 - OTHER CURRENTS ASSETS 
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit  2,09,703  2,06,642 
Advance for Expenses  2,92,141  14,71,150 
Income Tax  26,36,376  23,22,309 
Unbilled Revenue A/c  60,00,000  60,00,000 
Balance with GST Authorities  19,09,497  23,81,790 

TOTAL  1,10,47,717  1,23,81,890 

 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Nos  Amount  Nos  Amount 
NOTE 13 - SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised 
1,70,00,000 (P.Y. 14,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 
10/- each 

 1,70,00,000  1,70,000.00  1,40,00,000  1,40,000.00 

500,000 (P.Y. 500,000) Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference 

 5,00,000  50,000.00  5,00,000  50,000.00 

Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
400,000 (P.Y.400,000) Cumulative Convertible 
Preference 

 4,00,000  40,000.00  4,00,000  40,000.00 

Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
2,00,000 (P.Y. 2,00,000) Optionally Convertible 
Redeemable Preference 

 2,00,000  20,000.00  2,00,000  20,000.00 

Shares of Rs. 100/- each 
 TOTAL  1,81,00,000  2,80,000.00  1,51,00,000  2,50,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 
Equity Share Capital 
1,52,53,805 (P. Y. 1,52,53,805) Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
fully paid-up 

 1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05 

 TOTAL  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05 
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 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Nos  Amount  Nos  Amount 
Reconciliation Of Shares 
Equity shares with voting rights 
Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,19,39,000  1,19,390.00 
Add: Issue of fresh shares during the year  -  -  33,14,805  33,148.05 
Balance as at the end of the year  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05  1,52,53,805  1,52,538.05 

b) List of Share Holders Holding More than 5% of the total number of shares issued by the Company
Name of Equity Share Holder  Number 

 of Shares 
 Percentage 

 Shareholding 
 Number 

 of Shares 
 Percentage 

 Shareholding 
Jayantilal Khandwala & Sons Pvt. Ltd.  17,33,321 11.36%  17,33,321 11.36%
Bentley Investments Pvt Ltd  14,40,968 9.45%  14,40,968 9.45%
Daxa Paresh Khandwala  13,02,058 8.54%  13,02,058 8.54%
Pratik Paresh Khandwala  7,96,555 5.22%  7,96,555 5.22%

Terms / Rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. In the event of the liquidation of the Company, the holder of the equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining 
assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity 
shares held by the shareholders. The Company declares and pay dividend in Indian Rupees.

Shares held by Promotes/ Promoters Group at the end of the Year
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023
% Change in 
Share holding 
during the year Nos  %  Nos  % 

Paresh Jayantilal Khandwala (HUF)  2,65,103 1.74%  2,65,103 1.74% 0.00%
 Pratik Paresh Khandwala  7,96,555 5.22%  7,96,555 5.22% 0.00%
 Tulsi Paresh Khandwala  3,03,958 1.99%  3,03,958 1.99% 0.00%
 Pranav Paresh Khandwala  7,08,617 4.65%  7,08,617 4.65% 0.00%
 Mayank Ashok Khandwala  14,453 0.09%  14,453 0.09% 0.00%
 Jatin Ashok Khandwala  16,953 0.11%  16,953 0.11% 0.00%
 Leena Mayank Khandwala  54,740 0.36%  54,740 0.36% 0.00%
 Daxa Paresh Khandwala  13,02,058 8.54%  13,02,058 8.54% 0.00%
 Ramila Ashok Khandwala  2,127 0.01%  2,127 0.01% 0.00%
 Sonal Jatin Khandwala  126 0.00%  126 0.00% 0.00%
 Paresh Jayantilal Khandwala  2,12,733 1.40%  2,02,407 1.33% 0.07%
 Bhagyashree Pranav Khandwala  50,180 0.33%  1,33,980 0.88% -0.55%
 Bentley Investments Pvt Ltd  14,40,968 9.45%  14,40,968 9.45% 0.00%
 Jayantilal Khandwala & Sons Pvt. Ltd.  17,33,321 11.36%  17,33,321 11.36% 0.00%
 Piggero Investments Private Limited  2,98,486 1.96%  2,94,986 1.93% 0.03%
 Khandwala Commodity And Derivatives Pvt. Ltd.  84,676 0.56%  875 0.01% 0.55%

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 14 - Other Equity 
Share Premium  1,04,624.69  1,04,624.69 
Capital Redemption Reserve  34,000.00  34,000.00 
Profit & Loss Account 
As per last Balance Sheet  3,760.93  (645.23) 
Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss Account  1,721.21  4,505.34 
Provision for MAT  168.06  (99.18) 

 5,650.19  3,760.93 
 TOTAL  1,44,274.88  1,42,385.62 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31.03.2024

A. 	 Equity Share Capital
Rupees in Thousands

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period Changes in equity share 
capital during the year

Balance at the end of the 
reporting period

                                                          15,253.81                        -                    15,253.81 

B. 	 Other Equity
	 Rupees in Thousands

Share 
application 

money 
pending 

allotment

Equity 
component 

of compound 
financial 

instruments

Reserves and Surplus Debt 
instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges

Revaluation 
Surplus

Exchange 
differences 

on translating 
the financial 
statements 
of a foreign 
operation

Other items 
of Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (specify 

nature)

Money 
received 
against 
share 

warrants

Total

Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Share 
Premium 

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at the beginning of 
the reporting period

 -  -  -  34,000.00 1,04,624.69  -  3,760.93  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,42,385.62 

Changes in accounting 
policy or prior period errors

 -  -  -  -  -  -  168.06  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  168.06 

Restated balance at the 
beginning of the reporting 
period

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

 -  -  -  -  -  -  1,721.21  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,721.21 

Dividends  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Transfer to retained 
earnings

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Any other change (to be 
specified)

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of the 
reporting period

 -  -  -  34,000.00 1,04,624.69  -  5,650.19  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 1,44,274.88 

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 15 - BORROWINGS 
Secured 
Canara Bank Overdraft Account  10,125.80  23,338.54 
Vehicle Loan (Secured by hypothecation of vehicle)  3,294.94  1,493.33 
(Terms of payment 60 Months EMI Rs.39,144/- P.M. Interest Rate @8.70% and 
60 Months EMI Rs.54,482/- P.M. Interest Rate @ 8.90%)  13,420.74  24,831.87 
Unsecured 
Yukti Securities Ltd.  1,259.04  1,259.04 

 1,259.04  1,259.04 
 TOTAL  14,679.78  26,090.90 

 (Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 16 - PROVISIONS 
Provision for Gratuity  1,569.10  1,202.16 
Provision for Leave Encashment  -  11.98 

 TOTAL  1,569.10  1,214.14 
NOTE 17 - OTHER NON CURRENTS LIABILITIES 
Security Deposits  455.73  424.73 

 TOTAL  455.73  424.73 
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(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 18 - TRADE PAYABLE 
Dues of Creditors Other Than Micro & Small Enterprises 
Undisputed. Considered Good, Unsecured (Less than 180 Days)  1,49,430.17  1,02,291.09 
Considered Doubtful 
Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  -  - 

 1,49,430.17  1,02,291.09 
Dues of Creditors Other Than Micro & Small Enterprises 
Undisputed, Considered Good, Unsecured (More than 180 Days)  7,142.10  6,885.47 
Considered Doubtful 
Less :- Provision for Doubtful Debtors  -  - 

 7,142.10  6,885.47 
Total Trade Payables  1,56,572.27  1,09,176.56 

1. 	 Confirmation of Balances from parties under Trade Payables has not been received by the company. These balances have therefore 
been taken as per the Books of Accounts of the company which is subject to confirmation, reconciliation & adjustments if any. 

2. 	 The SSI status of the creditors is not known to the company, hence the entire trade payable is shown as “Trade Payable-due to other 
micro and small enterprises”

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  As At 

March 31, 2024
 As At 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 19 - OTHER CURRENTS LIABILITIES 
Payable to Employees  1,521.87  1,030.70 
Statutory Dues  2,939.63  1,308.61 
Provoision for MAT  255.77  921.00 
Other Expenses Liabilities  452.49  330.31 
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt  796.47  324.33 

 TOTAL  5,966.23  3,914.95 

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 20 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
Sale of Services 
Brokerage  46,511.04  30,446.59 
Corporate Advisory Services  35,205.51  31,791.53 
Income from Capital Market Operations  3,453.38  405.65 

 TOTAL  85,169.93  62,643.77 

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 21 - OTHER INCOME 
Interest on Fixed deposits with Banks  1,632.67  1,278.30 
[Tax deducted at source Rs.-1,63,267/- P.Y.Rs. 1,27,829/-) 
Dividend :- On stock in trade  101.07  123.20 
Interest on Income Tax Refund  87.57  409.49 
Unrealised Gains/(Loss) On Mark to Market of F&O Stock  -  38.37 
Other Income  18.68  369.87 

 TOTAL  1,839.99  2,219.23 
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(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE 22 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS 
Loss on Stock Valuation  332.82  758.39 

 TOTAL  332.82  758.39 
NOTE 23 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 
Salaries and Bonus  19,153.03  19,536.93 
Managing Director's Remuneration  4,925.00  3,693.75 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds  648.74  710.88 
Staff Welfare Expenses  514.05  655.10 
Gratuity  366.73  300.47 

 TOTAL  25,607.55  24,897.12 

(Rupees in Thousands)
Particulars  For the year ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
NOTE - 24 FINANCE COST 
Interest Expense  2,141.55  2,856.23 
Bank Guarantee Commission and Other Charges  574.14  510.94 

 TOTAL  2,715.70  3,367.17 
NOTE 25 - OTHER EXPENSES 
Financial Advisory charges  181.55  119.72 
Computer Expenses  973.02  1,280.06 
Demat charges  145.10  376.27 
Rates and Taxes  3,647.10  3,268.44 
Consultancy Charges  375.91  47.50 
Commission Brokerage  11,017.84  4,249.96 
Commission Paid  1,290.00  - 
Insurance  624.01  390.41 
Internet Expenses  318.73  252.07 
Advertisement Expenses  147.97  224.31 
Business Promotion Expenses  762.76  333.07 
Legal & Professional Fees  14,327.54  4,964.99 
Telephone/Postage and Courier Charges  357.27  397.21 
Electricity Charges  668.13  608.14 
Registration Fees  1,401.64  998.48 
Repairs and Maintenance  3,494.22  2,923.54 
Rent  26.00  - 
Security Charges  168.14  162.72 
Printing and Stationery  329.91  176.00 
Subscription Expenses  496.92  501.64 
Travelling and Conveyance  1,696.62  1,068.86 
Auditor's Remuneration 
For Statutory Audit  227.17  225.00 
For Certification  25.00  25.00 
Directors sitting fees  95.00  145.00 
Donation  14.10  37.60 
Miscellaneous Expenses  577.63  1,033.66 
Sundry Balance Written off  9,617.58  - 
Loss on Market Operation  575.20  4,103.68 

 TOTAL  53,582.08  27,913.31 
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26.	 Principles and assumptions used for consolidated 
financial statements and Performa adjustments :

	 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared as 
per Ind AS 28- Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 
Investments in joint operations are accounted using the 
Proportionate Consolidation Method as per Ind AS 111 –Joint 
Arrangements  

	 Following are the companies whose accounts have been 
considered for the consolidated financial statements:

	 Khandwala Securities Limited (‘the Company’) shareholding in 
the following companies as on March 31, 2024 is as under:

Sr. 
No

Name of Associate 
Enterprises

As at March 31, 2024
No of 

shares
% of 

Holding
1 Trumonee Financial Limited 33,75,000 43.41

27.	 Principles used in preparing Consolidated Financial 
Statements:

a)	 In preparing consolidated financial statements, the financial 
statements of the associates are combined on a line basis 
by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses.

b)	 Intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparation of 
consolidated financial statements.

c)	 The excess of the cost to the parent of its investment in a 
associate over the parent’s portion of equity of the associate, 
at the date on which investment in the associate is made, 
is treated as goodwill & recognized as an asset in the 
consolidated financial statements.

d)	 When the cost to the parent of its investment in a associate 
is less than the parent’s portion of equity of the associate at 
the date on which investment in the associate is made, the 
difference is treated as a capital reserve in the consolidated 
financial statements.

e)	 In case of Associate Enterprises, the financial statements as 
on 31st March, 2024 have been consolidated as per Ind AS111 
“Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated 
Financial Statements”.

f)	 Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform 
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in 
similar circumstances.

28.	 Financial Ratios :
	 The ratios for the years ended 31st March 2024 and 31st 

March 2023 are as follows :

Particulars Numerator Denominator  As at 
31.03.2024 

 As at 
31.03.2023 

 Variance 
 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current 
Liabilities

 1.01  1.87  0.86 

Debt - Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's 
Equity

 0.05  0.09  0.04 

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

* Earnings 
Avaibale for Debt 
Service

Debt Service  0.51  0.43  -0.08 

Particulars Numerator Denominator  As at 
31.03.2024 

 As at 
31.03.2023 

 Variance 
 

Return on Equity Net Profit after 
taxes

Average 
Shareholder's 
Equity

 0.01  0.02  0.01 

Trade Receivables 
Turnovers Ratio

Trade Receivable Turnover  0.78  1.25  0.47 

Trade Payables 
Turnovers Ratio

Trade Payable Turnover  1.84  1.74  -0.10 

Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio

Share Capital Turnover  1.79  2.44  0.64 

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit before 
Tax

Revenue  0.02  0.08  0.06 

Return on Capital 
Employed

Earning before 
Interest and Taxes 

# Capital 
Employed

 0.01  0.03  0.01 

	 * Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest

	 # Tangible Net Worth + Deferred Tax Liabilities + Lease Liabilities

29.	 The Company provides Portfolio Management Services (PMS) 
to its clients. Transactions on account of PMS activities are 
carried out exclusively on behalf of PMS clients. Therefore, 
assets and liabilities arising out of the above effectively 
belong to the PMS clients and hence are not reflected in the 
Company’s accounts. Management fees earned/expenditure 
incurred by the Company from this activity is accounted for on 
an accrual basis. 

30.	 The Share Application Money for an amount of Rs. 216.69 
Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 216.69 Lakhs) is outstanding for 
a period of 264 months as at date of Balance Sheet date, 
for which the financial statements are in the process of 
being obtained. The Company has already initiated legal 
proceedings against the other party for recovery of the said 
application money along with interest thereon, under Section 
138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881. At present, the 
matter is pending for hearing before the Hon’ble High Court at 
Mumbai.

31.	 Long-term Deposits which were given to M/s. Shree Rama 
Polysynth Private Ltd and M/s. Vimpsan Investments Private 
Ltd, upto total aggregate amount of Rs. 530.00 lakhs are still 
outstanding as at March 31, 2024. Since the Company is not 
in the receipt of any interest on the said deposits since long 
period, the Company has not accounted any interest income 
on such deposits in the financial statement. The Company is 
in the process to initiate legal proceedings against them for 
recovery of the said deposits.

32.	 In the matter of M/s. Shree Rama Multitech Limited (SRML) in 
relation to recovery of outstanding rental income/license fee 
from SRML, the Hon’ble High Court, Mumbai had passed the 
order/decree in favor of the company during the period October 
2019. Although the company is yet to receive the rental Income 
from SRML. Later, the Company filed the execution application 
in the Small Cause Court during the period April 2022 in 
Mumbai for recovering the pending rental income/license fee 
amount from SRML. The Hon’ble Small Cause Court, Mumbai 
vide its order/decree dated December 7, 2022 shifted the said 
matter to the Hon’ble Civil Court, Gandhinagar for execution to 
recover the outstanding rental income/license fee. At present, 
the matter is pending for hearing before the Hon’ble Civil 
Court, Gandhinagar 
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33.	 In the matter of Mr. Hiten Parmar regarding receivable of 
the outstanding amount, the Company had filed the case in 
the month of October 2015 before the panel of arbitrators of 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The panel of 
arbitrators of NSE has considered the matter and passed the 
arbitral in favour of the Company on April 12, 2016. The panel 
of arbitrators directed Mr. Hiten Parmar to pay to the Company 
Rs. 55,85,544.87/- within 30 days from the date of receipt of 
award. However, the Company has not received any such 
amount till date from Mr. Hiten Parmar.  The Company has 
initiated legal action and filed the suit against Mr. Hiten Parmar 
in the Hon’ble District Court, Surat (‘the Court’) for recovery of 
the arbitral award amount.  At present, the matter is pending 
for hearing before the Court. Further, the Company are in 
process of simultaneously filing a complaint with Economic 
Offence Wing (EOW) Mumbai in the aforesaid matter. 

34.	 The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India on September 21, 2023 
passed their final order/verdict in favour of the Company and 
quashed/set aside the Securities Appellate Tribunal’s (“SAT”) 
Order dated 08th March, 2017 (and consequently, the WTM’s 
Order of Securities and Exchange Board of India dated 13th 
May, 2015) pertaining to the suspension of certificate of 
registration of the Company as a stock broker at National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited (Old SEBI Registration No. 
INB230600030) for a period of one month.

35.	 The net deferred tax assets are calculated as follows: 	

	 (Rs. In Thousand )
Particulars Accumulated 

As at 31st 
March 2023

Charge/ 
Credit 

during the 
year

As at 31st 
March 
2024

Deferred tax asset:
Provision for doubtful 
debtors/advances that 
are deducted for tax 
purposes whenwritten 
off	

19,945.79 - 19,945.79

Deferred Tax Asset on 
account ofUnabsorbed 
Depreciation

21,650.36 - 21,650.36

Deferred tax liability:
Additional depreciation 
on fixed assets for tax 
purposes due to higher 
tax depreciation rates

(38,403.88) 356.87 (38,047.01)

Expenses carried 
forward as per books 
but claimed for tax 
purposes as incurred         

(121.87) - (121.87)

Net Deferred tax 
Assets/ (Liability)	

3,070.40 356.87 3,427.27

36.	 Segment Information

	 For management purposes, the Company is organized into two 
segments - Fee based and Investment/Trading in Stock. The 
Company has considered these two divisions as its business 
segments. 

	 The Fee based division provides financial advisory services 
relating to mergers and acquisitions, equity and debt issue 
management, portfolio management and broking. 

	 Investment and Stock division carries out trading, investing 
and speculation activities in capital markets (debt and equity) 
for the Company.

	 Fixed assets used in the Company’s business are not 
identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are 
used interchangeably between segments and hence the 
fixed assets and depreciation are not allocated to any of the 
reportable segments. 

	 As the entire business operations of the Company are 
conducted only in India, the Company has not reported any 
secondary segment information.

	 Information about Primary Business Segments

	 (Rs. In Thousand )
Sr .
No.

Particulars
 
 

Year 
Ended

31st March 
2024

Year 
Ended

31st March 
2023

1 Segment Revenue-external
a) Investment / Stock Operations 3453.38 405.65
b) Fee-based Operations 81,716.55 62,238.12
c) Other Unallocated Revenue 1,839.99 2,219.50

Total revenue 87,009.92 64,863.27
2 Segment Result 
a) Investment / Stock Operations 1,670.23 (5,171.22)
b) Fee-based Operations 16,005.60 30,560.09

Total 17,675.83 25,388.87
Less: Interest 2,715.70 3,367.17
Unallocated Expenses less unallocated 
income

(13,322.24) (17,054.06)

Net (Loss) / Profit before Tax & prior 
Period Items

1,637.89 4,967.63

Provision for tax (including deferred 
tax)

(101.10) 535.40

Net (Loss)/Profit after tax for the year 1,738.99 4,432.24
Other Comprehensive Income (17.78) 73.10
Total Comprehensive Income 1,721.21 4,505.34
Other Items

3 Segment Assets
a) Investment / Stock Operations 6,460.48 9,367.51
b) Fee-based Operations 2,39,832.35 1,91,052.04
c) Unallocated Corporate Assets 2,29,763.20 2,35,325.40

  4,76,056.04 4,35,744.96
4 Segment Liabilities 2.44 2.45
a) Investment / Stock Operations 1,56,198.24 1,03,477.46
b) Fee-based Operations 8,362.65 10,926.15
c) Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 1,64,563.33 1,14,406.06
5 Depreciation 3,133.90 2,949.70
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Sr .
No.

Particulars
 
 

Year 
Ended

31st March 
2024

Year 
Ended

31st March 
2023

6 Non cash items other than 
depreciation

a) Investment / Stock operations 332.82 758.39
b) Fee based operations - -

37.	 Earnings per share:			 

	 The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in 
accordance with Ind AS -33 - Earnings Per Share.

	 Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net 
profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year. 

	 Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that 
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity 
shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit 
after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares and 
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at year-end.	

	 (Rs. In Thousand )
				  
				  
	 Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 

2024

Year ended
March 31, 

2023
Basic
Numerator used for calculating 
basic earnings per share – Profit 
after taxation 

1,738.99 4,432.24

Less: Dividend on Cumulative 
Preference share dividend 
(including dividend tax thereon)

- -

Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity 
shareholders 

1,738.99 4,432.24

Weighted average number of 
shares used as
Denominator for calculating basic 
earnings per share

15,253.81 15,253.81

Nominal value per equity share 
(Rs.)

10.00 10.00

Basic earnings per share – (Rs). 0.11 0.29
Diluted
Numerator used for calculating 
Diluted Earnings per Share-Profit /
(Loss) after taxation 

1,738.99 4,432.24

Weighted Average Number of 
Shares used as Denominator for 
calculating Diluted earning per 
Share

15,253.81 15,253.81

Diluted earning per Share- (Rs.) 0.11 0.29

38.	 Related Party Disclosures

	 Names of Related Parties:

A)	 Enterprises where control exists

	 Associate Companies:

1.	 Trumonee Financial Ltd.

B)	 Enterprises controlled by the relatives of the Key Managerial 
Personnel:

1.	 Piggero Investments Pvt. Ltd.

2.	 Bentley Investments Pvt. Ltd.

3.	 Khandwala Commodity & Derivatives Pvt. Ltd.

C)	 Key Management Personnel:

1.	 Mr. Paresh J. Khandwala	- Managing Director

2.	 Mr. Pranav P. Khandwala	 - Whole-Time Director/CFO

3.	 Mrs. Bhagyashree P. Khandwala - Non-Executive Director

4.	 Mr. Homiar Vakil - Non-Executive Independent Director

5.	 Mr. Pratik Khandwala - Non-Executive Director

6.	 Mr. Kalpen Shukla - Non-Executive Independent Director

D)	 Relatives of Key Management Personnel:

1.	 Mrs. Daxa P. Khandwala 

2.	 Mrs. Tulsi Khandwala

3.	 Mrs. Brinda P. Khandwala

4.	 Mr. Mayank Khandwala

Transactions with related parties for the year ended  
31st March 2024.

  (Rs. In Thousand )
Transaction 2023-24 2022-23
Brokerage received
Remuneration Paid
Advisory fees paid
Outstanding Balance
Loans and Advance
Sundry Debtors
Sundry Creditors
Investment Associate Companies 

138.10
4,925.00

181.55

-
7,630.87

176.56
33,750.00

81.31
3,693.75

-

-
9130.87

27.73
33,750.00

39.	 As per information and explanation received there are no dues 
payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings as at March 31, 
2024. 

40.	 Transaction in foreign currency: (In Thousand)

	 Foreign Travel Expenses – Rs. 532.89, Previous year Rs. 
41.61.

	 Foreign Currency Income – Rs. 13,025.76, Previous year Rs. 
3,100.00.
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41.	 Debtors include:

(i)	 Due from a firm in which a director is interested as partner 
- Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil )  

(ii)	 Due from relatives and Enterprises controlled by the 
relatives of the Key Management Personnel– Rs. 
7,630.87.

(iii)	 The above dues have arisen in the normal course of 
business.	

42.	 The creditors are largely from receipt of margin money from 
the clients while the debtors reflect the pattern of settlement 
period, wherein year-end date falls within to be settled period.

43.	 Managerial Remuneration:

(i)	 Remuneration to Managing Director (In Thousands)

	 Salary and Other Allowances : Rs. 4,925.00  (P.Y. Rs. 
3,693.75)

(ii)	 Sitting fees to other Directors : Rs. 95.00 (P.Y. Rs. 145.00)

44.	 Liability for Employee benefits has been determined by an 
actuary, appointed for the purpose, in conformity with the 
principles set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 19    ( Ind 
AS 19) the details of which are as hereunder.

	 (Rupess In Thousand)

Change in Benefit Obligation: Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Present Value of Benefit 
Obligation at the beginning of 
the Period

4,894.05 4,588.42

Interest Cost 364.12 320.27

Current Service Cost 266.12 232.00

Past Service Cost (Non Vested 
Benefit)

- -

Past Service Cost (Vested 
Benefit)

- -

Settlement - -

Liability Transfer in - -

Liability Transfer out - -

(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (177.57) (165.88)

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on 
Obligations-Due to change in 
Demographic Assumptions

- -

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on 
Obligations-Due to change in 
Financial Assumptions

58.22 (104.01)

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on 
Obligations-Due to Experience 

(47.65) 23.24

Present Value of Benefit 
Obligation at the End of the 
Period

5,357.30 4,894.05

Fair value of Plan Assets: Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
Beginning of the Period

3,691.89 3,607.56

Interest Income 274.68 251.81

Contributions by the Employer 6.41 6.01

Expected Contribution by the 
employees

- -

Expected Contributions by the 
Employees 

- -

(Benefit Paid from the Fund) (177.57) (165.88)

Return on Plan Assets, 
Excluding Interest Income

(7.21) (7.67)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
End of the Period

3,788.20 3,691.89

Amount Recognized in the 
Balance Sheet:

Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

(Present Value of Benefit 
Obligation at the end of the 
Period)

(5,357.30) (4,894.05)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
End of the Period

3,788.20 3,691.89

Funded Status (Surplus/ 
(Deficit))

(1,569.10) (1,202.16)

Net (Liability) /Asset Recognized 
in the Balance Sheet

(1,569.10) (1,202.16)

Net Interest Cost for Current 
Period 

Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Present Value of Benefit 
Obligation at the Beginning of 
the Period

4,894.05 4,588.42

(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 
Beginning of the Period)

(3,691.89) (3,607.56)

Net (Liability) /Asset at the 
Beginning

1,202.16 980.86

Interest Cost 364.12 320.27

(Interest Income) (274.77) (251.81)

Net Interest Cost for Current 
Period

89.44 68.46
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Expenses Recognized in the 
Income Statement: 

Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Current Service Cost 	
266.12

	
232.00

Net Interest Cost 89.44 68.46

Past Service Cost - -

(Expected Contributions by the 
Employees)

- -

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailments 
And Settlements

- -

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates

- -

Expense Recognized 355.56 300.47

Balance Sheet Reconciliation Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Opening Net Liability 1,202.16 980.86

Expense Recognized in 
Statement of Profit or Loss

355.56 300.47

Expense Recognized in OCI 17.78 (73.10)

Net Liability/ (Asset) Transfer in - -

Net Liability/ (Asset) Transfer out - -

(Benefit Paid Directly by the 
Employer)

- -

(Employer’s Contribution) (6.41) (6.06)

Net Liability /(Asset) Recognized 
in Balance Sheet

1569.10 1202.16

Category of Assets Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Government of India Assets - -

State Government Securities - -

Special Deposits Scheme - -

Debts Instruments - -

Corporate Bonds - -

Cash And Cash Equivalents - -

Insurance Fund 3,788.20 3,691.89

Other - -

Total 3,788.20 3,691.89

Expenses Recognized in the 
Other Comprehensive Income 
OCI for Current Period 

Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on 
Obligation for the Period

10.57 (80.77)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding 
Interest Income

7.21 7.67

Change in Asset Ceiling - -

Net (Income)/ Expense for the 
Period Recongnized in OCI

17.78 (73.10)

Assumptions Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.19% 7.44%

Rate of Discounting 7.19% 7.44%

Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover 5.00% 5.00%

Other Details Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

No. Of Active Members 35 35

Per Month Salary For Active 
Member

811.80 734.13

Weighted Average Duration of 
the Projected Benefit Obligation

- 6

Average Expected Future 
Service

- 10

Projected Benefit Obligation 5,357.30 4,894.05

Prescribed Contribution for next 
year (12 Months)

811.80 734.13

	 Note:-
	 Gratuity is payable as per company’s scheme as detailed in 

the report.
	 Actuarial Gain/ Loss are recognized in the period of occurrence 

under other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
	 All above reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation.
	 Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised 

by the company; they appear to be in line with the industry 
practice considering promotion and demand & supply of the 
employees.

	 Maturity Analysis of Benefit payments is undiscounted cash 
flows considering future salary, attrition & death in respective 
year for members as mentioned above.

	 Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term 
of Post- Employment Benefit Obligation.

	 Value of asset provided by the client is considered as fair 
value of plan asset for the period of reporting as same is not 
evaluated by us.
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 See accompanying notes ( 1 to 46 ) to the Financial Statements. 
 As per our report attached of even date. 

For Aniket Kulkarni & Associates
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 130521W 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Khandwala Securities Limited 

Aniket Kulkarni
Proprietor
Mem. No: 127246

Homiar N. Vakil 
Chairman 
DIN: 05210178 

 Paresh J. Khandwala 
 Managing Director 
 DIN: 00112678 

Pranav Khandwala 
Whole-Time Director/ CFO 
DIN: 00519113 

 Abhishek Joshi 
 Company Secretary 

Place :- Mumbai Place :- Mumbai 
Date :- 18th May 2024 Date : - 18th May 2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
45.	 Contingent Liabilities: -
i)	 Contingent Liabilities on account of disputed cases pending 

before various authorities of Income Tax Act is annexed below. 
No provision has been made in the books of accounts as the 
outcome is still awaited:     

	 (Rs. In Thousand)
Name of 

the
Statute

Nature of 
the Dues

Amount Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum 
where 

Dispute is 
pending

Under 
Section

Income 
Tax Act 
1961

Income 
Tax

496.27 A.Y. 2007-
08

Mumbai 
High 
Court

143(3)

ii)	 Preference dividends are in arrears from F.Y. 2008-09 to 
F.Y.2020-21 as aggregating to Rs. 2.49 Crores.

iii)	 TDS defaults showing on TDS traces website for the various 
Financial Years as on 31st March 2024 has been reviewed and 
there is no possible demand arising due to that. The Company 
is under process of rectifying the defaults by revising the TDS 
returns.

46.	 The figures for the previous period have been regrouped, 
rearranged or reclassified wherever necessary to conform to 
the current period’s presentation.
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